
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Transport Committee 

Date: 30 April 2013 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Davey (Chair), Follett (Deputy Chair), Cox 
(Opposition Spokesperson), Janio, Kennedy, 
Mitchell, Phillips, Robins, G Theobald and West 

Contact: John Peel 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291058 
john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Transport Committee                    

Public Seating 

Press 

Public 
Speaker 

Councillor 
Davey 
Chair 

Strategic 
Director 
Place 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Legal  
Officer 

Public 
Speaker 

    O 
 
     F 
 
     F 
 
     I 
 
     C 
 
     E 
 
     R 
 
     S 

   O 
 
   F 
 
   F 
 
   I 
 
  C 
 
  E 
 
  R 
 
  S 

Councillor 
Follett 

Deputy Chair 

Councillor 

Phillips 

Councillor 

Kennedy 

Councillor 

West 

Councillor 
Cox 

Opposition 
Spokes 

 

Councillor 
G. Theobald 

 

Councillor 

Janio 

Councillor 
Robins 

Opposition 
Spokes 

Councillor 

Mitchell 

Councillor 
Speaking 

Officer 
Speaking 

Officer 
Speaking 



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART ONE Page 
 

68. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declarations of Substitutes:  Where councillors are unable to 
attend a meeting, a substitute Member from the same political 
group may attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest:   
 

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests not registered on the register 
of interests; 

(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local 
code; 

(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on 
the matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a 
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in 
the ward/s affected by the decision. 

 
In each case, you need to declare  
(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to; 
(ii) the nature of the interest; and 
(iii) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other 

interest. 
 
If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer 
or administrator preferably before the meeting. 

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public:  To consider whether, in view of 

the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
Note: Any item appearing in Part Two of the agenda states in its 

heading the category under which the information disclosed 
in the report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not 
available to the press and public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for 
public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls and on-line in 
the Constitution at part 7.1. 

 

 

69. MINUTES 1 - 8 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2013 (copy 
attached). 

 

 Contact Officer: John Peel Tel: 29-1058  
 



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
 

70. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

71. CALL OVER  

 (a) Items (75– 85) will be read out at the meeting and Members invited 
to reserve the items for consideration. 

 
(b) Those items not reserved will be taken as having been received 

and the reports’ recommendations agreed. 

 

 

72. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 9 - 14 

 To consider the following matters raised by members of the public: 
 
(a) Petitions: To receive any petitions presented by members of the 

public to the full Council or at the meeting itself. 
 

(i) Stanford Avenue residents against Parking Permit scheme- 
Jane Baker 

 
(ii) Objection to a taxi rank on Frederick Place- Philip Lobatto 

 
(iii) Petition to turn Westbourne Street into a ‘Play Street’- Ray 

Cunningham 
 
(b) Written Questions: To receive any questions submitted by the 

due date of 12 noon on the 23 April. 
 

(i) Juliet Mitchell- Parking on The Drive, Hove 
 
(c) Deputations: To receive any deputations submitted by the due 

date of 12 noon on the 23 April. 
 

(i) Adam Campbell- Loading restrictions on Western Road 
 

 

 

73. ITEMS REFERRED FROM FULL COUNCIL 15 - 30 

 To consider the following matters referred from the Full Council meeting 
of 28 March 2013 (copies attached) 
 
(a)      Petitions:  
 

(iv) Elm Tree at Seven Dials- Millie Ferguson 
 
(c) Deputations:  
 

(ii) Public health, road safety and nuisance caused by licensed 
taxis in Paston Place, Kempton- Stefanie Krachen-
Lashbrook (referred from Licensing Committee) 

 

 



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

 

74. MEMBER INVOLVEMENT 31 - 32 

 To consider the following matters raised by Members: 
 
(a) Petitions: To receive any petitions submitted to the full Council or at 

the meeting itself; 
 
(b) Written Questions: To consider any written questions; 
 
(c) Letters: To consider any letters; 
 

(i) Taxi Rank on Paston Place- Councillor Mitchell 
 
(d) Notices of Motion: to consider any Notices of Motion referred from 

Council or submitted directly to the Committee. 

 

 

75. SEVEN DIALS ELM TREE – CONSIDERATION OF DESIGN 
ALTERNATIVES 

33 - 62 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Robin Reed Tel: 29-3856  
 Ward Affected: Regency   
 

76. BETTER BUS AREAS 63 - 92 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Emma Sheridan Tel: 293862  
 Ward Affected: Queen's Park; St Peter's 

& North Laine 
  

 

77. BRIGHTON STATION GATEWAY 93 - 154 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Jim Mayor Tel: 29-4164  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

78. TRAFFIC ORDER CONSULTATION - RESIDENT PARKING SCHEMES 155 - 
200 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 

 



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Charles Field Tel: 29-3329  
 Ward Affected: Hollingdean & Stanmer; 

Preston Park; St Peter's & 
North Laine 

  

 

79. LIVELY CITIES - REGENERATION IN THE LONDON ROAD AREA 201 - 
214 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 

 

 Contact Officer: Alan Buck Tel: 29-2287  
 Ward Affected: St Peter's & North Laine   
 

80. WEST HOVE & SOUTH PORTSLADE RESIDENTS PARKING 
CONSULTATION 

215 - 
224 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Owen McElroy Tel: 29-0368  
 Ward Affected: South Portslade; 

Westbourne; Wish 
  

 

81. BLAKERS PARK ROAD SAFETY SCHEME - TRO FOR PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS 

225 - 
238 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Jo Brooksbank Tel: 29-1819  
 Ward Affected: Preston Park   
 

82. DYKE ROAD (SEVEN DIALS) - FORMAL TRAFFIC REGULATION 
ORDER CONSULTATION 

239 - 
246 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Robin Reed Tel: 29-3856  
 Ward Affected: Regency   
 

83. AMEX COMMUNITY STADIUM RESIDENTS PARKING PROPOSALS - 
CONSIDERATION OF OBJECTIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS TO 
TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS 

247 - 
264 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 

 



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Owen McElroy Tel: 29-0368  
 Ward Affected: Hollingdean & Stanmer; 

Moulsecoomb & 
Bevendean 

  

 

84. FIVEWAYS SAFER ROUTES TO SCHOOL SCHEME OBJECTIONS 265 - 
280 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Matthew Thompson Tel: 29-3705  
 Ward Affected: Preston Park; Withdean   
 

85. PRESTON PARK PARKING REVIEW - RESPONSE TO TRO 281 - 
288 

 Report of the Executive Director Environment, Development & Housing 
(copy attached). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Jan Jonker Tel: 29-4722  
 Ward Affected: Preston Park   
 

86. ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL  

 To consider items to be submitted to the 9 May 2013 Council meeting for 
information. 
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may determine 
that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In addition, 
any Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying the 
Chief Executive no later than 10am on the eighth working day before the 
Council meeting at which the report is to be made, or if the Committee 
meeting take place after this deadline, immediately at the conclusion of 
the Committee meeting 

 

 

 
 



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact John Peel, (01273 
291058, email john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk  
 

 
Date of Publication - Monday, 22 April 2013 

 
 

 



BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 
 

4.00pm 5 MARCH 2013 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillor Davey (Chair) Councillor Follett (Deputy Chair), Cox (Opposition 
Spokesperson), Janio, Kennedy, Mitchell, Phillips, Robins, G Theobald and West 
 
Other Members present: Councillor Hawtree 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

58. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
58(a)    Declerations of substitutes 
 
58.1 Councillor Morgan present as substitute for Councillor Mitchell 
 
58(b)    Declarations of interest 
 
58.2 There were none. 
 
58(c)     Exclusion of press and public 
 
58.3 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the 

Committee considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of proceedings, that if members of the press 
and public were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of 
confidential information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information 
(as defined in section 100(I) of the Act). 

 
59. MINUTES 
 
59.1 Councillor Kennedy asked for a correction to minute item 52.2 to replace the word 

“vouch” with “confirm there were many”. 
 
59.2 RESOLVED- That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 15 January 2013, as 

amended, be approved and signed as the correct record. 
 
60. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 

1



 

 
 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 5 MARCH 2013 

60.1 The Chair stated that he had no specific communications. 
 
61. CALL OVER 
 
61.1 RESOLVED- That all items on the agenda be reserved for discussion. 
 
62. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
 
(a) Petitions 
 
(i) Brighton Station and Seven Dials proposals- Rob Heale 
 
62.1 The petitioner did not attend the meeting therefore, the response was provided in writing 

and is set out below. 
 

“Public consultation on both the Seven Dials and Brighton Station schemes was 
undertaken in 2012, and the specific scheme elements mentioned in the petition were 
made publicly available as part of the plans.   
The response to the Seven Dials proposals was overwhelmingly positive and the 
scheme was approved by the Council’s Transport Committee on 15th January 2013.  
Work was due to commence on-site on 4th March and will be ongoing for approximately 
9 months.   
In both cases, the scheme design has been undertaken by qualified professionals with 
all relevant design guidance and best practice adhered to.  Both schemes will also be 
subject to a 3 stage independent Safety Audit process, as is the case with all significant 
transport schemes promoted by the Council”. 

 
62.2 RESOLVED- That the petition be noted. 
 
63. ITEMS REFERRED FROM FULL COUNCIL 
 
(a) Petitions 
 
(i) Opportunity to improve residents’ car and cycle parking, Eaton Road, Hove- 

Councillor Sykes 
 
63.1 The petitioner did not attend the meeting therefore a response was provided in writing 

and is set out below. At the request of a member of the Committee, the response was 
also read out at the meeting. 

2



 

 
 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 5 MARCH 2013 

 
 
64. MEMBER INVOLVEMENT 
 

“The council continue to support the installation of cycle parking facilities across the city 
as a lack of adequate, well placed cycle parking facilities is a known barrier for those 
wishing to cycle.  
In order to provide facilities and respond to requests for our residents the council 
maintains a database of these requests which are investigated on a rolling basis.  
Where cycle parking is appropriate and funding is available we endeavour to install 
facilities on the footway.   
In locations such as the city centre where there is limited pavement space to install 
cycle parking, carriageway cycle parking is considered. These on-carriageway facilities 
are known as Pedal Cycle Parking Places (PCPPs). Before they can be installed a full 
site investigation is carried out to ensure facilities are in the correct location, they do not 
obstruct the highway and to determine the effects on existing vehicle parking facilities.  
We have now received the request for cycle parking on Eaton Road opposite the 
Sussex Cricket Ground and will investigate this request within the financial year 
2013/2014.  It is not possible to have a shared taxi rank and resident permit bay facility 
so a decision about these bays would need to be made based on the need for resident 
or cycle parking, consultation with the Taxi Forum and any other objections which might 
be received”. 

 
63.2 RESOLVED- That the petition be noted. 
 
(ii) Pelham Street Crossing- Rohan Lowe 
 
63.3 The Chair of the Committee provided the following response: 
 

“Officers have been liaising with City College for over a year and have confirmed that 
driver behaviour is the main issue in this case.   
I did personally meet with representatives from the college in 2011 when a petition was 
previously submitted and we did discuss the matter of the crossing. Road safety officers 
made suggestions about moving some of the parking to alternate sides of the road 
which they felt may help reduce traffic speeds. The college were going to get back to us 
on this but never did. 
Pelham Street has been included on the list of pedestrian crossing requests to be 
assessed, subject to funding, in the financial year 2013/2014. Any improvements 
suggested will be in line with wider area development plans such as the City College 
planning application which has recently been discussed at the pre-application stage with 
Brighton & Hove Authority Planners. We carry out assessments on an annual basis so 
that we can respond in a relatively proactive way to crossing requests. 
As you may be aware, 20mph speed limits are due to be implemented in this area soon 
and hopefully this was contribute towards pedestrian safety. 
The results of the pedestrian crossing assessments and the priority locations identified 
to be installed are listed on the council’s website. This website also lists those 
pedestrian crossing improvements that have been installed as a direct result of this 
process”.  

 
63.4 RESOLVED- That the petition be noted. 

3



 

 
 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 5 MARCH 2013 

64.1 No items were received. 
 
 
65. VALLEY GARDENS 
 
65.1 The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director, Place that set out the 

principles for the Valley Gardens Concept Scheme. The report was supplemented by a 
presentation at the Committee. 

 
65.2 Councillor West asked if the design brief presented to the Committee was the same as 

the one it had received previously in July 2012. In addition, he asked the Senior Project 
Manger to acknowledge the issue of traffic neutrality and the presence of elm trees. 

 
65.3 The Senior Project Manager clarified the brief was substantially the same as the one 

presented to Committee in July for all but a few words. He supplemented that the elm 
trees were a constraint on where roads could be routed and the retention of the gyratory 
system was considered but this was not deemed practical.  

 
65.4 Councillor West asked if a traffic reduction was considered in order to eradicate the 

need to build across the park. 
 
65.5 The Senior Project Manager replied that this had not been specifically tested, but that 

Traffic Modellers had advised that reducing highway infrastructure to a single lane in 
each direction would likely have significant impact on traffic flow within Valley Gardens 
and dispersal of traffic onto alternative roads in the city. The Senior Project Manager 
stated that if required, the number of traffic lanes in the proposal could be reduced 
ahead of any construction. However, to achieve this, wider strategies would need to be 
implemented to reduce levels of traffic in Valley Gardens. These strategies, which would 
likely need to overcome issues such as clustering of car parks in the city centre, were 
beyond the scope of the Valley Gardens project being presented.  

 
65.6 Councillor Robins stated he had found difficulty in visualising how he would drive from 

Edward Street to New England Road under the new proposals.  
 
65.7 The Senior Project Manager explained that the journey would be made in much the 

same way as today. The Senior Project Manager confirmed that private vehicles would 
be able to enter sections of bus lane for local access, but that measures would be 
implemented to prevent private vehicles driving along the whole length of the bus lanes.   

 
65.8 Councillor Morgan noted that items 3.9 and 4.3 of the report highlighted that this was a 

long-term scheme and therefore needed cross-party support to deliver it effectively. 
Councillor Morgan stated the Labour & Co-Operative party’s support for the current 
scheme proposals and for the long-term enhancement. 

 
65.9 The Chair agreed noting the recent announcement that applications to the Cycle 

Ambition City grant would need to demonstrate cross-party support as a condition. 
 
65.10 Councillor Janio praised officers for the work they had conducted thus far. He agreed 

that consensus on a masterplan was needed from all parties. Councillor Janio noted that 
recommendation 2.5 referred to the establishment of a management team. He asked for 

4



 

 
 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 5 MARCH 2013 

clarification that this be formed by existing staff and budgets and not be a consultancy 
organisation.  

 
65.11 The Head of Transport confirmed that this team would be formed by existing staff and 

there may be Member involvement. 
 
65.12  Councillor Kennedy thanked Transport officers for work undertaken on the project. She 

agreed that cross-party support for a vision would be best for the project which, with its 
public realm and environmental improvements, had very exciting potential. The 
proposals would bring significant enhancement to an area that often gave the 
impression of neglect. 

 
65.13 Councillor West stated that whilst he believed there were many good aspects to the 

proposed scheme which would deliver improvements, he had numerous concerns. 
Councillor West stated that he was uneasy about the impact of two lanes of traffic in the 
natural open spaces of Valley Gardens including a possible third stretch of road on 
Marlborough Place. Councillor West noted that he had checked the brief provided to 
Committee in July 2012 which he believed differed to the one presented to Committee at 
this meeting. Specifically, there was less traffic and more tranquillity and that the 
potential of the scheme had not been met with the current proposals. Councillor West 
added that whilst he appreciated that  aspects of the scheme had been consulted on, he 
believed that the specific details of the scheme, particularly the new elements, should be 
consulted on again as the public must have ownership of the Valley gardens scheme. 
Councillor West stated that he believed the scheme could be improved adding that 
because of the constraints of a traffic neutral scheme and the narrowing of green 
spaces, the current design would create little more than a central reservation. 

 
65.14 Councillor Janio asked the Senior Project Manager if the proposals would lead to a 

significant loss of green space as described by Councillor West. 
 
65.15 The Senior Project Manager replied that it was important to differentiate between quality 

and volume of green space. In terms of quality, the current plans would enhance the 
ambience, connectivity, safety, ecology and character of the area. In terms of quantity, 
and excluding new swales and trees on hardscaped areas, a scheme that included the 
realignment of the road to the west of Victoria Gardens south would lead to a reduction 
of around 7% in green space. Leaving the road in its current alignment would result in a 
1% increase in green space. The Senior Project Manger added that the stated figures 
did not include the flexibility within the scheme to amend the design details at future 
points. 

 
65.16 Councillor West formally moved the following amendments to the recommendations as 

shown below: 
 

The existing recommendations 2.1 and 2.2 to be replaced with: 
 

2.1    That Committee notes the Valley Gardens Concept Scheme proposals. 
 
2.2 That Committee instructs officers to undertake a full public consultation on the 

Valley Gardens Concept Scheme proposals and to bring the results of the 
consultation back to a future Committee. 

5



 

 
 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 5 MARCH 2013 

 
Recommendation 2.5 to be amended to read:  
 
2.5 That Committee agrees that a management team should be established to oversee 

consistent development of the Concept Scheme, and to ensure synergy between 
the proposals and surrounding schemes and policies. 

 
65.17 The motion did not receive a formal seconder and therefore, was not put to the vote. 
 
65.18 Councillor Cox stated that he support the proposals. The overall vision was to a high 

standard and realistic should funding be achieved. Councillor Cox stressed the 
importance of as much cross-party support as possible as it was a long-term project and 
likely to be delivered over more than one administration. Councillor Cox added that the 
current design problems at Valley Gardens demonstrated that lessons needed to be 
learned in consistent delivery of such schemes over a number of administrations. 
Councillor Cox supplemented that he hoped funding would be forthcoming and 
investigated as much as possible. 

 
65.19 Councillor Theobald expressed his support for the Concept Scheme and his thanks to 

the Senior Project Manager and his team for their work on the project thus far and how 
the design had appreciated or included a broad spectrum of opinion. Councillor 
Theobald believed that the Valley Gardens area was currently underused, in a very poor 
condition and lacking in smooth transition for pedestrians and cyclists. 

 
65.20 Councillor Robins stated that the Concept Scheme was very good and essential in an 

area at the heart of the city. 
 
65.21 The Chair thanked Members for their positive comments and the discussion. He added 

that whilst he appreciated the concerns raised, public engagement was ongoing which 
would help refine the scheme to resident’s priorities and preferences. 

 
65.22 RESOLVED-     
 
1.  That Committee agrees that the principles established by the Valley Gardens Concept 

Scheme as outlined in this report should guide future improvements in and around 
Valley Gardens.  

 
2.  That Committee agrees that further work should be undertaken, incorporating full public 

consultation, to develop the public realm aspects of the Concept Scheme, specifically 
the public parkland spaces and hard landscaped civic spaces. 

 
3.  That Committee agrees that continued financial allocations to the Valley Gardens 

project should be made within the council’s Local Transport Plan capital programme to 
enable the continued development of the project, and that £100,000 should be allocated 
for this purpose in 2013/14. 

 
4.      That Committee agrees that early consideration should be given to the preparation of 

bids for external funding that would assist in developing and implementing elements of 
the Valley Gardens proposals. 

 

6



 

 
 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 5 MARCH 2013 

5.  That Committee agrees that a management team should be established to oversee 
consistent delivery of the Concept Scheme, and to ensure synergy between the 
proposals and surrounding schemes and policies. 

 
66. AWARD OF ON-STREET PARKING MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 
 
66.1 The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director, Place that requested 

approval for the award of the on-street Parking Management Contract to the preferred 
bidder for a three year duration with the option to extend for a two years plus a further 
option to extend for an additional two years. 

 
66.2 Councillor Janio asked if the three tenderers had applied to the same criteria, in 

particular with regard to the movement of staff. 
 
66.3 The Head of Transport Operations confirmed that this had been the case. 
 
66.4 Councillor Morgan noted his concern that the Committee were considering financial, 

contractual information and that it perhaps should have done so in private session. 
Councillor Morgan noted that there was only one tenderer which he believed 
demonstrated that outsourcing of contracts was not as effective as often claimed. 
Councillor Morgan stated that he could not support the recommendations on this basis. 

 
66.5 The Acting Assistant Head of Law clarified that there was no information contained 

within the report to merit consideration being held in confidential session. She added 
that there was a conscious effort on behalf of the authority to restrict reports where 
absolutely necessary. 

 
66.6 RESOLVED- That Transport Committee authorises the Strategic Director Place to 

approve the award of the on-street Parking Management Contract to the preferred 
bidder for a three year duration with option to extend for two years plus a further option 
to extend for a further two years, in line with the recommendations of the Tender 
Evaluation Report produced by the evaluation team. 

 
67. ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL 
 
67.1 No items were referred to Full Council for information. 
 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 5.15pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

7



 

 
 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 5 MARCH 2013 

 
 
Dated this day of  

 

8



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 72(A) 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 

Subject: Petitions 

Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  John Peel Tel: 29-1058 

 E-mail: john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: Various  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 To receive any petitions presented at Council, any petitions submitted directly 
to Democratic Services or any e-Petition submitted via the council’s website. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.2 That the Committee responds to the  petition either by noting it or writing to 
the petition organiser setting out the Council’s views, or where it is considered 
more appropriate, calls for an officer report on the matter which may give 
consideration to a range of options, including the following: 

 

§ taking the action requested in the petition 
§ considering the petition at a council meeting 
§ holding an inquiry into the matter 
§ undertaking research into the matter 
§ holding a public meeting 
§ holding a consultation 
§ holding a meeting with petitioners 
§ referring the petition for consideration by the council’s Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
§ calling a referendum 
 

 
 

3. PETITIONS 
 

3. (i) Stanford Avenue residents against parking permit scheme- Jane Baker 
 
 To receive the following E-Petition signed by 24 people: 
 

“We the undersigned petition the council to register our objection as residents 
of Stanford Avenue to the proposed extension and ask Brighton & Hove City 
Council to remove Stanford Avenue from the Area J Residents Parking 
Scheme”. 

 
(ii) Objection to a taxi rank on Fredrick Place, Brighton- Phillip Lobatto 

To receive the following E-Petition and paper petition signed by 1006 people: 

9



“We the undersigned petition the council to reject this version of the 
project to install a taxi rank on Frederick Place, bringing increased traffic 
congestion plus air and noise pollution to the North Laine and its 
consequent detrimental impact on the lives of residents, traders and 
visitors. As a scheme, it has no positive planning merit. As Frederick 
Place can only contain a small percentage of available taxis, and with no 
taxi supply line designated outside the North Laine, residential roads, 
already full of parked vehicles, will undoubtedly be used by queuing 
taxis creating further danger to pedestrians, children, cyclists and other 
drivers. The North Laine should remain a conservation area, not become 
a disaster area”.  

 

(iii) Petition to make Westbourne Street a ‘Play Street’- Ray 
Cunningham 

 

To receive the follow paper petition signed by 148 people: 

 

“We the undersigned petition the council to make the southern hald of 
Westbourne Street a ‘Play Street’ meaning vehicle access to the street 
would be restricted to residents, their visitors and deliveries only and 
that traffic speed in the street would be reduced to a maximum of 
10mph” 

 

 

 

 

 

             

10



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
30 April 2013 

Agenda Item 72 (b) 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 
WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
A period of not more than fifteen minutes shall be allowed for questions submitted by 
a member of the public who either lives or works in the area of the authority at each 
ordinary meeting of the Council. 
 
Every question shall be put and answered without discussion, but the person to 
whom a question has been put may decline to answer.  The person who asked the 
question may ask one relevant supplementary question, which shall be put and 
answered without discussion. 
 
The following written question has been received from members of the public. 
 
 
(a) Juliet Mitchell 
 
"Would the Council give consideration to increasing the “Permit Holders Only” 
parking spaces in The Drive by replacing a portion of the centre road “Pay and 
Display” spaces as is the case in Grand Avenue? 

The Drive has lost approximately 12 Permit spaces due to Black Bins and increased 
double yellow lines at entrance/exits opening and now plans for more recycle bins will 
mean further loss of spaces 

 
Residents in The Drive are continually having problems finding a parking space 
during the day as a result of a glut of non permit holders parking for shopping and 
visiting solicitors/medical businesses." 

 

11



12



 
 
DEPUTATIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
A period of not more than fifteen minutes shall be allowed at each ordinary meeting 
of the Council for the hearing of deputations from members of the public.  Each 
deputation may be heard for a maximum of five minutes. 
 
One Deputation received: 
 
 
(i) Deputation:  
 
The effect of the loading restrictions on businesses on the north side of Western Rd 
and the lack of response from the transport chair despite repeated emails 
  
(Spokesperson) – Mr Adam Campbell- Chair Western Road Traders Association 

 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 
 

 
30 APRIL 2013 

Agenda Item 72 (c) 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

13



 

  

 

14



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 73(a) 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 

Subject: Items referred from 28 March 2013 Full Council 
meeting- Petitions 

15 January  30 April 2013 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  John Peel Tel: 29-1058 

 E-mail: john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: Various  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 To receive any petitions referred from the Full Council meeting of 28 March 
2013. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.2 That the Committee responds to the  petition either by noting it or writing to 
the petition organiser setting out the Council’s views, or where it is considered 
more appropriate, calls for an officer report on the matter which may give 
consideration to a range of options, including the following: 

 

§ taking the action requested in the petition 
§ considering the petition at a council meeting 
§ holding an inquiry into the matter 
§ undertaking research into the matter 
§ holding a public meeting 
§ holding a consultation 
§ holding a meeting with petitioners 
§ referring the petition for consideration by the council’s Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
§ calling a referendum 
 

 
 

3. PETITIONS 
 

3. (i) Elm Tree at Seven Dials- Millie Ferguson 
 

To receive the following petition referred from the meeting of Full Council on 
28 March 2013 and signed by 4318 people: 

 
“We, the undersigned, strongly object to the feeling of the Elm Tree at Seven 
Dials”. 
 

             

15



16



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
 

Agenda Item 105 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 
 

 

Subject: Elm Tree at Seven Dials - Extract from the 
Proceedings of the Council Meeting held on the 28 
March 2013 

Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  Mark Wall Tel: 29-1006 

 E-mail: mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
 FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 

Action Required of the Transport Committee: 
To receive the item referred from the Council for consideration: 
 

Recommendation: 
 

(1) That the petition be referred to the Transport Committee for consideration; and 
 
(2) That officers be requested to prepare a report for the 30th April Transport 

Committee, detailing alternative options for Vernon Terrace and Seven Dials that 
could retain the tree. 

 
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

4.30 pm 28 March 2013 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 

Present:  Councillors Randall (Chair), Meadows (Deputy Chair), Barnett, Bennett, 
Bowden, Brown, Buckley, Carden, Cobb, Cox, Deane, Duncan, Farrow, 
Fitch, Gilbey, Hamilton, Hawtree, Hyde, Janio, Jarrett, Jones, Kennedy, 
A Kitcat, J Kitcat, Lepper, Littman, Mac Cafferty, Marsh, Mears, Mitchell, 
Morgan, A Norman, K Norman, Peltzer Dunn, Phillips, Pidgeon, Pissaridou, 
Powell, Robins, Rufus, Shanks, Simson, Smith, Summers, Sykes, 
C Theobald, G Theobald, Wakefield, Wealls, Wells, West and Wilson. 

 
 

 
 

17



L 

 
 

COUNCIL 28 MARCH 2013 

PART ONE 
 
 

101. (a) ELM TREE AT SEVEN DIALS 
 
101.1 The Mayor stated that the council’s petition scheme provided that where a petition 

secured 1,250 or more signatures it could be debated at a Council meeting.  He had 
been notified of one such petition which had sufficient signatures to warrant a debate 
and therefore would call on the lead petitioner to present their petition before opening 
the matter up for debate. 

 
101.2 The Mayor also noted that there was an amendment from the Green Group to the 

recommendation contained in the covering report on the petition, which Councillor 
Jason Kitcat would move during his response to the petition. 

 
101.3 The Mayor then called on Ms. Ferguson to present the petition concerning the Elm 

Tree at Seven Dials. 
 
101.4 Ms. Ferguson thanked the Mayor and stated that the petition sought to secure the 

future of the Elm Tree at Seven Dials and called on the Council to review the options 
in relation to the proposed scheme at Seven Dials so that the tree could remain rather 
than being destroyed.  The petition had been signed by 4,318 people and it was only 
because of the vigorous campaign to save the tree that it has not been felled on the 7th 
March.  She hoped that the council would reconsider and listen to the views of the 
local residents and find a way to save the tree.  The petition stated, “There is an 
ancient tree at 7 Dials at the corner of Vernon Terrace. There is a plan to cut the tree. 
Why? The planners say that they want to replace the traffic lights in Vernon Terrace by 
a zebra crossing. If that happens then according to them, the elm tree which has been 
there for more than 100 years may obstruct visibility when people are waiting at the 
kerb for traffic to stop.  The planners have decided to chop down the tree to open 
visibility.  This action was not part of the consultation process for 7 Dials and therefore 
was not considered by residents who in any case find both zebra crossings and the 
removal of the tree unacceptable. It is better for the survival of this tree (and many 
users of the crossing at Vernon Terrace) to keep the traffic lights in Vernon terrace and 
scrap the zebra crossing.” 

 
101.5 Councillor J. Kitcat thanked Ms. Ferguson for presenting the petition and stated that he 

was pleased to report that the tree was in good health having recently been checked 
for any sign of disease.  He hoped that a positive way forward could be found and 
moved an amendment to the report to add a further recommendation requesting 
officers to bring a report to the transport Committee on the 30th April outlining options 
for the proposed traffic calming scheme and the possible retention of the tree.  He also 
noted that the Seven Dials area was the second most dangerous junction in the city 
and hence the consultation process on the scheme and the previous report to the 
committee in January. 

 
101.6 Councillor Buckley formally seconded the amendment and stated that she was 

pleased to do so and hoped that a way to retain the tree within the scheme could be 
found.  She noted that two other elm trees had been previously lost and therefore felt 
that there was a need to look at saving the current one.  She also noted that the last 
report to the Transport Committee in January had been approved unanimously and 

18



L 

 
 

COUNCIL 28 MARCH 2013 

had included the felling of the tree; however she noted the public concern and hoped 
that a revised scheme could be identified. 

 
101.7 Councillor Mitchell stated that she wished to pay tribute to the campaign to save the 

tree and she fully supported the amendment moved by Councillor Kitcat.  There was a 
need for road improvements in the area but she hoped that changes could be made to 
save the tree within the scheme.  She also noted that the previous report had made it 
clear that the tree had been designated to be felled and felt that officers had been 
unfairly treated.  However she was now hopeful that a way forward could be found. 

 
101.8 Councillor Cox stated that he also wished to pay tribute to the campaign and 

welcomed the comments of the Leader of the Council.  The report had been clear on 
the proposed loss of the tree as part of the improvement scheme and there had been 
representations from the Federation for the Disabled on the dangers of the tree, and 
the need for it to be felled had been made clear at the public meeting on the scheme.  
He supported the proposed amendment and hoped that an alternative solution could 
be found. 

 
101.9 Councillor Phillips stated that as a member of the Transport Committee she had 

received representations on aspects of the proposed scheme but not about the felling 
of the tree.  However, she recognised that there was a large amount of support for the 
tree and that this should be taken into account and welcomed the opportunity to give 
the matter further consideration. 

 
101.10 Councillor Mitchell noted that the consultation process reported to the Transport 

Committee in January had not been approved by the committee in the first instance. 
 
101.11 Councillor Hawtree stated that he had recently spent some time at the request of the 

Federation for the Disabled going around the Seven Dials area blindfolded and with a 
guide dog, for which he had tremendous regard.  It had been an illuminating 
experience and one which highlighted the dangers faced by disabled people in the 
area, albeit that he passed the tree unscathed. 

 
101.12 Councillor C. Theobald stated that the elm tree had been saved in past from proposals 

to fell it and she believed that it should remain in situ.  She noted that the improvement 
scheme did include additional planting of trees but did not think that it should be as a 
replacement to the felling of the elm tree. 

 
101.13 Councillor Peltzer Dunn noted the concerns raised by the Federation for Disabled in 

regard to the dangers in and around the Seven Dials area and felt that these and the 
concerns over the tree should have been accounted for before the improvement 
scheme was agreed.  He also noted that the city held the national elm collection and 
stated that this needed to be protected and therefore an alternative scheme should be 
considered. 

 
101.14 Councillor Mears stated that it appeared from the level of support for the tree that the 

consultation process had not made it clear that the tree would be lost and welcomed 
the opportunity for further consideration by the committee in April. 

 

19



L 

 
 

COUNCIL 28 MARCH 2013 

101.15 The Mayor noted that Councillor Kitcat was happy to move to the vote and that an 
amendment had been moved.  He therefore put the recommendations as amended to 
the vote which was carried. 

 
101.16 RESOLVED:  
 

(1) That the petition be referred to the Transport Committee for consideration; and 
 
(2) That officers be requested to prepare a report for the 30th April Transport 

Committee, detailing alternative options for Vernon Terrace and Seven Dials that 
could retain the tree. 

20



 
 

DEPUTATION REFERRED FROM LICENSING COMMITTEE  

One Deputation received: 

 

  Deputation to the Licensing Committee on 14 March 2013 

By residents of Paston Place and members of the Responsible Licensing Initiative 

Subject:  Public Health, road safety & nuisance caused by Licensed taxis in Paston Place, Kemptown  

Problem:Paston Place has two taxi ranks, in addition to other traffic, and is inundated by over-ranking taxis. 

1. Health: This makes it a pollution hotspot where all Defra assessment factors are present and hence legal 

limits are very probably exceeded- unfortunately measuring has been refused. The city´s Senior 

Technical Engineer states in the 2011 AQAP that air pollution is the biggest factor affecting our health. 

The city´s latest health survey shows a difference in life expectancy between the city centre and the 

outside, e.g. along the no. 7 bus route life expectancy decreases by as much as 10 years. There is a clear 

and compelling link and we are very worried about our health and that of our children. 

2. Road safety: In addition the over-ranking taxis create road safety hazards for local residents and the 

wider public as the taxis do not adhere to any road traffic regulations but rather operate as if Paston 

Place were the Wild West. 

3. Nuisance: Drivers do not conduct themselves according to their code of conduct, instead they are 

 abusive, anti-social and threatening to residents. 

4. Noise pollution: Taxis, especially London cabs and wheelchair accessible vans, make constant noise 

whilst engine is running during waiting on rank and over-ranking directly outside residential dwellings.  

Request: 

1. Relating to rank location: 

        Move rank 2 away from residential dwellings into a safe distance (back to original place or hospital) and 

        Reconsider location of rank 1 on a hill climb due to its detrimental effect on emissions (downhill better)  

2.  Relating to taxi management: 

Effective enforcement of the bye laws and elimination of the over-ranking problem and its  

consequences for road safety, health & the right to enjoyment of our properties 

Capping taxi licences and operating a licensing strategy that is responsible to the residents, the taxi 

trade and the wider public. Capping would protect local residents´ health and road safety, give drivers a 

realistic chance of making a living and protect other drivers and pedestrians using Paston Place.  

3. Relating to air quality: 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

30 April 2013 

Agenda Item 73 (c) 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

21



Introduce a no idling policy as a major measure to improve the air in Paston Place and across town for 

the wider public by utilizing the legislative measures available to AQMA´s and widely used in UK. 

Paston Place are happy to act as a pilot for this new policy. 

Introduce RET to monitor taxi fleet, who are a big polluter, again by utilizing this extra legislative 

measure available to AQMA´s. Paston Place is happy to also  act as a pilot for this new policy. 

Introduce instant fines for double yellow lines used by taxis in Paston Place 

We are aware of budget constraints and have proposed mostly self-financing solutions based on research 

into other councils´ approaches  and are happy to facilitate further research, surveys or other help in order 

to make this affordable and cost-effective. We are also happy to collect data such as logs and photographic 

evidence so bye law contraventions can be followed up and prosecuted cost-effectively. 

 

Problems: road safety, air & noise pollution and nuisance 

Paston Place has to accommodate different types of traffic:  it is used as a „car park“ for hospital patients, 

visitors and staff; three bus routes; visitors to church, church community centre and nursery, nursing home;  a 

over-proportionate number of disabled car parking spaces (7) – there are 30 around hospital and area-, visitors 

to Sam´s restaurant and in the evening to the Cabaret. This in addition to residential parking. Paston Place, 

btw. Eastern Rd and St. George´s, is a narrow and short street. This already makes it a busy street.  

In addition it has two taxi ranks. Rank 1 has 6 spaces, rank 2 has 2 spaces. Linking them is a little lane, the 

entrance of which is also filled up. So that both ranks have 9 taxis. Although Marine Parade has a taxi rank only 

two minutes away, it is always empty. Paston Place has taxis over-ranking, often the entire street between 

Eastern Rd and St George´s St can become one big rank. Often in addition to 9 taxis on the ranks, up to a 

further 8 taxis are over-ranking on double yellow lines, disabled spaces, car pool spaces, car park spaces, in the 

middle of Paston Place or obstructing the adjacent street exits from Sudeley St, Sudeley Terrace and Church 

Street – usually with their motors running. Sometimes it is like a beehive, sometimes very long waiting times. 

Road safety concerns: They obstruct other traffic, such as cars, disabled people, buses. Delivery vans for local 

residents cannot use dbl yellow lines. Rubbish cannot be collected as they do not make way for the vehicle 

(residents´complaints lodged with council). They do not have any consideration for any other traffic. They have 

established an unofficial ´over-ranking order´  snaking uphill until they reach the official rank. They often 

reverse backwards in the one way street seriously endangering oncoming traffic. They are a danger for the 

road safety of the wider public and the local residents. A residents´ little girl (no 6) was almost knocked over by 

a over-ranking taxi in front of her house. Taxis ´own´ our street. 

Nuisance:Disabled residents cannot have deliveries as all spaces and yellow lines are taken. Visitors and 

residents cannot park when taxis occupy normal parking spaces/disabled bay.  Residents requesting the taxi 

drivers to switch off their motors are verbally abused. One taxi parked unlawfully on the disabled space 

outside no.13, calling me a ´bitch´ in the presence of my daughter when I politely requested him to switch off 

his engine. Another resident has his visitors casually insulted by over-ranking drivers chatting in front of his 

house about them (no 6). Recentlywe were threatened that all Brighton taxis would come to Paston Place 

unless we drop the matter. A threat previously used on another  resident (no 11). Over the years numerous 

complaints relating to drivers´ rude, anti-social and threatening conduct have been placed by various residents 

and relating to various matters. Some drivers behave like the mafia.  

Noise pollution: Hackney Carriage „London cabs“ and the now increasing number of wheelchair accessible big 

vans create a lot of noise pollution, vibration and further increased air pollution. The taxis also constantly honk 

to indicate other drivers to move up or other cars need to honk to make the obstructing taxis move. 

22



Air pollution &Health concerns: Eastern St emissions are measured and exceed legal limits. Exceeding 

emissions there are mostly caused by mass & tally. The measurement is taken opposite the Barry building,  

adjacent to taxi rank 1. Taxi emissions would significantly contribute to the ambient pollution levels taken 

there. Most pollution in Brighton is not caused by mass & tally, but by other factors (Defra assessment 

factors).  Paston Place has all these detrimental factors present and will therefore also exceed legal limits.   

The taxis either idle with running motors or stop/start, both on the rank and whilst over-ranking – throughout 

the day, evening and night. They constantly move small distances uphill from space to space. This is the 

pattern of ultra urban traffic, producing very high emissions. Especially as the London cabs and the wheelchair 

accessible vans are very high emission due to their weight. At ultra urban traffic eco features, if existing, are 

not effective. Paston Place is a narrow street with less than 15m (8,60 kerb to kerb), has a gradient, so every 

taxi movement uphill requires extra propulsion which results in highest emissions. The taxis come from around 

corners, which results in higher emissions from acceleration. The council has no data on the eco-fitting or 

engine types of their fleet. Although vehicles are commercial and high-mileage, no commercial nuisance 

legislation seems to be applied to the pollution they cause  and emission testing is limited to MOT. Taxi rank 2 

is at a distance of less than 5m (3,60m) immediately outside residential dwellings with basement flats (no 9 

and 10), who are being ´gassed´, as there is no room for dispersion, especially in cold winter weather. 

Sometimes the rank is extended to no. 13 and taxis occupy both normal spaces and the disabled space behind 

the rank. This creates a funnel effect and causes the highest health impact on those residents. The same is 

constantly the case outside no 5 and6, no 17 and the nursing home.  Our health is constantly exposed to the 

highest emissions of sometimes 17 taxis´ simultaneous  running motors. In 2011 a log was handed in with a 

resident (no 6) counting 300 over-ranking taxis outside her house in one day. In February I handed in a log to 

the HCO with 69 ultra urban movements of over-ranking taxis within 3 h and waiting times of average 18 min. 

over-ranking  and altogether almost an hour to get a fare per taxi – mostly with simultaneous running motors 

of the 15 plus taxis. Further logs and photos/videos in evidence of all of the above are available on request and 

a facebook page and youtube channel are under construction.   

Enforcement: 

When alerting the council to the problem, the Environmental Dept. ignored the aggravating factors and 

responded with a generic statement, rather than applying the Defra factors and assessing the problem. When 

we requested pollution monitoring in order to assess the extent of the problem, we were refused. No serious 

efforts have been made by HCO to enforce the problem, although over-ranking is against the bye laws and a 

criminal offence. NSL shy away from even enforcing enforcable offences (e.g. parking on disabled space)for 

fear of abuse from the taxi drivers. Since requesting proper enforcement, it has been noticed that officers 

target the street only when it is empty, but  avoid the street when the problem is present and actively walk 

away when taxis start over-ranking. We fear misrepresenting data is being compiled to cover their inaction.  

Cllr Mitchell has looked at the taxi problem in situ and has witnessed it at first hand.  

Possible Solutions and some that other councils have applied: 

1. Utilize current legislation: current legislation allows for max 500GBP fine for issues relating to drivers´ 

conduct and bye law contravention is a serious conduct issue/criminal (self-financing enforcement) 

2. Introduce a update for fining bye law contravention, i.e. update original fine of 1GBP in 1875 to equivalent 

amount today, e.g. 500GBP? (see Galway introduced an entire taxi bill to tackle problem) 

3. Establish a points system until licence is withdrawn ( points for running motor, offensive conduct, 

obstruction etc. see www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/LIC_Conditions_of_Licence_and_Enforcement.pdf  

This needs to be adapted to the needs of Brighton and focus on over-ranking, conduct, road safety, idling 

motors, double yellow lines, eco measures such as optimum air in tyre etc.  HCO would be able to utilize 

residents´ complaints and photographic evidence– this seems most promising and cost-effective 

23



4. If Taxi fleet keeps contravening bye laws and is not co-operating, then Increase licence fee to fund 

necessary enforcement (self-financing)  

5. Utilize AQAM legislation provision: introduce fixed fine for idling motors and RET (self-financing);  

changeTMR/TRO and make double yellow lines in street an instant fine (self-financing enforcement) then 

install quick escalation scheme to prosecution at court (1 warning, then final warning with hearing: if no 

aggravating factors then caution, if aggravating factors such as obstructing traffic, running motor, last 

warning in less than 6 months, no promise that bye laws will be followed, then prosecution  of bye law 

contravention.  Three pronged enforcement (police, parking, taxi office) over extended periods of time 

until resistance broken. (see  www.plymouth.gov.uk/failing_to_proceed_guidance_note.pdf). Taxi office 

happy to inform about approach but requires really pro-active and astute enforcement staff )   

If the council cannot protect the local residents and the wider public and effectively enforce, then the 

rank needs to be removed, especially considering that a rank should never be in a hill climb position due 

to its higher emissions and detrimental AQ and health effects.    

24



 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 
 

3.00PM 14 MARCH 2013 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Duncan (Chair), Deane (Deputy Chair), Cobb (Opposition 
Spokesperson), Lepper (Opposition Spokesperson), Gilbey, Hamilton, Hawtree, Hyde, 
Jones, Marsh, Pidgeon, Rufus, Simson, C Theobald and Wakefield 
 
Apologies: Councillor: Buckley 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

24c Deputations 
 
24.3 The Committee received a Deputation from Mrs Krachen-Lashbrook in the following 

terms:  
 

Subject : Public Health, road safety & nuisance caused by Licensed taxis in Paston 
Place, Kemptown 

 
Problem:Paston Place has two taxi ranks, in addition to other traffic, and is inundated by 
over-ranking taxis. 
 
Public Health: This makes it a pollution hotspot where all Defra assessment factors are 
present and hence legal limits are very probably exceeded- unfortunately measuring has 
been refused. The city´s Senior Technical Engineer states in the 2011 AQAP that air 
pollution is the biggest factor affecting our health. The city´s latest health survey shows 
a difference in life expectancy between the city centre and the outside, e.g. along the 
no. 7 bus route life expectancy decreases by as much as 10 years. There is a clear and 
compelling link and we are very worried about our health and that of our children. 
 
Road safety: In addition the over-ranking taxis create road safety hazards for local 
residents and the wider public as the taxis do not adhere to any road traffic regulations 
but rather operate as if Paston Place were the Wild West. 
 
Nuisance: Drivers do not conduct themselves according to their code of conduct, 
instead they are abusive, anti-social and threatening to residents.Noise pollution: Taxis, 
espec:ially London cabs and wheelchair accessible vans, make constant noise whilst 
engine is running during waiting on rank and over-ranking directly outside residential 
dwellings.  

 

25



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 
 

14 MARCH 2013 

By residents of Paston Place and members of the Responsible Licensing Initiative 
 

Request : 
 
Relating to Rank Location: 
 
Move rank 2 away from residential dwellings into a safe distance (back to original place or 
hospital) and Reconsider location of rank 1 on a hill climb due to its detrimental effect on 
emissions (downhill better) 
 
Relating to Taxi Management : 
 
Effective enforcement of the bye laws and elimination of the over-ranking problem and its 
consequences for road safety, health & the right to enjoyment of our properties 
 
Capping taxi licences and operating a licensing strategy that is responsible to the residents, 
the taxi trade and the wider public. Capping would protect local residents´ health and road 
safety, give drivers a realistic chance of making a living and protect other drivers and 
pedestrians using Paston Place.  
 
Relating to Air Quality: 
 
Introduce a no Idling Policy:  

 
as a major measure to improve the air in Paston Place and across town for the wider public 
by utilizing the legislative measures available to AQMA´s and widely used in UK. Paston 
Place are happy to act as a pilot for this new policy. 

 
Introduce RET to monitor taxi fleet, who are a big polluter, again by utilizing this extra 
legislative measure available to AQMA´s. Paston Place is happy to also  act as a pilot for 
this new policy.Introduce instant fines for double yellow lines used by taxis in Paston Place 
 
We are aware of budget constraints and have proposed mostly self-financing solutions 
based on research into other councils´ approaches  and are happy to facilitate further 
research, surveys or other help in order to make this affordable and cost-effective. We are 
also happy to collect data such as logs and photographic evidence so bye law 
contraventions can be followed up and prosecuted cost-effectively. 
 
Problems: Road Safety, Air & Noise Pollution and Nuisance: 
 
Paston Place has to accommodate different types of traffic: it is used as a „car park“ for 
hospital patients, visitors and staff; three bus routes; visitors to church, church community 
centre and nursery, nursing home; a over-proportionate number of disabled car parking 
spaces (7) – there are 30 around hospital and area- visitors to Sam´s restaurant and in the 
evening to the Cabaret. This in addition to residential parking. Paston Place, btw. Eastern 
Rd and St. George´s, is a narrow and short street. This already makes it a busy street. In 
addition it has two taxi ranks. Rank 1 has 6 spaces, rank 2 has 2 spaces. Linking them is a 
little lane, the entrance of which is also filled up. So that both ranks have 9 taxis. Although 
Marine Parade has a taxi rank only two minutes away, it is always empty. Paston Place has 
taxis over-ranking, often the entire street between Eastern Rd and St George´s St can 

26



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 
 

14 MARCH 2013 

become one big rank. Often in addition to 9 taxis on the ranks, up to a further 8 taxis are 
over-ranking on double yellow lines, disabled spaces, car pool spaces, car park spaces, in 
the middle of Paston Place or obstructing the adjacent street exits from Sudeley St, Sudeley 
Terrace and Church Street – usually with their motors running. Sometimes it is like a 
beehive, sometimes very long waiting times. 
 
Road Safety Concerns: 
 
They obstruct other traffic, such as cars, disabled people, buses. Delivery vans for local 
residents cannot use dbl yellow lines. Rubbish cannot be collected as they do not make way 
for the vehicle (residents´complaints lodged with council). They do not have any 
consideration for any other traffic. They have established an unofficial ´over-ranking order´  
snaking uphill until they reach the official rank. They often reverse backwards in the one way 
street seriously endangering oncoming traffic. They are a danger for the road safety of the 
wider public and the local residents. A residents´ little girl (no 6) was almost knocked over by 
a over-ranking taxi in front of her house. Taxis ´own´ our street. 
 
Nuisance: 
 
Disabled residents cannot have deliveries as all spaces and yellow lines are taken. Visitors 
and residents cannot park when taxis occupy normal parking spaces/disabled bay. 
Residents requesting the taxi drivers to switch off their motors are verbally abused. One taxi 
parked unlawfully on the disabled space outside no.13, calling me a ´bitch´ in the presence 
of my daughter when I politely requested him to switch off his engine. Another resident has 
his visitors casually insulted by over-ranking drivers chatting in front of his house about them 
(no 6). Recentlywe were threatened that all Brighton taxis wouldcome to Paston Place 
unless we drop the matter. A threat previously used on another  resident (no 11). Over the 
years numerous complaints relating to drivers´ rude, anti-social and threatening conduct 
have been placed by various residents and relating to various matters. Some drivers behave 
like the mafia.  
 
Noise Pollution:  
 
Hackney Carriage „London cabs“ and the now increasing number of wheelchair accessible 
big vans create a lot of noise pollution, vibration and further increased air pollution. The taxis 
also constantly honk to indicate other drivers to move up or other cars need to honk to make 
the obstructing taxis move. 
 
Air Pollution &Health concerns:  
 
Eastern St emissions are measured and exceed legal limits. Exceeding emissions there are 
mostly caused by mass & tally. The measurement is taken opposite the Barry building,  
adjacent to taxi rank 1. Taxi emissions would significantly contribute to the ambient pollution 
levels taken there. Most pollution in Brighton is not caused by mass & tally, but by other 
factors (Defra assessment factors).  Paston Place has all these detrimental factors present 
and will therefore also exceed legal limits. The taxis either idle with running motors or 
stop/start, both on the rank and whilst over-ranking – throughout the day, evening and night. 
They constantly move small distances uphill from space to space. This is the pattern of ultra 
urban traffic, producing very high emissions. Especially as the London cabs and the 
wheelchair accessible vans are very high emission due to their weight. At ultra urban traffic 

27



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 
 

14 MARCH 2013 

eco features, if existing, are not effective. Paston Place is a narrow street with less than 15m 
(8,60 kerb to kerb), has a gradient, so every taxi movement uphill requires extra propulsion 
which results in highest emissions. The taxis come from around corners, which results in 
higher emissions from acceleration. The council has no data on the eco-fitting or engine 
types of their fleet. Although vehicles are commercial and high-mileage, no commercial 
nuisance legislation seems to be applied to the pollution they cause  and emission testing is 
limited to MOT. Taxi rank 2 is at a distance of less than 5m (3,60m) immediately outside 
residential dwellings with basement flats (no 9 and 10), who are being ´gassed´, as there is 
no room for dispersion, especially in cold winter weather. Sometimes the rank is extended to 
no. 13 and taxis occupy both normal spaces and the disabled space behind the rank. This 
creates a funnel effect and causes the highest health impact on those residents. The same 
is constantly the case outside no 5 and6, no 17 and the nursing home.  Our health is 
constantly exposed to the highest emissions of sometimes 17 taxis´ simultaneous  running 
motors. In 2011 a log was handed in with a resident (no 6) counting 300 over-ranking taxis 
outside her house in one day. In February I handed in a log to the HCO with 69 ultra urban 
movements of over-ranking taxis within 3 h and waiting times of average 18 min. over-
ranking  and altogether almost an hour to get a fare per taxi – mostly with simultaneous 
running motors of the 15 plus taxis. Further logs and photos/videos in evidence of all of the 
above are available on request and a facebook page and youtube channel are under 
construction.  

 
Enforcement: 

 
When alerting the council to the problem, the Environmental Dept. ignored the aggravating 
factors and responded with a generic statement, rather than applying the Defra factors and 
assessing the problem. When we requested pollution monitoring in order to assess the 
extent of the problem, we were refused. No serious efforts have been made by HCO to 
enforce the problem, although over-ranking is against the bye laws and a criminal offence. 
NSL shy away from even enforcing enforcable offences (e.g. parking on disabled space)for 
fear of abuse from the taxi drivers. Since requesting proper enforcement, it hasbeen noticed 
that officers target the street only when it is empty, but  avoid the street when the problem is 
present and actively walk away when taxis start over-ranking. We fear misrepresenting data 
is being compiled to cover their inaction. Cllr Mitchell has looked at the taxi problem in situ 
and has witnessed it at first hand.  
 
Possible Solutions and Some That Other Councils Have Applied: 
 
Utilize current legislation allows for max 500GBP fine for issues relating to drivers´ conduct 
and bye law contravention is a serious conduct issue/criminal (self-financing enforcement) 
 
Introduce a update for fining bye law contravention, i.e. update original fine of 1GBP in 1875 
to equivalent amount today, e.g. 500GBP? (see Galway introduced an entire taxi bill to 
tackle problem)Establish a points system until licence is withdrawn ( points for running 
motor, offensive conduct, obstruction etc. see 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/LIC_Conditions_of_Licence_and_Enforcement.pdf  This 
needs to be adapted to the needs of Brighton and focus on over-ranking, conduct, road 
safety, idling motors, double yellow lines, eco measures such as optimum air in tyre etc. 
HCO would be able to utilize residents´ complaints and photographic evidence– this seems 
most promising and cost-effectiveIf Taxi fleet keeps contravening bye laws and is not co-
operating, then Increase licence fee to fund necessary enforcement (self-financing) Utilize 

28



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 
 

14 MARCH 2013 

AQAM legislation provision: introduce fixed fine for idling motors and RET (self-financing);  
changeTMR/TRO and make double yellow lines in street an instant fine (self-financing 
enforcement) then install quick escalation scheme to prosecution at court (1 warning, then 
final warning with hearing: if no aggravating factors then caution, if aggravating factors such 
as obstructing traffic, running motor, last warning in less than 6 months, no promise that bye 
laws will be followed, then prosecution  of bye law contravention.  Three pronged 
enforcement (police, parking, taxi office) over extended periods of time until resistance 
broken.  
(see  www.plymouth.gov.uk/failing_to_proceed_guidance_note.pdf). Taxi office happy to 
inform about approach but requires really pro-active and astute enforcement staff ) 
 
If the council cannot protect the local residents and the wider public and effectively enforce, 
then the rank needs to be removed, especially considering that a rank should never be in a 
hill climb position due to its higher emissions and detrimental AQ and health effects.“ 
 

24.4 Ms Krachen-Lashbrook spoke to her petition and drew out the main points from it stating 
that in her view and that of her fellow deputees the current position was that residents 
were suffering at the hands of members of the licensed taxi trade and this was totally 
unacceptable, action needed to be taken to remedy the situation immediately as the 
current abuses had gone on for far too long. 

 
24.5 Councillor Duncan, the Chair stated that as the matters raised related primarily to 

matters which fell within the remit of another Committee he did not consider that it would 
be appropriate for his Committee to consider the Deputation further. Following 
discussion it was considered that it would be appropriate to refer the Deputation on to 
the next meeting of the Transport Committee as it was that Committee which had 
authority over proposed traffic orders whilst this Committee did not. Any report dealing 
with rank appointment would require traffic orders to be made and should therefore in 
his view go forward for consideration by that Committee. The Chair stated that in his 
view before any determination of the matter, a full equality impact assessment and 
consultation with stakeholders would be essential. 

 
24.6 It was confirmed by the Head of Regulatory Services, Planning and Public Protection 

that as the Licensing Committee was responsible for discharging the Council’s functions 
for licensing and registration functions, that did include taxi driver behaviour. Councillor 
Lepper stated that the behaviour referred to was inappropriate and considered that the 
matter needed to be investigated further and that it would be appropriate for a report 
detailing the outcome of those investigations to come back to the next scheduled 
meeting of the Committee on 27 June. In the meantime she considered it would be 
appropriate for the taxi drivers’ trade association to be made aware of this issue. Other 
Members of the Committee were in agreement. 

 
24.7 It was explained that details of the Deputation would be provided to the Clerk to the 

Transport Committee who would then contact Ms Krachen-Lashbrook separately in 
relation to consideration of this matter at that Committee. 

 
24.8 RESOLVED – That the Deputation be noted and referred forward to the next available 

meeting of the Transport Committee. A separate report relating to taxi driver behaviour 
in relation to the rank referred to to be brought back to the next scheduled meeting of 
the Licensing Committee (Non Licensing Act 2003 Functions) on 27 June 2013. 

29



30



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE                                            AGENDA ITEM 74(C) 
30th April 2013  
 
 
 
John Peel 
Democratic Services Officer 
Brighton & Hove City Council 
 
 
22nd March 2012 
 
 
Dear John, 
 
Taxi ‘over-ranking’ in Paston Place, Kemp Town, Brighton. 
 
Please could this letter be placed on the agenda of the Transport Committee 
for 30th April. 
 
I am following up concerns expressed by residents of Paston Place in respect 
of the taxi congestion and ‘over-ranking’ issues connected with the existing 
taxi rank sited at the top of the road at the junction with Eastern Road. The 
rank is immediately opposite the Royal Sussex County Hospital and adjacent 
to the main Outpatients building. 
 
Taxis queuing to get to places within the rank are routinely occupying other 
parking spaces in Paston Place as well as side streets, waiting on double 
yellow lines and on the corners of junctions.  Residents are complaining about 
the constant revving of engines and exhaust fumes. 
 
I would request that officers from Transport and Licensing work together in 
conjunction with the taxi trade to see what can be done to ameliorate this 
situation.  
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Gill Mitchell 
East Brighton Ward  
 
  

31



32



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 75 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 Subject: Seven Dials Elm Tree – Consideration of Design 
Options 

Date of Meeting: 30th April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing  

Contact Officer: Name: Robin Reed Tel: 293856 

 Email: Robin.reed@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: St Peters & North Laine, Regency, Preston Park, 
Goldsmid 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 A petition objecting to the felling of the Elm tree at Seven Dials signed by 3,237 

people was presented at the Full Council meeting on 28th March 2013.  It was 
resolved at that meeting to refer the petition to the 30th April 2013 Transport 
Committee meeting for officers to present a report detailing possible options for 
incorporating the tree into the Seven Dials improvement scheme.      

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to outline the options for incorporating the Vernon 

Terrace Elm tree into the Seven Dials improvement scheme and to recommend a 
preferred way forward.     

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Transport Committee notes the options for incorporating the Elm tree 

into the Seven Dials scheme and the benefits and disbenefits associated with 
each option.  

 
2.2 That the Transport Committee grants permission for officers to proceed with the 

preferred option for incorporating the Elm Tree, as outlined on the plan at 
Appendix 5.  

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 

Background Information 
 
3.1 A scheme to improve Seven Dials for all users and reduce the high number of 

accidents that take place at the roundabout was approved by Transport 
Committee on 15th January 2013.  This followed an extensive public consultation 
exercise that demonstrated the majority of respondents were in favour of the 
main proposals for the immediate roundabout area.  Proposals to convert Vernon 
Terrace to one-way traffic flow and Bath St to two way traffic flow were not taken 

33



forward due to a lack of public support at that time.  A plan showing the scheme 
approved by committee is included at Appendix1.  

 
3.2 The final scheme plans included notice of the Council’s intention to remove a 

mature Elm tree on the corner of Seven Dials and Vernon Terrace.  This was 
included primarily for road safety reasons to improve visibility to the adjacent 
pedestrian crossing that is currently obscured by the tree – a situation that would 
be potentially exacerbated by the introduction of zebra crossings.  A further 
reason was to improve accessibility by creating a wider pavement as the existing 
pavement width behind the tree is below the desired standard.  While not a 
safety concern in itself, this is not conducive to a high quality pedestrian 
environment and can create difficulty for those with disabilities or pushing 
buggies.  The increasing amount of damage being caused to the surrounding 
road and pavement by the tree’s roots is also a cause for concern.  A technical 
report highlighting the highway issues caused by the tree is included at Appendix 
2.  An arboriculturalist assessment of the tree is included at Appendix 3.  

 
3.3 The Seven Dials scheme was approved by the cross-party Transport Committee 

on 15th January 2013 and a construction programme was drawn up and delivered 
to 7,000 local addresses.  This further highlighted the proposal to remove the 
Elm tree and at this stage it became clear that a considerable level of opposition 
existed in relation to this element of the scheme.  A date for felling the tree was 
set but the works were unable to proceed due to an active protest which involved 
two campaigners scaling the tree to prevent its removal.  The construction 
programme has been amended to allow the rest of the scheme to be delivered 
until a decision is taken on the future of the tree.   

 
Petition 

 
3.4 A petition objecting to the felling of the Elm tree at the Seven Dials signed by 

3,237 people was presented at the Full Council meeting on 28th March 2013.  It 
was resolved at that meeting to refer the petition to the 30th April 2013 Transport 
Committee meeting for officers to present a report detailing possible options for 
incorporating the tree into the Seven Dials scheme.  This report presents those 
options.   

    
Alternative Design Options for Vernon Terrace 

 
3.5 Given the strength of public feeling against felling the tree, it is no longer 

considered a viable option to progress with this option and therefore a range of 
alternative design options for Vernon Terrace have been considered and 
evaluated.  Independent transport planning consultants have been commissioned 
to develop options that would allow the tree to remain while still achieving the 
essential safety and accessibility benefits delivered by the Seven Dials scheme.  
Suggestions from members of the public have also been considered in this 
process.   

 
3.6 The option considered most appropriate from a technical perspective would be to 

convert Vernon Terrace to one-way southbound operation and widen the 
pavement on the southern side to provide a 2 metre footway around the outside 
of the tree.  Under this option, the increase in available space would allow the 
tree to be kept in the middle of a wider footway area on the south side of Vernon 

34



Terrace with the remaining carriageway width being sufficient only for one-way 
southbound traffic flow. 

 
3.7 This option has the advantage of improving visibility between pedestrians and 

vehicles while also addressing the accessibility issues through the introduction of 
the wide pavement on the road-side of the tree.  It is also anticipated that there 
would be an improvement in road safety that could be expected from having one 
less arm of traffic flowing in to Seven Dials. 

 
3.8 It is, however, acknowledged that a variation of this option was strongly rejected 

during the initial public consultation and therefore it is not considered appropriate 
to progress this option.  To do so would require a further period of consultation 
with members of the public and it is considered unlikely that a positive outcome 
would be achieved given the negative response previously.   

 
Preferred Option 

 
3.9 A compromise option has been identified which would provide a satisfactory 

solution to the safety (visibility) issues and also improve the current accessibility 
problems caused by the narrow pavement to some degree.  This option would 
involve narrowing the carriageway width of Vernon Terrace from its current 7.5m 
to around 6.0m thus allowing the southern kerbline to be built out around the tree 
by a maximum of 1.4 metres.  This would still allow for two-way traffic operation 
in Vernon Terrace but would also enable the construction of an additional 
pavement on the road side of the tree, thereby providing an option for 
pedestrians to pass on both sides of the tree rather than being forced to pass 
between the tree and the adjacent wall.  It is envisaged that the new pavement 
width would be in the region of 1 metre although the exact width would be 
dependant on the sub-surface root structure.  While this is below the desired 
standard of 2 metres, the creation of the additional footpath would still represent 
an improvement over the current situation.  The pavement on the opposite side 
of Vernon Terrace is currently 2.1m wide and so would not be reduced as it 
would fall below the desired standard.  

 
3.10 As part of this option, the existing tarmac and sub-soil around the surface root 

system would need to be excavated and under the supervision of a qualified 
arboriculturalist the girdling roots removed from the base of the tree along with 
any other roots responsible for tarmac uplift (providing this does not compromise 
the structural integrity of the tree).  Subject to site conditions, the excavation 
would then be backfilled with a structural soil and a new tarmac surface applied 
to minimise any sudden level changes that could constitute a trip hazard.  Where 
necessary, major roots would be covered with a void forming compressible 
material to allow for future incremental growth.  

 

3.11 The process outlined above is that recommended in the independent 
arboriculturalist report included at Appendix 3 and would allow for a smooth 
pavement surface, free of any trip hazards, to be constructed in the immediate 
vicinity of the tree.   

 
3.12 A technical report considering the various options in more detail is included at 

Appendix 4.  An outline design plan showing the preferred option is included as 
Appendix 5.  

35



 
 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The preferred option identified in paragraph 3.12 is not considered materially 

different from the original scheme approved by Transport Committee on 15th 
January 2013 and it would therefore not be necessary to re-consult with 
members of the public and stakeholders on this option.   

 
4.2 The extensive public consultation exercise undertaken in 2012 demonstrated a 

high level of support the main proposals for the Seven Dials roundabout area.  
Proposals to convert Vernon Terrace to one-way traffic flow and Bath St to two 
way traffic flow were not taken forward due to a lack of public support at that 
time. 

 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The Seven Dials works will be funded from the Local Transport Plan (LTP) 

capital budget. Within the 2012/13 LTP budget £200,000 is set aside for the 
Seven Dials Roundabout Improvement Project. Indicative sums of £300.000 and 
£50,000 are included for the next two years. 

 
5.2 An additional £300,000 has been awarded to the project through the Department 

for Transport Cycle Safety Programme following a successful bid submitted in 
2012.   

 
5.3 It is estimated that changes associated with the preferred option would add a 

further £20,000 to the overall scheme costs.  These costs would need to be 
managed within the overall LTP allocation. 

  
 Finance Officer Consulted:   Jeff Coates Date: 27/03/2013 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.4 In carrying out consultation the Council is under a general duty to ensure that any 

consultation is fair. This means that it must be carried out when proposals are 
being formulated, that adequate time and information about proposals must be 
given to consultees to ensure that they can provide a proper response, and that 
any consultation responses must be properly considered in reaching the 
decision.  This report has been brought to committee to ensure that all relevant 
views have been properly considered before a decision is taken on the way 
forward. 

  
5.5 The Council is under a legal duty as a public authority to consider the human 

rights implications of its actions. Parking and traffic restrictions have the potential 
to affect the right to respect for family and private life and the right to protection of 
property.  These are qualified rights and therefore there can be interference with 
them where this is necessary, proportionate and for a legitimate aim. 

 

36



 
 Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 08/04/2013 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.6 The Seven Dials improvement scheme has been designed in line with industry 

best practice and guidance to ensure all facilities are fully accessible to all 
members of society.  It is not considered that the redesign in line with the 
preferred option would have a material adverse effect on accessibility. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.7 The Seven Dials improvement scheme will assist in meeting One Planet Living 

objectives by promoting and encouraging greater use of sustainable transport, 
and particularly overcome current barriers to walking and cycling.  

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.8 There are no Crime & Disorder implications arising directly as a result of this 

report. 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.9 Longer term risks include the potential for the project costs to exceed the 

available budget and the risk of any identified enhancements having unforeseen 
negative consequences when implemented. The latter risk will be mitigated by a 
careful design and safety audit process in the first instance, and thorough 
consultation with end users.     

 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.10 Increasing the number of pedestrians and cyclists will directly lead to improved 

public health through increasing the use of active modes and therefore the 
amount of exercise undertaken by local people.  Reducing the number of people 
travelling by private vehicle will also lead to an improvement in air quality which 
in turn will improve public health.   

 
5.11 Reducing the number of people killed or seriously injured in accidents involving 

road traffic presents an obvious improvement in public health.  
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.12 There are no citywide implications arising directly from this report.    
 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 A range of alternative options have been considered in this report and a 

preferred option has been identified.        
 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

37



7.1 To consider the options available for incorporating the Vernon Terrace Elm tree 
into the Seven Dials improvement scheme.  

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 

1. Seven Dials Improvement Scheme plan (as approved by Transport Committee) 
2. Technical report highlighting the problems caused by the presence of the Elm 

tree  
3. Arboriculturalist assessment of the Elm tree 
4. Technical report - Redesign Options  
5. Vernon Terrace Preferred Option - Outline design plan 

 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 
 

38



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 L

a
y
o

u
t 

P
la

n
 

39



40



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 

41



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



Appendix 3 
 

 

 

 

 

Kingston Barn 15 St Julian’s Lane Kingston Buci West Sussex BN43 6EH 

 

Office:- 01273 597796 Mobile:- 07512 346919 

E.Mail:- david@davidarcher.co.uk Web: www.daa-arboriculture.co.uk 

 

 

 

 

AN ARBORICULTURAL ASSESSMENT 

OF A WHEATLEY ELM AT 

MONTPELIER CRESCENT, BRIGHTON 

 

 

Client:- Brighton & Hove City Council 

Report prepared by:- David Archer M.Arbor.A.  

Date:- March 2013 

45



Appendix 3 
 

 

 

 

 

Kingston Barn 15 St Julian’s Lane Kingston Buci West Sussex BN43 6EH 

 

Office:- 01273 597796 Mobile:- 07512 346919 

E.Mail:- david@davidarcher.co.uk Web: www.daa-arboriculture.co.uk 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 

 

 

INSTRUCTION   Page 1 

THE SITE    Page 1 

THE TREE    Page 1 

ASSESSMENTS   Page 2 

DISCUSSION    Page 4 

CONCLUSIONS   Page 6 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDICES:-  

   1) TEMPO ASSESSMENT 

2) DRAFT METHODOLOGY

46



 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

INSTRUCTIONS 

I have been instructed by Mr R. Greenland, Arboricultural Manager for Brighton & Hove 

City Council, in an email of the 8
th

 March 2013.  

I am asked to report on a Wheatley Elm in Montpelier Crescent, Brighton and in particular I 

am asked to assess:- 

a) The tree’s visual amenity value to the local scene. 

b) A visual assessment of age, health condition and defects, if any. 

c) Estimated useful longevity. 

d) Effect on highway infrastructure. 

e) Effect on the fabric of adjacent residences/business accommodation. 

f) Possible solutions for rectifying damage to the highway infrastructure. 

 

THE SITE 

I visited the site on the morning of 11
th

 March 2013; weather at the time was cold and 

overcast with light snow showers. The tree was inspected from the ground only, it was not 

climbed and no internal investigations were carried out, thus no guarantee can be given as to 

its structural integrity. The site is immediately adjacent to Seven Dials, a busy 

roundabout/road junction with seven roads meeting there. The tree is situated in the pavement 

outside 38 Montpelier Crescent, an early to mid 19
th

- century four storey terraced property 

built of stucco in the Italianate style. The house lies within the Montpelier and Clifton Hill 

Conservation Area and is listed by English Heritage as a Grade 2 building. The house is 

fronted by a small basement forecourt with a low brick boundary wall topped by iron railings; 

access to the pavement is made through two iron gates, now hanging off their hinges.   

The pavement is predominantly tarmac and edged with large granite kerbstones. At 9m to the 

south of the tree is a Pelican crossing; metal railings along the kerbline cover the approach to 

the crossing and come to 0.5m either side of the trunk.   

 

THE TREE 

The tree is a Jersey or Wheatley Elm (Ulmus minor var. sarniensis), it has a height of 19m 

and a trunk diameter at 1.5m high of 830mm, making this the tallest street tree in the local 

landscape.  The average crown radius is 4.5m, although this is reduced to 3.0m on the east 

side; it has a crown clearance above the highway of 7m. 

47



 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

I did not find any significant visible structural defects in the tree other than a small area of 

bark damage to the base of the trunk on the north side. It has a form and structure typical for 

its species and age and has had its crown reduced all over within the last 2-3 years. On the 

trunk there is evidence of a number of old pruning wounds, which are now fully occluded. On 

the west side of the trunk extending from 3m to 4.5m high is a depressed area approx 60mm 

deep and 100mm wide. The cause of this is not evident and may be the result of an historic 

event. At the base of the trunk are a number of small girdling roots exhibiting surface damage 

and loss of bark from the passage of pedestrian traffic. 

The measured gap between the trunk at 0.5m high and the wall of 38 Montpelier Crescent is 

1.38m. Where the pavement abuts the base of the tree the tarmac has been cut away 

effectively reducing the usable pavement width to 0.95 m.  At the time of inspection it was 

evident that this is sufficient for one way passage by pedestrians but not two way; pedestrians 

meeting at this point often have to give way to each other, particularly so for parents with 

push chairs 

There is a small bird box attached to the trunk at 3.5m high on the north side, along with a 

large net and canvas structure chained to the centre of the crown.  There are a large number 

of informal posters and cardboard notices attached by pins and string to the lower trunk.  

Brighton & Hove City Council is the holder of the National Plant Collection for Elms with 66 

national champions within the collection distributed throughout the city. This is not only a 

nationally important collection but of European and World importance as it holds the largest 

and most diverse collection of the genus ‘Ulmus’ to be found in the Northern Hemisphere. 

The City is responsible for maintaining in excess of 19,000 Elms within its streets and parks; 

of these approx 1,400 are Wheatley Elms. (Rob Greenland – Pers Comm.) 

 

ASSESSMENTS 

A) To determine the visual amenity value of the tree to the local scene I carried out a 

TEMPO analysis.  This is an accepted method within the arboricultural profession for 

assessing the amenity value of a tree and is widely used by many Local Authorities to 

determine the suitability of a tree for inclusion within a Tree Preservation Order 

(TPO). Copies of this methodology and of the scores applied to the tree under 

consideration in this case, are attached as Appendix 1 at the end of this report.  

B) This analysis gives the tree a score of 17 points out of a possible maximum of 25 

which means that the tree would definitely merit a TPO if it was in private ownership; 

however, as it is in public ownership then a TPO would not apply as the Secretary of 

State for Environment has ruled that trees within ownership of a Local Authority 

should not have a TPO placed upon them. 

48



 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

Applying the guidance and assessment methodology set out in the British Standard 

BS 5837 (2012) (Trees in relation to demolition, design and construction), I consider 

that this tree would warrant a ‘Category A’ rating if its suitability for retention were 

being considered in the context of a proposed development which might affect it.  BS 

5837 states that for trees to meet ‘Category A’ they should be “Trees that are 

particularly good examples of their species, especially if rare or unusual ...”; they 

should also have “an estimated remaining life expectancy of at least 40 years” 

C) From my inspection it was evident that there are few if any serious visible structural 

defects in the tree; however, I am informed that a neighbouring tree felled within the 

last 3-4 years showed extensive internal decay within the base of the trunk (Neil 

Brothers – Arboriculturist for BHCC – pers comm.).  

An accurate estimate of the tree’s age is difficult to determine without carrying out 

invasive tests, but on the basis of its trunk diameter, appearance and assumed 

management history I estimate that it is approx 120 - 150 yrs old. 

D) The tree’s useful longevity is somewhat difficult to determine in these circumstances 

due to the potential for trees of this species to succumb suddenly to infection by 

Dutch Elm Disease (DED); however, if one discounts this possibility, then I would 

expect the tree to have at the very least a useful life expectancy in excess of 40 years.  

E) The effect of the tree on the highway infrastructure is limited to one of root uplift and 

direct pressure from the buttresses of the trunk. The granite kerb stones immediately 

adjacent to the trunk are significantly uplifted, along with a small area of tarmac 

within the road edge. No other damage to the surface of the carriageway was 

observed. 

Along the pavement either side of the tree are areas of tarmac uplift that extend for 

3m to the north and 8m to the south. A small area of uplifted tarmac in the pavement 

immediately adjacent to the trunk has been cut away by the highway authorities. The 

pattern of damage in the pavement surface clearly shows that roots from this tree are 

the primary cause although the extent and size of the particular roots responsible can 

only be discerned by direct excavation. In my opinion, none of the observed uplifts 

within the pavement surface are serious enough to constitute a trip hazard. 

F) I observed no damage to the adjoining boundary wall and structure of No 38 

Montpelier Crescent that could be attributed to this tree, and I have not been informed 

of any claims made to the City Council to this effect. 

 

 

 

49



 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

DISCUSSION 

It is evident that the integrity of the roadway edge and pavement structures is steadily 

failing and the potential for further damage and the creation of a trip hazard will 

increase with time and continuing growth of the tree. The recent crown reduction will 

slow the incremental growth in trunk diameter but this will steadily increase again as 

the crown regains its former size.  If the present pruning regime is maintained there 

will be a periodic increase and diminishment in the rate of annual trunk increment in 

direct relation to the pruning cycle.  

From an examination of other trees of the same species and of similar size in the 

surrounding streets, it is evident that this is a common problem for the City Council 

and has been dealt with in a number of ways. The most common is to make localised 

repairs to any pavement or kerb damage, and to make extensive use of tarmac to 

repair the failures in the existing pavements. Where roots have created significant 

uplift, tarmac is used to alter the levels in the approach to the area of uplift, or the 

roots responsible are excavated and completely removed. The pavement surface is re-

instated with either the original paving slabs, or replaced with tarmac. 

I am informed that in extreme cases the tree is felled and the stump removed with a 

replacement tree planted on or nearby the site (Rob Greenland – Pers Comm.). Given 

the high amenity value and prominent position of the Elm in Montpelier Crescent, and 

the limited extent of damage caused, I do not consider this to be an appropriate 

solution in this case; however, there may be other issues that could influence this 

decision but outside the remit of this report..  

There are a number of solutions that take a similar approach to that already used by 

the City Council although these might not address the problem of the confined space 

between the Elm and wall of the adjoining property in this particular case. Drainage 

of storm water from the pavement and carriageway would also be a significant 

consideration in any design solution. 

A solution often used in the USA is to construct a new section of engineered 

pavement or road surface elevated over the existing surface. This has the benefit of 

providing space for the tree and its root system allowing it to continue to develop and 

grow, whilst maintaining a suitable surface for pedestrians and traffic. However, this 

requires a reasonable amount of space to accommodate the changes in levels and 

support structures; this is not available at Montpelier Crescent. 

An alternative method adopted by Councils elsewhere in Britain and the USA is to 

excavate the soil from around the surface root system of the tree; to prune those roots 

deemed to be the cause of the problem, and then backfill the voids with an engineered 

soil mix such as ‘CU – Stuctural Soil
tm’ 

or use a modular, pre-engineered cell system, 

such as ‘Silva-Cell
tm’

 that has been designed specifically to meet the need of water 

50



 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

management, soil and tree roots. The benefit of this system is that it provides an 

alternative rooting environment for the tree thus reducing the need for roots to exploit 

the sub-soil/pavement interface and thereby causing further damage and uplift to the 

pavement surface. A primary requirement for this is the availability of sufficient 

rooting volume beneath the pavement surface which would need to be excavated to 

allow installation of the soil mix or cell system. Installation would require sufficient 

space between individual roots and beneath the existing root system; this could be 

problematic where, as in this case, there is an overriding imperative to retain as many 

of the existing roots as possible to ensure adequate moisture and nutrient uptake and 

for the tree’s stability.   The size of the rooting area capable of being treated in this 

way is limited by the availability of working space, the presence of underground 

services and the project budget.  

A recent excavation for the contractor’s compound at the end of Montpelier Crescent 

Park showed that the chalk sub-soil was very close to the surface there.  Whether this 

is also the case around the Elm under consideration can only be positively determined 

by an exploratory excavation, but it would appear likely to be so, suggesting that  

available rooting volume may be limited by this factor.  

A solution that is more widely adopted by many types of Council is to deal with the 

symptoms but not necessarily the cause by covering over the cracks and uplifts in the 

pavement surface by laying additional tarmac over the existing surface or re-laying 

paving slabs at a higher level. Again there is a requirement for sufficient space to 

allow for the changes in levels.  There is also the drawback that this is often a short 

term fix, in that damage will often re-occur within a few years, depending on the 

health and vigour of the problem tree. 

Root pruning or shaving of the upper root surfaces to reduce the levels of uplift is also 

widely used elsewhere in Britain. This has the advantage of being cost effective and 

deals with the immediate problem in a short period of time without the need for 

extensive excavations; however, the main disadvantage of this is that it creates 

wounds within the root system which may allow ingress of fungal pathogens with the 

potential for root decay, which over a period of some years, may cause death or 

structural failure leading to collapse. The ability of trees to respond well to this kind 

of treatment is very dependent on individual species; fortuitously Elm is a species that 

is recognised as having a high tolerance to this method of management but decay is 

still a significant issue. 

With respect to the problem of the limited space between the boundary wall of No. 38 

and the trunk of the Elm there is no clear solution. One possibility might be to 

demolish a section of the boundary wall and to rebuild it along a new alignment; 

however, as this is a listed building and its basement extends to the edge of the 

boundary wall, this seems unlikely to be feasible.  

51



 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

 

CONCLUSIONS 

From my inspection it is evident that the Elm is an important tree within the local 

landscape and, highway issues aside, that it has the potential to make a significant 

contribution to the local amenity of Montpelier Terrace for many years to come.  

From the number of posters and billboards attached to the trunk it is evident that there 

is considerable local interest in the fate of this tree. Thus it may be reasonably inferred 

that the local community may be willing to tolerate any solution to the evident 

problems even if they are either short term or do not fully meet the normal 

requirements of highway guidelines for road/pavement construction.  

However; before any decision is reached it would be prudent to carry out a further 

investigation of the internal structure of the tree to determine the presence or 

otherwise of decay. It would be premature to embark on any expensive remedial 

programme only for the tree to fail in the near future due to unseen internal decay. 

This may be ascertained by using specialist decay detection techniques such as a 

Picus sonic tomography unit, or a Resistograph decay detecting drill. All the possible 

solutions considered above have their drawbacks when applied to this site, lack of 

space being the primary factor. Any agreed way of resolving the issues (short of 

removing the tree) will of necessity, be a relatively short term measure, in relation to 

the tree’s potential longevity, and will require regular re-assessment/re-inspection and 

rectification of any new problems that arise. 

A combination of the methods outlined above may be able to satisfactorily resolve the 

issues for the next few years, therefore I recommend the following:-  

1) Undertake tests to ascertain presence /absence of internal decay. 

2) Trial excavation to determine subsoil depth capacity. 

3) Assuming satisfactory results from 1&2 excavate an additional rooting zone etc. 

4) If results from 2 are not satisfactory then re-construct pavement by raising the 

levels and incorporating expansion voids around the major roots along with 

reinforcement of the paving material to accommodate further root expansion. 

5) If 4 above is adopted then the carriageway could be modified around the base of 

the tree by setting in a semi circular group of small granite setts to delineate the 

vulnerable zone immediately adjacent to the trunk. 

In either case roots, other than the girdling roots, should not be severed unless 

absolutely necessary and then only after careful consideration of the effect this may 

have on the structural stability of the tree. 

52



 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

An outline methodology for these treatments is set out in Appendix 2.  

 

 

 

David Archer M.Arbor.A. 

March 2013. 

 

 

 

 

 

53



 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

Apendix1

 

54



 

 

 

 

Page 9 of 9 

David Archer Associates 

March 2013 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Amenity Assessment of Wheatley Elm  

APPENDIX 2 

 

OUTLINE METHODOLOGY FOR PAVEMENT RE-SURFACING. 

 a) Preliminary excavation and removal of the granite kerbstones and railings 

immediately adjacent to the trunk, including the small area of root uplift in the road 

surface; 

 b) Excavation of the pavement and subsoil around the root system in those areas 

where root uplift is evident; this should be carried out by hand with the assistance of 

an Air Spade where appropriate. 

c) A qualified arboriculturalist should then carry out an inspection and assessment of 

the exposed root system and an evaluation of the rooting volume available within the 

sub-soil zone.  

d) If required, remove the girdling roots and any roots responsible for tarmac uplift 

providing this does not compromise the structural integrity of the tree. Arboricultural 

advice and supervision should be sought before undertaking this procedure. 

e) If root pruning is not possible without compromising the structural integrity of the 

tree then the excavation should be backfilled with a structural soil such as 

‘Amsterdam Tree Sand’ or ‘CU – Structural Soil 
tm’

 . The pavement surface may then 

be constructed at a higher level on top of this sub-base and graded out to minimise 

any sudden level changes; where possible major roots should be covered with a void 

forming compressible material to allow for future incremental growth. The pavement 

surface should be flexible enough to be lifted easily to enable any future root pruning 

or alteration of levels if required. 

f) If it is found that there is the opportunity to create a new rooting zone beneath the 

pavement and roadway then this should be installed using a proprietary product such 

as ‘Silva Cell’, following their installation procedures. Surface treatments should be 

as in e) above.  

g) In any event this tree should be carefully inspected every year for any developing 

defects that could compromise public safety and a record kept of the findings. 

David Archer 

March 2013 

 

55



56



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 4 

57



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

58



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



�

T
re

e
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 

61



62



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item 76 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Better Bus Areas 

Date of Meeting: 30th April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Emma Sheridan  Tel: 29-3862 

 Email: emma.sheridan@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Queens Park and St Peters & North Laine 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The report seeks approval to undertake consultation with members of the public 

and other stakeholders on the proposals for bus priority, pedestrian and cyclist 
infrastructure improvements on Edward Street as part of the Department for 
Transport funded Better Bus Areas Programme. 

 

1.2 Public consultation would be undertaken over a six week period. The results of 
the consultation will be used to inform final design of the scheme, which will be 
brought back to Committee for formal approval in the summer of this year. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Transport Committee approves for consultation with members of the 

public and other stakeholders, the scheme proposals for Edward Street 
contained within and attached to this report. 

 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 In March 2012 Brighton and Hove successfully secured £3.48 million transport 

funding from the Department for Transport for the Better Bus Area (BBA) Project 
“Better Buses for a Growing City.”  With local resources contributed by Brighton 
& Hove City Council and our bid partners Brighton and Hove Bus Company, a 
total fund of £5.82m was achieved.   

 
 
3.2 The area covered by the Project focuses on unlocking bus market growth to the 

north and east of the city centre, both areas having been identified as areas for 
economic growth. It is anticipated that the package of measures being 
implemented will support the key development sites in the project area, address 
the capacity issues that exist on the two strategic corridors and remove 

63



significant bottlenecks in the network through the introduction of bus priority 
measures.  
 

3.3      In addition to securing improvements in terms of journey times for bus 
passengers, the infrastructure works currently being developed and here 
proposed will aim to improve the environment for pedestrians and cyclists 

 
3.4 Measures proposed are:  
 
 Starting at the junction of Pavilion Gardens and Edward Street heading east: 
 

• On carriageway cycle lane (2m) as far as the junction of Edward Street with 
Egremont Place,  

• Existing pedestrian crossing just after John Street to be upgraded to a Puffin 
crossing, 

• Addition of a pedestrian phase to traffic signals on the eastern arm of junction of 
Edward Street with Egremont  Place and Upper Rock Gardens,  

• From Junction of Edward Street with Egremont Place and Upper Rock Gardens 
the east bound inside lane proposed to become a shared bus, taxi and cycle lane 
(4m) 

• Foot way build out to narrow entrance/exit of Tilstone Street  

• Bus lay by in fill just after Park Street and bus stop to be made accessible 
(Kassel kerbs etc) and extended to accommodate up to 3 buses 

• Relocation of existing crossing westwards to improve sight lines and allow for 
bus lane road markings  

 
 Central Islands  

• Realignment of central islands along the length of Edward Street to ensure 
adequate lane widths and upgrading of lighting columns where needed. 

 
 Starting at junction of Edward Street West bound from Freshfield Road  

• Shared bus lane (4m) as far as the junction of Edward Street with Pavillion 
Gardens,   

• Installation of “MOVER” technology used to give buses priority through signalled 
junctions, 

• Advanced stop lines for cyclists at traffic signalled junctions 

• Improvements to pedestrian crossing at junction of Edward Street with Upper 
Rock Gardens    

 
 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 During the preparation of the bid officers engaged with local bus operators to 

determine priority areas for funding. Engagement with Brighton and Hove Bus 
Company has been ongoing since the funding announcement with regular 
meetings between the BHCC Project Manager and the BHBC Operations 
Manager throughout the feasibility and initial design stages of these works.  

 
4.2 Briefings to update stakeholders on the progress of the Better Bus Areas 

Programme as a whole have been provided to Buswatch (9th January 2013)and 
the Brighton and Hove Transport Partnership (26th March 2013).  

 

64



4.4 Engagement meetings have been held on the feasibility and initial design 
proposals with the CVSF Transport Representative (15th November and 3rd April 
2013 ), Sussex Safety Camera Partnership and Sussex Police (27 February ) 
and The Chair of Buswatch (3rd April 2013). 

 
4.3 This report seeks approval to undertake public and wider stakeholder 

engagement on the scheme proposals. It is intended that this will take the form of 
an online and paper questionnaire, attendance and discussion at relevant LAT 
meetings, stakeholder meetings and public exhibitions. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The costs associated with the consultation on and any subsequent 

implementation of the measures outlined in this report will be largely met from the 
Better Bus Areas Fund which is external funding provided from the Department 
for Transport. Some local match funding was required and has been agreed as 
part of Local Transport Plan (LTP) budget for 2013-14.  

 
 Over the remaining year of the project, to the end of the 2013/14 financial year, 

there is £770k of capital funding (£520k from BBA funding and £250k from LTP) 
and £200k in revenue funding (all BBA funding) identified specifically for these 
works. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 15/04/13 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 In carrying out consultation the Council is under a general duty to ensure that any 

consultation is fair. This means that it must be carried out when proposals are 
being formulated, that adequate time and information about proposals must be 
given to consultees to ensure that they can provide a proper response, and that 
any consultation responses must be properly considered in reaching the 

 decision. 
 
 The Council has powers as highway and traffic authority under the relevant 

legislation to carry out the proposed measures. Any traffic regulation orders 
necessary to implement the final scheme will need to be advertised and 
objections considered in accordance with the relevant procedural regulations. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum   Date: 12/04/13 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 The scheme will be designed in line with industry best practice and guidance to 
 ensure all facilities are fully accessible to all members of society. The scheme 

should improve conditions for vulnerable road users and has the potential to 
ease community severance by aiding the development of healthy and 
sustainable places and communities which will enable children, young people 
and adults to make more and better use of their local streets. 

 

65



 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The measures outlined in this report will assist in meeting One Planet Living 

objectives by promoting and encouraging greater use of sustainable transport, 
and particularly overcome current barriers to walking, cycling, and bus use. It is 
predicted that significant reductions in travel by private car would result from 
implementation of the schemes, with people instead choosing to travel by 
walking, cycling or bus due to their increased attractiveness and viability made 
possible through the improvements identified. The scheme will seek to enhance 
health by encouraging active travel amongst local people and reducing the 
causes of air pollution along the corridor, namely excessive levels of motorised 

 traffic 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 There are no Crime & Disorder implications arising directly as a result of this 
 report. 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 If approval not given at this meeting for consultation it is unlikely that the 

allocated budget for this scheme will be spent within the current financial year 
and the funding received from the Department for Transport for this programme 
will have to be returned. This in turn could have potentially negative impacts for 
future funding bids to the Department 

 
5.7 There is a risk that the outcome of the public and stakeholder consultation will 

require amendment or complete redesign of the scheme, however, it is hoped 
that through a positive engagement programme any concerns that arise will be 
alleviated and objections overcome at the detailed design stage, should the 
scheme move forward to that stage, to produce a scheme that meets the needs 
of all those upon whom it would impact. 

 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.8 Increasing the number of pedestrians and cyclists and encouraging greater use 

of public transport will directly lead to improved public health through increasing 
the use of active modes and therefore the amount of exercise undertaken by 
local people. Reducing the number of people travelling by private vehicle will 

 also lead to an improvement in air quality which in turn will improve public health. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.9 Edward Street is a key route into the City and therefore the citywide transport 

model is being utilised to fully understand and address any potential impacts on 
strategic traffic flow. The proposed scheme will assist the Council to meet its 
strategic objectives and will contribute to the Council’s and partners’ wider 
objectives, including those set out in the Corporate Plan and the Sustainable 
Community Strategy.  
 

5.10    Edward Street is proposed as a construction traffic route (eastbound) for traffic 
serving the development of Royal Sussex County Hospital. Officers have 
considered the implications of the scheme on traffic flows during this period and 

66



consider that they will be negligible in terms of traffic congestion. The scheme 
proposals will ensure that during the hospital redevelopment bus routes are kept 
free flowing and that cyclists have increased protection from construction traffic 
using this route.  
 

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 The only other option at this stage would be to discontinue the scheme and 

return the funds to Department for Transport. This is not considered to be a 
practical option.  

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To authorise public consultation on scheme proposals in order that the Better 

Bus Areas programme can progressed to its next stage of implementation. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. BHCC Better Bus Areas Bid 
 
2. Concept drawing of Edward Street proposals 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None. 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 

67



 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 
 
Better Bus Areas Bid submitted to Department for 
Transport  

68



Better Bus Areas Bid

Brighton & Hove City 
Council and partners 

Better buses for a growing city

2012-2014

 

69



Contents Page 
 
 
Section        Page no. 
 
 
Project Summary       1 
 
A. Overview        2 
 
B. Partnership Arrangements     7 
 
C. Package Details and Rationale     9 
 
D. Value for Money       12 
 
E. Supporting Evidence      14 
 
F. Delivery and Costs      16 
 
G. Fit with LSTF       19 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A – Supported Bus Routes 

70



 1

1. Project Summary 
 
All proposals must include evidence of real commitment from at least one 
relevant bus operator which should be demonstrated throughout the 
proposal. Tick the box to show that you have completed this requirement. 

 

Applicant Information 
 
Local transport authority name(s)*: 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 
      
Senior Responsible Owner name and position:  
 
David Parker, Head of Transport Planning 
 
Bid Manager name and position:  
 
Robin Reed, Principal Transport Planner 
 
Contact telephone number:      01273 293856 
 
Email address:      robin.reed@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 
Postal address: Hove Town Hall, Room 405, Norton Road, Hove, BN3 3BQ 
    
    
         
 
Website address for published bid: www.brighton-hove.gov.uk   
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



 2

Section A. Overview  

A1 Project name: 

 Better Buses for a Growing City 
                 

A2. The Geographical Area: 

The city of Brighton & Hove, located between the South Downs National Park & 
the sea, is home to more than a quarter of a million people living in nearly 
120,000 homes, being the 5th most densely populated area in the South East.  
The city provides an important focus in the local conurbation that includes 
Worthing, Littlehampton, Shoreham, and Newhaven, fulfilling the role of a 
regional transport hub with strategic road and rail links to London & adjoining 
cities and towns along the south coast, London Gatwick & London City airports, 
as well as the two ports of Shoreham and Newhaven.  The city is renowned for 
having one of the most successful bus networks outside of London and bus 
patronage has increased from 30.2 million journeys in 2001 to 41.1 million in 
2009/10.  Over the last five years patronage grown by 16.5% (an additional 5.8 
million passengers).  
 
The specific focus of this bid is the area to the east of the city centre, 
concentrating on the Lewes Road & Eastern Road/Edward Street corridors and 
the Valley Gardens area which links these key routes with the city centre. This 
area is shown on the plan overleaf. 
 
Valley Gardens provides strategic importance as the main arrival and departure 
point within the city and the majority of bus routes converge in this area, 
providing access to most areas of Brighton & Hove and beyond.   
 
The Lewes Road & Eastern Road/Edward Street corridors are the focus of long 
term development and regeneration in the city, with both areas identified within 
the emerging LDF core strategy.  Lewes Road contains the City’s two 
Universities as well as the new Brighton & Hove Albion Football Stadium.  
Eastern Road/Edward Street are local attractors for business and labour 
markets, with the Royal Sussex County Hospital and American Express 
European HQ contributing as major employers.  Brighton Marina is also located 
immediately adjacent to the area.  The area also contains the recently approved 
£480 million development of Royal Sussex County Hospital which will create a 
world class regional medical facility for the region.  
 
Buses travelling through the area covered by this bid carry in excess of 25 
million passengers per year.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



NIZELLSLANE

H
O

W
A

R
D

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

J U L I A NN R OA D

C
LIF

TO
N

R
O

A
D

M
O

N
T

P
E

LIE
R

CRESCENT

STMICHAEL‘SPLACE

POWISROAD

PPOWISVILLLASS

P
O

W
I S

S
Q

U
A

R
E

P
O

W
IS

S
Q

U
A

R
E

P
O

W
I S

G
R

O
V

E

C
L I F

T
O

N
H

I L
L

W
I N

D
LE

S
H

A
M

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

O
S

M
O

N
D

R
O

A
D

OSMONDROADGARDENS

D
A

V
I G

D
O

R
R

O
A

D

MONTEFIOREROAD

C
O

L
B

O
U

R
N

E
R

O
A

D

A
D

D
I S

O
N

R
O

A
D

G
R

A
N

V
I L

L
E

R
O

A
D

M
E

L
V

IL
L

E
R

O
A

D

CH
ATH

A
M

PLA
CE

B
ATH

STREET

B
U

CC
KK

IN
G

H
A

M
P

L
A

CC
EE

G
O

L
D

S
M

ID
R

O
A

D

VERN
ON

TERRA
CE

DENMARKTERRACE

T
E

M
P

L
E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

W
IN

DLESHAM
GARDEN

S

W
INDLESHAM

ROAD

Y
O

R
K

A
V

E
N

U
E

F
U

R
Z

E
H

IL
L

N
I Z

E
L

L
S

A
V

E
N

U
E

YORKAVENUE

L
A

N
S

D
O

W
N

E
R

O
A

D

R
E

G
E

N
C

Y
R

O
A

D

CAVENDISHPLACE

ORIENTALPLACE

MONTPELIERROAD

NORFOLKBLDGS

NORFOLKMEWS

BEDFORDSQUARE

NORFOLKSTREET

WATERLOOSTREET

LOWERMARKETST

K
I

N
G

S
W

A
Y

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

S
I L

L
W

O
O

D
S

T
R

E
E

T

LITTLEPRESTONSTREET

WESTERNTERRACE

SILLWOODROAD

R
E

G
E

N
C

Y
M

E
W

S

CCC
la

ree
nnn

ccceeee
SS

q
u

q
u

q
u

a
reee

B
ru

n
sw

ic
k

S
q

u
a

re

R
u

sss
eee

llllll
SSSS

q
u

q
u

q
u

q
u

a
re

rraa
u

a
re

S
t.

A
n

n
’s

W
e

ll
G

a
rd

e
n

s

S
u

ss
e

x
 S

q
u

a
ree

i e
n

CANNONPLACE

S
T

M
A

R
G

A
R

E
T

‘ S
P

L
A

C
E

QUEENSBURYMEWS

Q
U

E
E

N
S

B
U

R
Y

M
E

W
S

R
E

G
E

N
C

Y
S

Q
U

A
R

E

PRESTONSTREET

S
T

O
N

E
S

T
R

E
E

T

C
A

S
T

L
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

REGENTHILL

MARLBOROUGHSTREET

CROWNSTREET

DEANSTREET

HAMPTONPLACE

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

T
R

E
E

T

SPRINGSTREET

C
L

I F
T

O
N

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

CLIFTON
PLACE

V
I C

T
O

R
I A

R
O

A
D

U
P

P
E

R
N

O
R

T
H

S
T

R
E

E
T

U
P

P
E

R
N

O
R

T
H

S
T

M
O

N
T

P
E

L
I E

R
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

MONPELIERROAD

MONTPELIERVILLAS

MONTPELIERSTREET

VICTORIASTREET

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

P
L

A
C

E

GRENVILLEST

B
L

A
C

K
L

I O
N

L
A

N
E

S
H

I P
S

T
R

E
E

T
G

A
R

D
E

N
S

IM
P

E
R

I A
L

A
R

CC
A

DD
E

D
U

K
E

S
L

A
N

E

B
O

N
D

S
T

L
A

N
E

D
U

K
E

’ S
P

A
S

S
A

G
E

CHANCTONBURYROAD

CISSBURYROAD

MONTEFIOREROAD

LY
N

D
H

U
R

S
T

R
O

A
D

H
A

N

O
VER

CRESCENT

S
O

U
T

H
O

V
E

R
S

T
R

E
E

T

LITTLEWESTERNSTREET

C
R

O
S

S
S

T
R

E
E

T

FARMROAD

B
R

U
N

S
W

I C
K

S
Q

U
A

R
E

UPPERMARKETSTTT

BRUNSWICKSTREETEAST

MONTPELIERROAD

BEDFORDPLACE

NORFOLKSQUARE

N
O

R
F

O
L

K
P

L
A

C
E

WESTERNSTREET

NORFOLKTERRACE

NORFOLKROAD

BOROUGHSTREET

TEMPLESTREEEETT

M
O

N
T

P
E

L
I E

R
P

L
A

C
E

YORKROAD

CAMBRIDGEROAD

BRUNSWICKROAD

BRUUNSSWICKPLACE

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

S
T

W
E

S
T

BRUNSWICKSTREETWEST

PPAALLMMEEIIRRAAAAVVEENNUUEE

ROCHESTERGARDENS

LANSDOWNESTREET
LANSDOWNEPLACE

L
A

N
S

D
O

W
N

E
S

Q
U

A
R

E

HOLLANDMEWS

A
L

I C
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

HOLLANDROAD

U
N

IO
N

R
O

A
D

PARKCRESCENTPLACE

POPESFOLLY

F
R

E
E

H
O

L
D

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

G
L

A
D

S
T

O
N

E
P

L
A

C
E

G
RAN

T
STREET

J A
C

K
S

O
N

S
TR

E E T

W
ASHIN

GTON
STREET

H
A

S
TIN

G
S

RO
A

D

FR
A

N
K

LIN
S

TR
EET

W
ELLIN

G
TO

N
R

O
A

D

U
P

P
ER

W
ELLIN

G
TO

N
R

O
A

D

P
IC

TO
N

S
TR

EET

C
O

R
O

N
A

TIO
N

S
TR

EEEEET

FR A N K L I N
R OA D

WELLINGTONSTREET

S EVI LLE S TR EET

DEMONTFORTROAD

NORMANTONSTREET

A
G

N
E

S
S

T
R

E
E

T

E
L

M
GG

R
O

V
E

LUTHER
STREET

COBDENROAD

HAMPDENROAD

MILTONROAD

HHOOWWAARRDDRROOAADD

I S L I N G W OR D R OA D

I S
L I N

G
W

O
R

D
R

O
A

D

HAN
OVER

M
EW

S

HA
N

O
VER

STREET

HAN
OVER

TERRACE

LEW
ES

RO
A

D

RO
U

N
D

H
IL

L
C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D
R

O
A

D

WAKEFIELDROAD

B
R

O
M

L
E

Y
R

O
A

D

C
A

N
T

E
R

B
U

R
Y

D
R

I V
E

P
A

R
K

M
O

R
E

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

D
YK

E
R

O
A

D
D

R
I V

E

P
R

E S
TO

N
R

O
A

D

T H E R I DE

P R E S T ON P A R K A V E N U E

STANFORD
AVENUE

B
R

IG
D

E
N

S
T

R
E

E
T

P R E S T ON V I L L E R OA D

O
L

D
S

H
O

R
E

H
A

M
R

O
A

D

HA M
I LT ON

R OA D

U
P

P
E

R
H

A
M

I L
T

O
N

R
O

A
D

LANCASTERROAD

COV E N T R Y
S T R E E T

P
O

R
T

H
A

L
L

A
V

E
N

U
E

P OR T
HA LL

S T R E E TP OR T
HA LL

P LA CE

S TA N FOR D R OA D

Y
O

R
K

V
I L

L
A

S

B
E

LM
O

N
T

H
I G

H
D

O
W

N
R

O
A

D
WOLSTONBURYROAD

CABURNROAD

S TA FFOR D
R OA D

E X E T E R
S T R E E T

BUXTONROAD

C HAT S W OR T H
R OA D

DYK E R OA D

P
O

R
T

H
A

LL
R

O
A

DD

H
I G

H
CR

O
FT

V I L
LA

S

G
R

A
N

G
E

C
L

OO
SS

EE

P
R

E
S

TO
N

R
O

A
D

S
T

M
A

R
T

ET

B
R

E
W

E
R

S
T

R
EE

T

N
EW

PORT
STREET

TR I N

I T
Y

S
T R

EET

P
A

R
K

C
R

ES
C

EN
T

R
O

A
D

PA
R

K
C

R
ES

C
EN

T
TER

R
A

C
E

ROSEHILL

K
I N

G
S

B
U

R
Y

S
T

R
E

E
T

R
O

S
E

H
I L

L
C

L
O

S
E

P R OV I DE N C E
P LA C E

E
LD

E
R

P
LA

C
E

L O N D ON T E R R A C E

R
O

S
E

H
I L

L
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
R

O
A

D

W I N C HE S T E R S T R E E T

YA R DL E Y S T R E E T

G E R A R D S T R E E T

S HA FTE S B UR Y P LACE

S HA FT E S B U R Y R OA D

L OR N E R OA D

U
P

P
E

R
LEW

E
S

R
O

A
D

MELBOURNESTREET

H
A

R
T

I N
G

T
O

N
R

O
A

D

FAIRLIGHTPL

P
E

V
E

N
S

E
Y

R
O

AA
DD

S
T

L
E

O
N

A
R

D
‘S

R OA D

S
T

M
A

RTIN
‘S

PLA
CE

S T
M

A
R T I N

‘ S
P LA CE

S
T

M
A

R
Y

M
A

G
D

A
LE

N
E

S
T

R
EE

T

S
T

P
A

U
L’

S
R

O
A

D

C
A

L
E

D
O

N
I A

N
R

O
A

D

E
D

IN
B

U
R

G
H

R
O

A
D

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

R
O

A

I N
V

E
R

N
E

S
S

D ‘ A U B I N GY R OA D

A S H DOW N
R OA D

M AYO
R OA D

P
R

IN
C

E
S

R
O

A
D

H
O

L
L

I N
G

D
E

A
N

R
O

A
D

H
U

G
H

E
S

R
O

A
D

P
R

I NNN
C

E
S

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

CRESCENTROAD

B
E

L
T

O
N

C
L

O
S

E

BELTONROAD

ROUNDHILLST

R
OOO

UU

IILLNNIILL

DDD
H

IL
L

R
O

AAA
DD

D
IT

C
H

L
IN

G
R

IS
E

V E R E R OA D

W A R L E I GH
R O

A
D

C
LY

D
E

R
O

A
D

S
T

A
N

L
E

Y
R

O
A

D

S
H

A
FTES B UR Y

R OA D

V
I A

D
U

C
T

R
O

A
D

B E A C ON S FI E L D R OA D

A
R

G
YLE

R
O

A
D

C A
M

P B
E LL

R OA D

N
E

W
E

NN
GG

LL
AAA

NNN
DDD

RRR
OO

AA
DD

NN
EE

WW
EE

NN
GG

LL
AA

NN
DD

RR
OO

AA
D

M
A

D
E

II
RR

AA
DD

RR
II

VV
EE

D
U

K
E

‘ S
M

O
U

N
D

UPPERABBEYROAD

ABBEYROAD

BRISTOLGATE

CHURCHPLACE

B
R

I S
T

O
L

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

S
U

S
S

E
X

S
Q

U
A

R
E

K
E

M
P

T
O

W
N

P
L

A
C

E

C
H

IC
H

E
S

T
E

R
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

R
O

C
K

S
T

R
E

E
T

CHICHESTERPLACE

S
U

D
E

L
E

Y
S

T
R

E
E

T

UPPERSUDELEYSTR

SUDELEYPLACE

CHESHAMSTREET

S
T

M
A

R
Y

‘S
S

Q
U

A
R

E

STMARK‘SSTREE

C
H

E
S

H
A

M
R

O
A

D

CHESHAMPLACE

P
E

R
C

IV
A

L
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

EATONPLACE

BELGRAVIAPLACE

E
A

S
T

E
R

N
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

M
A

R
IN

E
P

A
R

A
D

E

PORTLANDPLACE

SEYMOURSTREET

PASTONPLACE

S
U

D
E

L
E

Y
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

B ELLE VUE GA R DE N S

CHAPELSTREET

A
R

D
IN

G
LY

S
T

R
E

E
T

DORSETPLACE HIGHSTREET

WINDMILLTERRACE

Y
O

R
K

H
IL

L

YYYYOOOORRRRKKKKPPPPLLLLAAAACCCCEEEE

DDDIITTCCHHLLIINNGGRROOAADD

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

R
O

W

QUE E N‘ S P L

QQ
U

E
E

N
‘S

P
L

A
CC

EE

S TR OUDLEY
ROA D

KINGSCOTEWAY

BBELMONTST

F L E E T S T R E E T

N
E W

E N GLA N D
S T R E E T

A
N

N
S

T
R

E
E

T

NEWENGLANDSTREET

P R OV I DE NCE P LACE

STPETER‘SSTREET

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L

‘S
R

DK I N G S B UR Y R OA D

B
A

K
E

R
S

T
R

E
E

T

FF
RR

A
N

C
IS

S
T

R
E

E
T

O
X

F
O

R
D

S
T

R
E

E
T

O
X

F
O

R
D

P
L

A
C

E

M
A

R
I

N
E

P
A

R
A

D
E

M

A
R

IN
E

S
Q

U

ARE

MARGARETSTREET

WENTWORTHSTREET

NEWSTEINE

NEWSTEINE

RROCKPLACE

DEVONSHIREPLACE

STJAMES‘SAVENUE

UPPERROCKGARDENS

LOWERROCKGARDENS

ATLINGWORTHSTREET

S
T

M
A

R
Y

‘S
P

L
A

C
E LAVENDERSTREET

GRAFTONSTREET

WYNDHAMSTREET

CHARLOTTESTREET

MARINEGARDENSS

S
TT

J
AA

M
E

SS
‘ S

SS
TT

RR
EE

EEE
TT

SS
T

J
AA

MM
EE

SS
‘‘ SS

SS
TT

RR
EE

EE
TT

U
P

P
E

R
S

T
J

A
M

E
S

‘ S
S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T

G
E

O
R

G
E

‘ S
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

V
E

R
O

N
IC

A
W

A
Y

E
S

S
E

X
S

T
R

E
E

T

H
E

R
E

F
O

R
D

S
T

R
E

E
T

UPPERBEDFORDSTREET

BEDFORDSTREET

B
R

I S
T

O
L

R
O

A

D

M
O

N
T

A
G

U
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

BLOOMSBURYPLACE

R
O

Y
A

L
C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T
M

E
W

S

CRESCENTPLACE

COLLEGEROAD

COLLEGEPLACE

C
L

A
R

E
N

D
O

N
P

L
A

C
E

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
S

T
R

E
E

T

MONTAGUEPLACE

S
O

M
E

R
S

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

BURLINGTONSTREET

S
T

G
E

O
R

G
E

‘ S
R

O
A

D
B

L
O

O
M

S
B

U
R

Y
S

T
R

E
E

T

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
G

A
R

D
E

N
S

G
R

E
A

T
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

R
O

A
D

B
E

L
L

E
V

U
E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

WALPOLEROAD

SUTHERLANDROAD

MOUNTPLEASANT

EGREMONTPLACE

TILLSTONESTREET

E
A

S
T

E
R

N
R

OO
A

WHITESTREET

BLAKERSTREET

GROSVENORSTREET
STJOHN‘SPLACE

LENNOXSTREET

MARINEVIEW

P
A

R
K

R
O

A
D

T
E

R
R

A
C

E UPPERPARRKPLACE

C
A

R
LT

O
N

H
I L

L

MIGHELLSTREET

TTIILLBBUURRYYPLACE

K
IN

G
S

W
O

O
D

S
T

R
E

E
T

JOHNSTREET

R
I C

H
M

O
N

D
S

T
R

E
E

T

ELMOREROAD

TARNERROAD

S
U

S
S

E
X

S
T

R
E

E
T

A

TTREE
DD

R
I V

E

BARRYWALK

NN
O

R
T

H
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
LY

N
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

W
EST

DRIVE

N
O

R
T

H
D

R
I V

E

EAST
DRIVE

S
O

U
T

H
A

V
E

N
U

E

PARKSTREET

FRESHFIELDROAD

F
R

E
S

H
F

I E
L

D
W

A
Y

F
R

E
S

H
F

I E
L

D
P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
K

H
I L

L

T OW E R R OA D

B A R

N
F

I E
L

D
G

D
N

SS

B
E

A
U

F
O

R
T

TT
EE

R
R

A
C

E

Q
U

EEN
‘S

PA
RK

RO
A

D

STANLEYSTREET

WINDMILLSTREET

TILBURYWAY

JOHNSTREET

A S H T ON R I S E

GROVE
HIL

L

TO
RO

N
TO

TER
RA

CE

FIN
S

B
U

R
Y

R
O

A
D

MONTREALROAD

QQ
U

EB
EC

S
TR

EET

A
LB

I O
N

H
I L

L

ALBIONSTREET

TA
M

PLIN
TERRA

CE

PHOENIX
PLACE

MALTHOUSE
ROAD

PH
O

EN
IX

RISE

N
EW

H
AVEN

STREET

LEW
ES

ST

B
ELG

RA
VE

STREET N
EW

A
RK

PLA
CE

JERSEY
S

TR
EET

G
R

O
V

E
S

TR
EET H

O
LLA

N
D

S
TR

EET

SC
O

TLA
N

D
S

TR
EET

COLEM
AN

STREET

LIN
COLN

STREET

EW
ART

STREET

ISLIN
GW

ORD
STREET

SOUTHAM
PTON

STREET

W
H

IC
H

ELO
PLA

CE

IS
LIN

G
W

O
R

D
PLA

C
E

S T
LU

K E ‘ S
T E R

R A
C

E

Q
U

E
E

N
‘ S

P
A

R
K

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

ST
LU

KE‘SS
R

O
A

D

F
R

E
S

H
F

I E
L

D
SS

T
R

E
E

T

R
IC

H
M

OO
NN

DD
P

AA
RR

AA
DD

EE

IVORYPLACE

M
O

R
L

E
Y

S
T

R
E

E
T

CAVENDISHST

STTJJAAMEESS‘SSSTREETMEWS

JEWSTREET

KINGSTREET

FREDERICKSTREET

FREDERICKGARDENS

OORRAANNGGEERROOWW

TICHBORNEST

SPRINGGARDENS

QUEENSROAD

C
H

U
R

C
H

S
T

R
E

E
T

ST
N

ICHOLAS
ROAD

CENTURIONROAD

NEWDORSETSTREET

NORTHGARDENS

KEWSTREET

N
O

R
T

H
R

O
A

D

FOUNDRYSTREET

QQUEEN‘SGARDENS

UUPPPPEERGARDNERSTREET

KENSINGTONGDNS

KENSINGTONSTREET

ROBERTSTREET

MARLBOROUGHPLACE

GRANDPARADE

PELHAMSTREET

STGEORGE‘SMEWS

STGEORGE‘SPLACE

RICHMONDPLACE

SYDNEYSTREET

TIDYSTREET

GG
LL

OO
U

C
E

S
T

E
R

S
T

R
E

E
T

G
L

O
U

C
E

S
T

E
R

R
O

A
D

KENSINGTONPLACE

TRAFALGARLANE

KEMPSTREET

OVERSTREET

T
R

A
F

A
L

G
A

R
S

T
R

E
E

T

FREDERICKPLACE

WHITECROSSSTREET

BLACKMANSTREET

STATIONSTREET

H
O

W
A

R
D

P
LA

C
E

W
E

S
T

H
I L

L
R

O
A

D

A L E X A N DR A V I L L A S

A
L

B
E

R
T

R
O

A
D

U
P

P
E

R
G

L
O

U
C

E
S

T
E

R
R

O
A

D

SURREYSTREET

S T R OUDLE Y
R OA DDD

B
IL

LIN
TO

N
W

A
Y

R
A

I L
W

A
Y

S
T

R
E

E
T

W
EST

HH
IILL

LL
SSTTREET

W
E

S
T

H
I L

L
P

L
A

C
E

CLIFTONSTREET

BUCKINGHAMSTREET

GUILDFORDSTREET

A
L

F
R

E
D

R
O

A
D

L
E

O
P

O
L

D
R

O
A

D

BUCKINGHAMROOAD

G
U

I L
D

F
O

R
D

R
O

A
DT

E
R

M
I N

U
S

S
T

R
E

E
T

T E R M I N U S R OA D

B
U

C
K

IN
G

H
A

M
P

L
A

C
E

C

O
M

PTO
N

A
VEN

U
E

T
E

R
M

IN
U

S
P

L
A

C
E

MORLEYSTREET

NELSONROW

CIRCUSSTREET

MARLB.PL

B
L

E
N

H
E

I M
P

L
A

C
E

CHELTENHAMPLLAACCEE

VINESTREET

NORTHPLACE

JUBILEESTREET

REGENTSTREET

GGAARRDDNNEERRSSTTRREEEETT

D Y K E R O A D

WESTSTREET

S
O

U
T

H
S

T
R

E
E

T

GG
RR

A
N

D
J

U
N

C
T

I
O

N
R

O
AA

DD

MIDDLESTREETT

BLACKLIONSTREET

PORTLA||NDSTREET

PAVILION

C
A

S
T

L
E

S
Q

U
A

R
E

N
O

R
T

H
S

T
R

E
E

T

NEWROAD

STJAMES‘SPLACE

GEORGESTREET

DORSETGARDENS

P
O

O
L

V
A

L
L

E
Y

LITTLEEASTST

EEAAASSTSSTTRREEEETT

B
A

R
T

H
O

L
O

M
E

W
S

P R I N CE
ALB E R

T
S

T
R

E
E

T

PR I N CE ALB ERT
S TREET

S
T

E
IN

E
LA

N
E

BRILLSLAANNE

K
IN

G
S

R
O

A
DD

SHIPSTREET

D
U

K
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

MIDDLESTREET

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
R

O
A

D

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
R

O
A

D

RUSSELLPLACE

C
R

A
N

B
O

U
R

N
E

S
T

R
E

E
TA
IR

S
T

R
E

E
T

QUEENSQUARE

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
R

O
A

D

B
O

Y
C

E
S

S
T

R
E

E
T

WINDSORSTREET

KINGPLACE

BBOONDSTREEETT

SSTEEINESSTRREEETTT

CAMELFORDSTREET

MADEIRAPLACE

BROADSTREET

CHARLESSTREET

MANCHESTERSTREET

PRINCESSTREET

SSTTEEIINNEEGGAARRDDEENNSS

DORSETSTREE

JOHNSTREET

GRAND

PA
R

A
D

E
M

E
W

S

WILLIAMSTREET

E
A

S
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

A
R

C
A

D
E

C
LA

R
E

N
C

E
Y

A
R

D

SS
H

I P
S

T
C

T

U
N

I O
N

S
T

R
E

E
T

MEETINGHOUSELANE

M
A

R
K

ET
S

T

N
I L

E
S

T
R

E
E

T

B
R

I G
H

T
O

N
P

L
A

C
E

BRIGHTONPL

PAVILION
BUILDINGS

PRINCES PLACE

B
O

N
D

S
T

 R
O

W

F
L

O
R

E
N

C
E

P
L

A
C

E

E R
HOLL I N

GDE A N
ROA D

G
R

A
N

T
H

A
M

R
O

A
D

R
U

G
B

Y
R

O
A

D

K R OA D

E A C ON S FI E L D V I L L A S

F
L

O
R

E
N

C
E

R
O

A
D

S OU T HDOW N A V E N U E

DI T C H L I NN GG R OA D

STANFOR

OLDSTEINEOLDSTEINE

OLD
STEINE O

L
D

S
T

E
I N

E

BEDFORDSQUARE

S T R OUDL E Y
R OA D

S
OO

UU
T

H
D

O
W

N
M

E
W

S

N

O
R

T
H

S
T

R
E

E
TT

QUEENNSSRROOAADD

C
H

U
R

C
H

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
H

U
R

C
H

S
T

R
E

E
T

E

B E A C ON S F I E L D R OA D

S H A FT E S B U R Y R OA D

W A R L E I G H R OA D

UU
PP

PP
EERR

LLEEW
ES

RO
A

D

S
O

U
T H

O
V

ER
S

T R
E E T

S
O

U
TH

O
V

ER
S

TR
E E T

S
T

G
E

O
R

G
E

‘ S
R

O
A

D

S
T

G
E

O
R

G
E

‘ S
R

O
A

D

G
L

O
U

C
E

S
T

E
R

R
O

A
D

QQUEEN‘S
PARK

ROAD

M
A

R
I N

E
P

A
R

A
D

E

M
A

D
E

I R
A

D
R

I V
E

EASTSTRREEET

SHIPSTREET

W
EE

SS
TT

EE
RR

N
RR

OO
AA

D

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
R

O
A

D

MARKETSTREET

M
A

R
K

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

GLOUCEST
GS P RE

R
O

Y
A

L
C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

C
H

A
P

E
L

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

M
I L

L
F

I E
L

D
C

O
T

T
A

G
E

S

P
A

R
O

C
H

O
C

H
IIAA

LL
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

SS NNEE DDRR A G NOI Z

CEN
T

N
TU

R
U

RIO
N

RO
A

D

W
ESS

RR
OOO

AAAA
DD

LLLLEEWWW
EESSS

RRROOAADD

PELHAMSQUARE

PELHAMSQQUARE

EE
RR

NN
RR

OO
AA

DD

CC
H

U
R

C
H

R
O

A
D

CANNONPLACE

MONTPELIERROAD

BRUNSWICKSQUARE

BRUNSWICKSQUARE

D
U

K
E

’S
C

O
U

R
T

N
OI

T
C

N
U

J R
O

A
D

K
I

NN
GG

’’ SS
RR

OO
A

D

KK
II

NN
GG

’’ SS
RR

OO
AA

DD

C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 S

Q
U

A llll
R

E

R
U

S
S

E
Lq
u

q
u L
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

REGENCYSQUARE

REGENCY SQQUARE

B
A

R
T

H
O

L
O

M
E

W
S

Q
U

A
R

E

PO
O

L

PSG

GLOUCESTERPLACE

DITCHLING ROAD

L O
N

D
O

N
 R O

A D

L O
N D

O
N  R O

A D

PALACE
PLACE

P
a

vv
iill

iio
n

G
a

rd
ee

nn
s

BBBBBBBBB
rrrri

g
h

to
nnnnnnnn

SSSSS
q

u
q

u
q

u
q

u
q

u
a

reeeeeee

S
t.

N
ic

h
o

laa
s

RR
ee

st
 G

a
rd

eee
n

V
ic

to
ri

a
G

a
rd

e
d

e
nnn

s

S
ttee

iin
e

G
aa

rrdd
e

n
s

AA
rrtt

iiss
ttss

’’
QQ

uu
aa

rrtt
ee

rr
V

o
lk

’s
 E

le
ct

rii
cc

RR
aa

iill
ww

a
yy

AAAA
qqqq

uuuu
aaaa

rrrriiii
uuu

m
 

m
 

m
 SSS

ttta
t

a
t

a
tii

o
n

VVVV
oo

lk
’s

 E
le

ct
ri

c
R

aaaa
il

w
a

y
H

a
H

a
llfff

-ff
ww

aaaaaaa
yyyyyyy

SSSSS
tttta

t
a

ti
o

n

VVVV
ooo

lk
’s

 E
llleee

cccttt
rrrii

c
R

a
il

www
ay

BBBBB
lllaaa

ck
 

ck
 

ck
 

ck
 R

o
R

o
R

o
R

o
ccck

 
k

 
k

 S
ta

ti
o

n

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
ss

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
ss

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
ppp
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
pp
ss

S
te
p
s

SS
teee
pppp
ssss

S
te
p
s

SSS
te
p
s

S
tte
p
s

S
tte
p
ss

S
t

S
t

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
te
p
s

S
u
b
w
a
y

S
te
p
s

U
n
d
e
rp
a
ss

K
e

y

Le
w

e
s 

R
d

 /
 L

S
T

F
 A

re
a

V
a

ll
e

y
 g

a
rd

e
n

s 
A

re
a

E
a

st
e

rn
 R

o
a

d
 /

 

E
d

w
a

rd
 S

tr
e

e
t 

A
re

a

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e

 J
u

n
ct

io
n

E
d

w
a

rd
 S

tr
e

e
t 

Ju
n

ct
io

n
b

U

HANOVER
PL

L
WW LACE

PARADE
PA

a

b

a

R
a

il
 S

ta
ti

o
n

C
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

   
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s 
&

F
o

o
tb

a
ll

 S
ta

d
iu

m

M
a

ri
n

a

A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 E
x

p
re

ss

H
o

sp
it

a
l

L
e

v
e

l

C
ir

cu
s 

S
tr

e
e

t

O
p

e
n

 M
a

rk
e

t

73



 4

A3. Description of Growth and Carbon Emission Problem: 

Brighton & Hove’s economy provides nearly 3% of the overall south east output 
and contributes over £3 billion of Gross Value Added (GVA) to the national 
economy annually.  However, this has slowed in recent years and when 
compared to the South East average, the city is underperforming.  Increasing 
congestion and unreliability in the transport network can have significant 
impacts on productivity and competitiveness.  Indeed, traffic congestion is the 
local issue residents think “most needs improving” and local businesses have 
identified congestion as a "significant barrier to inward investment." 
 
The city also has the highest carbon footprint of any of the major south east 
economies and nearly 25% of Brighton & Hove’s carbon emissions come from 
road transport.  Despite excellent achievements in promoting and increasing 
bus use in the city, there is still a high level of car use for local trips. Two-thirds 
of vehicles on the road at any one time are making trips which begin and end 
within the city.  In addition, car use for travel to work is high in some parts of the 
city, particularly in the suburbs where bus service provision and frequencies are 
relatively low. Opportunities exist for further enhancement of the bus network – 
both services and infrastructure. 
 
Within the specific area covered by this proposal, Lewes Road, Eastern Road 
and Edward Street are key areas for growth and it is important that this growth 
does not cause any additional pressure onto the highway network.  Several 
large scale development projects are currently underway in this area including 
the new 33,860sqm American Express European HQ employing some 3000 
people (completed by March 2012) and the redevelopment of the Royal Sussex 
County Hospital site (known as the 3T's).  The proposed 3Ts redevelopment 
involves new build of approximately 72,000sqm, leading to a net increase of 
54,000sqm at the RSCH site.  Traffic growth of 29% is forecast to occur in the 
AM peak period between 2011 and 2022, with 27% growth in the PM peak 
period as a result of these developments.  
 
Demand for peak time bus journeys on Lewes Road now frequently exceeds 
supply, with students and staff needing to access the university sites and 
residents heading in towards the city centre to get to work. Traffic congestion in 
this area makes it difficult to meet the demand that exists, and this is expected 
to increase further as demand for travel increases.   
 
The inconsistent provision of bus infrastructure and high traffic volumes in the 
Valley Gardens area is a major cause of delay, while the complicated nature of 
the current routing arrangements is not well understood by passengers and acts 
as a deterrent to further modal shift. The areas around St Peters Church, Elm 
Grove and the Edward Street/Pavilion Parade junction are particularly 
problematic. It is widely accepted that improvement and rationalisation of this 
key area is essential to unlock further growth and success in the city's bus 
network.    

 

 

74



 5

A4. Description of Proposal: 

Scheme Element 1 (SE1) - Lewes Road Capacity Improvements 
 
Problem - Insufficient bus capacity in peak times to meet demand on Lewes 
Road 
 
Proposed solutions 

1. Replacement of the current double decker bus fleet (18 buses) on 
key service 25 with bendy buses and associated enlargement of 
the 20 busiest bus stops with high quality, large capacity shelters 
and Kassel kerbing to accommodate the longer buses, providing a 
69% increase in passenger capacity 

2. Improved frequency to existing service 23 including provision of an 
evening and Sunday service, providing a 92% increase in 
passenger capacity 

3. New bus service 48, providing 8% increase in passenger capacity 

4. Extension of existing service 38 to serve Brighton Station instead of 
terminating at the Open Market site 

5. Branding and publicity to create a ‘Rapid Transit’ style look and feel 
to Lewes Road bus services 

 
Scheme Element 2 (SE2) - Valley Gardens Bus Infrastructure 
Improvements 
 
Problem - Inconsistent and incoherent provision of bus infrastructure leading to 
significant delays to buses and reducing the potential for further modal shift 
 
Proposed solutions 

1. Provision of bus priority measures in the area around St Peters 
Church where north and southbound buses frequently encounter 
delays.  A minimum 1 minute journey time improvement would be 
achieved through this measure 

2. Improvements to the Elm grove Junction (location A on the 
attached plan), including dedicated bus priority facilities.   

3. Improvements to the Edward Street/Pavilion Parade junction, 
including dedicated bus priority facilities (location B on the attached 
plan) 

 
Scheme Element 3 (SE3) - Eastern Road / Edward Street Bus 
Infrastructure Improvements 
 
Problem - Existing delays for buses exiting Edward Street / Eastern Road 
heading towards the city centre.  Future increased delay and demand for bus 
journeys due to RSCH 3T's and American Express HQ developments currently 
taking place in the area. 
 
 

75



 6

Proposed solutions 
 

1. Westbound bus lane on the approach to Edward Street / Pavilion 
Parade junction. A minimum 1 minute journey time improvement 
would be achieved through this measure  

2. Review of junction signals and waiting / loading restrictions along 
Eastern Road / Edward Street to ensure clear passage for buses at 
all times 

 

A4. Total package cost (£m): £5.82m 

 

A5. Total DfT funding contribution sought (£m) £3.48m 

:          

A5. Source of local contribution: 

o Brighton & Hove Bus Company - £1.24m 

o Section 106 Developer Funding - £0.5m 

o Brighton & Hove Local Transport Plan - £0.6m 

76



 7

Section B. Partnership arrangements 
 
B1 Bus Market in the Local Area 

The bus market in Brighton & Hove plays a key role in transport network of the 
city, with better bus provision and continued passenger growth identified in the 
LDF and LTP3 as essential to the city’s opportunities for economic growth, C02 
reduction and social inclusion.  In recent years the bus market has benefited 
from sound partnership working and sustained targeted investment by all 
partners, which has resulted in positive increased bus patronage - almost 
doubling from 22.5m in 1992/93 to 41.6m in 2010/11. There has also been a 
strong increase in Bus Service Satisfaction with targeted surveys indicating a 
rise from 56% in 2000 to 92% in 2011 - this is supported by increases in 
satisfaction with Bus Service Information which has risen from 51% in 2000 to 
70% in 2010.   

The city has an extensive and successful network of bus services, most of 
which are operated commercially by Brighton & Hove Bus Company, who 
provide services for 97% of the overall network and carry approximately 95% of 
bus passengers in the city. There are also a relatively small number of 
commercial services provided by Stagecoach, The Big Lemon, Countryliner, 
Metro Bus and Compass Travel, mainly operating on a single route basis and 
not making a significant contribution to total passenger numbers across the city. 
The city council also provides a supported bus network to outlining areas of the 
city carrying approximately 1,244,110 bus passengers per year. 

The current bus network radiates from a number of city centre ‘hubs’ at 
Churchill Square, Valley Gardens and Brighton Rail Station. Orbital links 
connect outer suburban areas of the city with the central area. There is little 
spare capacity at the key interchange locations and further expansion of 
services is somewhat constrained. In addition, bus congestion and capacity 
constraints exist on North Street, Western Road, Valley Gardens and Lewes 
Road. Within the proposed BBA area there are currently 87 buses per hour in 
each direction run commercially by Brighton & Hove Buses. The Big Lemon 
operates predominantly to the north of the proposed BBA area and also 
operates a direct shuttle service from University Halls into the city centre during 
the evenings Monday to Fridays.  A further 620 bus journeys are operated in the 
area per week through B&HCC supported services, serving outlying areas 
where demand is not sufficient for commercial services but where the city 
council feels it is important to provide a regular service for accessibility reasons. 

The area covered by this BBA bid focuses on unlocking bus market growth to 
the north and east of the city centre, both areas that have been identified in the 
LDF as areas for economic growth. Historical investment in bus priority has 
mainly taken place in the west and towards the centre of the city with the 
eastern side suffering from underinvestment - resulting in a number of pinch 
points along the main corridors.  

 

77



 8

B2 Bus Operator Partnership Information 

Bus operator (s) committed to playing a substantive role in delivering the 
proposals   
 
1.  Bus Operator: Brighton & Hove Bus & Coach Company 

Senior Manager acting as contact: Roger French 
Contact telephone number:      01273 886210 
Email address:      roger.french@buses.co.uk 

 
 
In terms of the other bus companies operating in the area covered by this bid, 
Stagecoach, Countryliner, The Big Lemon, Metro Bus, and Compass Travel, 
are all supportive of the bid although are not considered substantive partners.  
 

B3. Bus Partnership Arrangements 

Brighton & Hove City Council has a well established Quality Bus Partnership 
that is held up as a national example of good practice and evidence on the 
partnership was given to House of Commons Select Committee on Transport in 
2006.  The partnership has been founded on an understanding that each 
partner is responsible for 5 key areas and it is on this understanding that the 
BBA bid has been developed. 
  

• Bus Companies Value for Money fares 
Investment in new vehicles 
Frequent Services 
Good marketing message 
Investment in staff training 
 

• City Council  Bus Priority measures 
Parking restrictions  
Infrastructure improvements at bus stops 
Real Time Information / satellite tracking 
Traffic regulation enforcement 
 

The specific responsibilities of each partner in delivering the BBA project will be 
formalised as part of the management arrangements outlined in section F3.  
 

 

 

 

 

78



 9

Section C. Package Details and Rationale 

C1. Description of outputs associated with each of the package elements 

Proposal Specific Outputs Timescale for Delivery 

   

SE1 - Lewes Road Capacity Upgrade   

1 - Bendy Bus Upgrade 

o 14 x new bendy buses 
to replace existing 
double decker fleet 

o 20 x upgraded bus 
stops & shelters 

o Publicity and branding 

o Bendy buses 
introduced April 2012 

o 10 x Bus stops 
upgraded in 2012/13  

o 10 x Bus stops 
upgraded in 2013/14  

2 - Service 23 - Improved frequency and 
provision of evening and Sunday services 

o Increase frequency 
from every 30 mins to 
every 20 mins 

o Provision of evening 
service 

o Publicity and branding 

o Commencing 
September 2012  

3 – New Service 48 

o Increase from 3 buses 
per hour to 5 buses 
per hour 

o Publicity and branding 

o Commencing April 
2012  

4 - Service 38 – Extension to Brighton 
Station  

o Every existing journey 
to be extended to 
Brighton Station 
(about every 30 mins) 

o Publicity and branding 

o Commencing 
September 2012 

SE2 – Valley Gardens Bus Infrastructure   

1 - St Peters Church Area Bus Priority 

o Northbound bus lane 
to allow buses to 
bypass traffic 
congestion 

o Works to commence 
April 2013  

2 - Elm Grove Junction Improvements 

o Junction remodelled 
and upgraded to 
facilitate faster 
passage of buses 

o Works to commence 
April 2013  

3 - Eastern Rd / Pavilion Parade Junction 
Improvements 

o Junction remodelled 
and upgraded to 
facilitate faster 
passage of buses 

o Works to commence 
April 2013  

SE3 - Eastern Road Bus Infrastructure    

1 - Westbound bus lane 

o Westbound bus lane 
on approach to 
junction to allow 
buses to bypass traffic 
congestion 

o Works to commence 
April 2013 

2 - Review of junction signals and waiting / 
loading restrictions 

o Review and upgrade 
of all signals along 
Eastern Rd Corridor 

o Waiting & Loading 
review 

o Commence April 2012 
for 6 month period 

 
 
 

79



 10

C2. Rationale for the measures 

 
The measures included within this bid have been selected in response to the 
specific opportunities and challenges described in Section A. In particular, it is 
anticipated that the proposed package will support the key development sites in 
the bid area, address the capacity issue that exists on the Lewes Road corridor 
and remove significant bottlenecks in the network through the introduction of 
bus priority measures.  
 
The findings of the Transport Assessment prepared to support the LDF Core 
Strategy confirm that future development in the city will increase pressure on 
the road network unless positive measures are taken to mitigate the likely 
increases in, and impact of, journeys made by car. The area covered by this 
BBA proposal incorporates the most significant developments taking place 
within the city over the next 10 years, namely the redevelopment and expansion 
of the Royal Sussex County hospital, and the redevelopment of the American 
Express European HQ. It is clear that additional transport infrastructure will be 
necessary to enable and support this planned development and while Section 
106 contributions have and will be sought in this respect, BBA funding would 
greatly enhance the potential to access these key development sites by 
sustainable transport and help foster low carbon economic growth. 
 
Within this area there are over 30,000 students attending the two universities 
and 7,500 employees at the new developments alone.   
 
Congestion and unreliability can constrain economic growth within the city. 
Improving bus journey times, punctuality and reliability will provide economic 
benefit for businesses through reducing lost productive time and by improving 
the performance of existing networks, it is possible to help meet growing 
demand in a co-ordinated way and make the city an attractive location and 
market for employment. National figures show that a 5% reduction in travel time 
for all business and freight travel on UK roads could generate around £2.5 
billion of cost savings, equating to nearly 0.2% of Gross Domestic Product.  
 
Improving journey times and increasing the frequency and capacity of services 
will make journeys by bus more attractive and as a result modal shift from other 
modes to bus can be expected. Further details are included in Section D.     
 
Individual measures are not seen as exclusive and will support each other to 
deliver the identified benefits. For example, the new or extended services would 
benefit from the infrastructure improvements, which would in turn be supported 
by the promotional activities included within the revenue-focused measures. In 
addition to the measures identified specifically in this bid package, a number of 
other initiatives and programmes are already taking place that will support and 
enhance the overall bus network within the city. In particular, Brighton & Hove 
Buses are currently rolling out the introduction of smart ticketing following a 
successful trial period. Our successful LSTF project is also delivering a number 
of complimentary measures including expansion of the Real Time Information 
system, Personalised Travel Planning, and the introduction of extensive bus 
priority measures further north in the Lewes Road corridor. Such measures will 

80



 11

be fully complimentary to this BBA proposal and are well established and 
supported by all major public transport operators in the city.  
 
A matrix outlining the measures as part of this BBA bid and how these will 
respond to the identified challenges and opportunities is provided in the table 
below, whilst impact forecasts are provided in Section D. 
 
BBA Benefits Matrix 
  BBA Bid Elements 

Issue/ Opportunity 

S
E

1
- 

L
e

w
e
s

 R
o

a
d

 C
a

p
a

c
it

y
 

U
p

g
ra

d
e

 

S
E

2
 –

 V
a
ll

e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n

s
 B

u
s
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
E

3
 -

 E
a
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

/E
d

w
a
rd

 S
t 

B
u

s
 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 

Economic Growth 

Carbon Emissions 

Modal Shift 

Enabling 
Development 

Bus Frequency 

Bus Journey Times 

Bus Reliability 

Bus Punctuality 

Bus Patronage 

Increasing 
Capacity 

User Satisfaction 

Accessibility 

Road Safety 

 

81



 
1
2
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 D

. 
V

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

M
o
n
e
y
  

D
1
. 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 

A
 q

u
a
n
ti
ta

ti
v
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
ta

b
le

s
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 

 
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 

 
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 (

B
a
s
e

li
n

e
) 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 (

2
0
1

2
/1

3
) 

Y
e
a
r 

2
 (

2
0
1

3
/1

4
) 

A
n
n
u

a
l 
P

a
s
s
e
n

g
e
r 

C
a

p
a
c
it
y
 

1
7
,6

2
7
,7

0
0
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 
2
4
,8

1
5
,8

3
5
 (

+
4
0
%

) 
 

2
4
,8

1
5
,8

3
5
 (

+
4
0
%

) 
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
B

u
s
 J

o
u
rn

e
y
s
 

0
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
s
 

2
3
,7

3
0
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
 

2
3
,7

3
0
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
B

u
s
 M

ile
a

g
e
 

0
 m

ile
s
 

1
1
3
,6

5
0
 m

ile
s
 

1
1
3
,6

5
0
 m

ile
s
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
P

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 
0
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 
9
8
0
,5

2
8
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g
e
rs

 
9
8
0
,5

2
8
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g
e
rs

 

C
a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

0
k
g
 C

O
2
 

3
4
4
,9

6
7
 k

g
 C

O
2
 

3
4
4
,9

6
7
 k

g
 C

O
2
 

S
E

1
- 

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d

 C
a
p

a
c
it

y
 

U
p

g
ra

d
e
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 
3
1
,0

0
0
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 
3
2
,0

0
0
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 (

B
a
s
e

li
n

e
) 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 (

2
0
1

2
/1

3
) 

Y
e
a
r 

2
 (

2
0
1

3
/1

4
) 

N
o
. 

p
a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 

1
3
,6

7
2
,4

7
2
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 
1
3
,6

7
2
,4

7
2
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 
1
3
,6

7
2
,4

7
2
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 

J
o
u
rn

e
y
 T

im
e
 S

a
v
in

g
 

0
 

0
 

6
0
 s

e
c
o

n
d
s
 

S
E

2
 –

 V
a
ll
e

y
 G

a
rd

e
n

s
 B

u
s
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

(t
im

e
 s

a
v
in

g
) 

£
0
 

£
0
 

£
1
,1

0
5
,1

6
8
.9

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 (

B
a
s
e

li
n

e
) 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 (

2
0
1

2
/1

3
) 

Y
e
a
r 

2
 (

2
0
1

3
/1

4
) 

N
o
. 

p
a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 

8
,5

4
4
,0

7
5
 

8
,5

4
4
,0

7
5
 

8
,5

4
4
,0

7
5
 

J
o
u
rn

e
y
 T

im
e
 S

a
v
in

g
 

0
 

3
0
 s

e
c
o

n
d
s
 

6
0
 s

e
c
o

n
d
s
 

M
o
d
a

l 
s
h
if
t 

(C
a

r 
to

 B
u
s
) 

0
%

 
4
%

 
8
%

 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

(t
im

e
 s

a
v
in

g
) 

£
0
 

£
3
4

5
,2

8
8
.1

7
 

£
6
9

0
,5

7
6
.3

5
 

C
a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

0
k
g
 

1
8
3
,9

6
0
 k

g
 C

O
2
 

3
6
7
,9

2
0
 k

g
 C

O
2
 

S
E

3
 -

 E
a
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

/E
d

w
a
rd

 S
t 

B
u

s
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
n

e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

0
 

1
4
5

0
 

1
4
5

0
 

82



 13

D2. Non-quantifiable benefits. 

Due to the nature of the proposals contained within this bid, it has been possible 
to quantify the anticipated benefits and these are included in the table on the 
previous page.  However, it was not felt possible to accurately identify the 
impact of the advertising and branding campaigns that would accompany the 
increased service provision on Lewes Road and therefore no attempt has been 
made to quantify the benefits arising in this instance. 
 
Also, due to the complex nature of bus movements within the Valley Gardens 
area and the fact that many routes converge in this area, it was not felt possible 
to accurately predict a modal shift and therefore potential carbon saving figure 
as a result of the improvements in this area.  However, journey time 
improvements in the Valley Gardens area would benefit a large number of bus 
passengers daily travelling on a wide range of different routes from across the 
city.  Therefore, it would be reasonable to expect a degree of modal shift from 
car to bus on all of the routes that travel through the Valley Gardens area during 
the course of their journey.  
 
The introduction of new infrastructure measures will be designed to the latest 
standards and will provide additional benefits for pedestrians and cyclists, 
encouraging people to walk and cycle both of which contributing to increased 
physical activity and reducing obesity levels. The entire BBA area is within the 
city’s Air Quality Management Area and with better bus provision encouraging 
modal shift, air quality will improve but will require longer term monitoring. The 
capital measures will also be designed to the safest standards and seek to 
address any current road safety issues along the route. It is difficult at this stage 
to quantify the accident reductions but previous experience of the introduction of 
bus priority measures in Brighton & Hove shows that good results can be 
achieved. These results will be monitored and reported as part of the overall 
evaluation.  
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

83



 14

Section E - Supporting Evidence 

E1. Evidence for the predictions identified above. 

Below is a brief explanation of the methodology used to appraise the various 
measures included within this proposal. The figures included have been 
calculated in conjunction with Brighton & Hove Bus Company and therefore a 
high degree of accuracy has been achieved.  
 
SE1- Lewes Road Capacity Upgrade  
 
Annual Passenger Capacity Actual figures provided by Brighton & Hove Bus 

Company 
 

Additional Bus Journeys Actual figures provided by Brighton & Hove Bus 
Company 
 

Additional Bus Mileage Actual figures provided by Brighton & Hove Bus 
Company 
 

Target Additional Passengers Predicted figures provided by Brighton & Hove 
Bus Company using historical patronage data 
and expert knowledge of the local bus market   
 

Carbon Reduction 
 

Calculation based on 25% of the predicted new 
bus passengers having switched mode from 
private car to bus. Each replaced car journey 
assumed to be 5 miles with CO2 emissions of 
0.3kg per mile. Additional CO2 created by 
increased bus mileage deducted at a rate of 
0.2kg per mile 
 

Access to Further Education 
 

Actual numbers of current and future students 
studying at the two universities located on the 
Lewes Road corridor 

 
SE2- Valley Gardens Bus Infrastructure 
 
No. passengers affected Actual figures provided by Brighton & Hove Bus 

Company 
 

Journey Time Saving Predicted time saving achievable through 
analysis of existing delays and congestion using 
journey time data from the Real Time Information 
system and technical knowledge and experience 
of possible bus priority interventions 
 

Economic Benefit (time saving) Based on a 60 second bus journey time 
improvement in the Valley Gardens area. 
Economic value of time saving calculated for bus 
passengers using standard values of time as 
prescribed by DfT and standard cost-benefit 
methodology.  Benefit has been calculated for 
completion year 2013/14 only but benefits would 
continue to accrue after this time.  

 
 
 

84



 15

SE3- Eastern Road / Edward St Bus Infrastructure 
 
No. passengers affected Actual figures provided by Brighton & Hove Bus 

Company 
 

Journey Time Saving Predicted time saving achievable through 
analysis of existing delays and congestion using 
journey time data from the Real Time Information 
system and technical knowledge and experience 
of possible bus priority interventions 
 

Modal shift (Car to Bus) Calculation based on a 4% modal shift from car 
to bus in year 1 and a further 4% in year 2. 
Modal shift figures taken from previous 
experience of the A259 Brighton to Peacehaven 
Bus Priority scheme where monitoring showed 
an 8% modal shift following the introduction of 
similar measures to those proposed here 
 

Economic Benefit (time saving) Based on a 60 second bus journey time 
improvement along the Eastern Rd / Edward St 
corridor. Economic value of time saving 
calculated for bus passengers using standard 
values of time as prescribed by DfT and 
standard cost-benefit methodology.  Benefit has 
been calculated for completion year 2013/14 
only but benefits would continue to accrue after 
this time.  
 

Carbon Reduction 
 

Based on modal shift figures outlined above. 
Each replaced car journey assumed to be 3 
miles with CO2 emissions of 0.3kg per mile.  
 

Access to potential new employment 
opportunities  

Actual numbers of current and future students 
studying at the two universities located on the 
Lewes Road corridor. 

 
E2. Proposed monitoring. 
 

B&HCC has a wealth of experience in monitoring projects that require rigorous 
evaluation and the sharing of results, including the Cycle Town programme, 
Community Infrastructure Fund and the European funded CIVITAS and 
MMOVE projects. One of the important factors in achieving successful 
monitoring and evaluation is the ability to share and coordinate data with project 
partners. The council’s Bus Punctuality Improvement Plan agreement with the 
bus company will provide a tried and tested framework in which both partners 
can share data and monitoring resources effectively.  

The council and the bus company hold extensive baseline data, as outlined in 
section D1 and E1, which will be reported against quarterly once the main 
outputs have been delivered. All outputs and outcomes will be reported and 
monitored by the Project Board (see section F3) which will be held every 6 
weeks. The added value outcomes such as benefits for cyclists, pedestrians 
and reductions in road casualties will also be reported.  

85



 16

The council will produce and continually update the progress of outputs and 
outcomes on its website and is willing to assist DFT in assessing and sharing 
the benefits of BBA, and any further marketing and publicity, should the bid be 
successful. 

The following intermediate outputs and outcomes will be monitored using the 
data sources identified: 
 

o Passenger Numbers - Bus Company patronage data 

o Bus Journeys - Bus Company journey data 

o Bus Mileage - Bus Company mileage data 

o Bus Journey Times – Annual bus journey time surveys 

o Traffic Volume & Composition – Monthly collection using automated 
network of traffic counters 

o Carbon Reduction - Monitored using data collected from the above 
quantitative sources and applying relevant formulae 

o Economic Benefit - Monitored using data collected from the above  
quantitative sources and applying relevant formulae 

Section F. Delivery and Costs 

F1. Package Costs 

  2012-13 2013-14 

SE1- Lewes Road 
Capacity Upgrade 

£(K)   

 Revenue 560 520 

 Capital 250 250 

 
Local 
Contribution 

840 400 

SE2 – Valley Gardens Bus 
Infrastructure 

£(K)   

 Revenue 50 50 

 Capital 0 1000 

 
Local 
Contribution 

250 250 

SE3 - Eastern 
Road/Edward St Bus 
Infrastructure 

£(K)   

 Revenue 100 100 

 Capital 100 500 

 
Local 
Contribution 

0 600 

Revenue  710 670 Grand Total funding 
sought  Capital  350 1750 

Revenue 1550 1070 Grand Total including 
local contribution Capital 600 2600 

86



 17

F2. Timetable for Delivery and Risks 

Scheme Element Planned 
delivery date 

Risks 

SE1- Lewes Road 
Capacity Upgrade 

April -September 
2012 

o Additional services will need to be 
registered before the deadline 

o Uptake of new services may be lower 
than anticipated 

o Delays may occur during the acquisition 
and refurbishment of the bendy bus fleet 

o Site constraints may mean that some 
bus stops cannot be upgraded to the 
necessary standard to accommodate 
bendy buses 

SE2 – Valley Gardens 
Bus Infrastructure 

Work to start on 
or before April 
2013 

o Possible cost increases due to 
underground services 

o Delays caused during road works 
 

SE3 - Eastern 
Road/Edward St Bus 
Infrastructure 

Phase 1 to 
commence April 
2012 
Phase 2 to 
commence April 
2013 

o Possible cost increases due to 
underground services 

o Delays caused during road works 
 

 

F3. Management Arrangements 

The BBA project will be jointly delivered by the B&HCC Transport Planning 
Team and the Brighton & Hove Bus Company Operations Team. Both teams 
offer a wealth of experience in delivering bus related projects and initiatives. 
Relevant staff from the smaller bus companies would also be invited to form 
part of the project team. A Terms of Reference and Memorandum of 
Understanding will be produced setting out the exceptions and responsibilities 
of each project partner and the ownership of each output. 

In terms of governance and reporting, because of the linkages with the LSTF 
project the BBA Delivery team will report into the established LSTF Project 
Board. This also has benefits in terms of ensuring the project has strong 
political sponsorship as the LSTF Project Board is headed up by the council’s 
Lead Member for Transport and the Public Realm. 

It is proposed that 1 x FTE Project Manager post would be funded through the 
revenue element of the BBA bid for the duration of the project. 

 

 

 

 

 

87



 18

Project Governance Structure  

 

 
 

F4. Financial sustainability 

The bid has been developed to ensure that it is economically sustainable 
without the need for ongoing financial support and will not require funding 
beyond the BBA funding period. In terms of the capital measures proposed they 
create a lasting legacy of benefits well beyond the life of the funding period and 
will be maintained from existing council budgets. The initial financial support 
needed for the bus routes outlined in the proposals have been produced in 
partnership with the bus company and we are confident that these services will 
become financially viable by the end of the funding period. The bid area also 
includes a number of supported routes which will also benefit from the 
infrastructure measures, and increase their potential to become commercial 
viable.  

F5. Financial Impact on Bus Operators 

As stated in previous sections, Brighton & Hove Bus Company has committed 
to providing a local contribution of £1.24m over the two year duration of the 
project. 
 
Calculations undertaken by the bus company estimate that £545,531 additional 
revenue will be generated as a result of the proposals contained in this bid.  
 

F6. Additionality 

A table showing existing citywide local bus subsidies and contracts funded by 
the local authority is included as Appendix A. 

The city council confirms that BBA support will allow the scope of several 
existing packages of work to be expanded in a way that will deliver additional 
benefits in line with the objectives of the fund.  

One element where it is felt that clarification is required relates to SE1 – Lewes 
Road Capacity Upgrades.  In this element Brighton & Hove Bus Company is 
proposing to purchase and refurbish an additional 14 bendy buses, resulting in 
a significant increase in passenger capacity along the Lewes Road corridor. 
The bus company will proceed with this proposal regardless of the success of 

LSTF & BBA Project 
Board 

BBA Project Delivery 
Team 

LSTF Project Delivery 
Team 

88



 19

this bid for BBA funding, although the city council feels that the associated 
infrastructure improvements that would be delivered through the BBA project 
are essential for the benefits to be fully realised.   

Section G. Fit with the Local Sustainable Transport 
Fund 

G1. Fit with other bids, including the Local Sustainable Transport Fund 
and Green Bus Fund. 

 
As mentioned previously, Better Bus Area funding would significantly enhance a 
number of existing projects. As shown on the map included in Section A, the 
proposed BBA area is a continuation of the area covered by Brighton & Hove’s 
successful Tranche 1 LSTF project which focuses on the northern section of the 
Lewes Road corridor.  The proposed BBA area includes the southern section of 
Lewes Road, linking the LSTF corridor with the city centre. Included within the 
LSTF project are a number of bus based initiatives including extension of the 
RTI system, new bus stops in adjoining residential areas, and reallocation of an 
existing dual carriageway to a 10km combined Bus & Cycle lane in the northern 
section of Lewes Road.  Bus patronage is predicted to rise by as much as 10% 
as a result of these improvements.  
 
The BBA area also draws in the Eastern Rd/Edward St area, a second key 
public transport corridor running east to west, as well as the Valley Gardens 
area which links Lewes Road and Eastern Rd/Edward St with the city centre.  
The council is also proposing to improve the large area green space within the 
boundary of Valley Gardens including the area known as The Level, which has 
recently been awarded £2 million funding from the National Lottery heritage 
fund.  
 
Whilst both the LSTF and any BBA packages would deliver significant benefits 
alone, it is felt that the combined effect would be far greater. This is particularly 
important given the number of strategically important sites and routes within the 
BBA and LSTF areas, with a new application to extend the Brighton & Hove 
FC’s Amex Stadium expected shortly, both packages working together will 
provide much improved sustainable journey times linking the city centre and the 
stadium.  
 
Brighton & Hove Buses, through its parent company Go Ahead, is proposing to 
bid for additional funding through the Green Bus Fund to increase the current 
fleet of 2 hybrid buses by a further 20. Success with this bid would allow greater 
carbon savings and enhance the benefits of the BBA and LSTF projects, 
particularly in terms of air quality measures.  
 
Whilst the proposed BBA package has been designed to complement a range 
of other projects, the benefits stated within this bid are not dependant on a bid 
for the Green Bus Fund being successful, and they are in addition to those 
already claimed through the LSTF project. The BBA project has been prepared 
to ensure that it can progress independently of any other projects.  

89



APPENDIX A. City Wide Supported Routes.  

7830 81  Open Market - Queens Park - Goldstone Valley Monday - Saturday 60 min 

2887 81A  Brighton Station - Meadowview Sundays and Public Holidays 30 min 

2877 52  
Woodingdean - Brighton Station/ C Newman 

Sch 
Monday - Saturday 60 min 

2888 81C  Old Steine - Goldstone Valley Sundays and Public Holidays 60 min 

2878 56  Knoll Estate - Patcham Monday - Saturday 60 min 

2876 47  Brighton Station - East Saltdean Monday - Saturday 60 min 

7832 16/66  
Portslade - Knoll Estate - Hangleton - 

Sainsbury's 
Monday - Saturday 30 min 

2880 37B  
Bristol Est - Brighton Stn - Southover St - Lewes 

Rd 
Monday - Saturday 20 min 

2883 76  Saltdean Vale - Longhill School Schooldays 1 return 

2870 77  Seafront - Devil's Dyke Sats, Suns & PHs (all year). Daily (summer) 60 min 

2892 95A  Foredown Drive - Cardinal Newman School Schooldays 1 return 

9814 72  Whitehawk - Woodingdean - Longhill School Schooldays 2 returns 

7835 84  Sussex Univ - Woodingdean - RSCH - Whitehawk Monday - Friday 2 returns 

2884 76A  Peacehaven - Longhill Sch Schooldays 1 return 

2886 81A  Brighton Station - Meadowview Monday - Saturday 30 min 

2879 57  Brighton Station - East Saltdean Sundays and Public Holidays 60 min 

2882 75  Lower Bevendean - Patcham Schools Schooldays 1 return 

2891 95  Burwash Road - Cardinal Newman School Schooldays 1 return 

2881 74  Lewes Road - Patcham Schools Schooldays 1 return 

7821 24  
Hollingbury - Coldean - Lewes Road - City 

Centre 
Winter Sunday evenings 60 min 

2893 96  Carden Avenue - Blatchington Mill School Schooldays 1 return 

2885 81  Old Steine - Goldstone Valley Monday - Saturday 60 min 

2875 21  Marina - Race Hill - London Rd/ Station Monday - Saturday evenings 60 min 

7823 27  Westdene - Brighton Station Winter Sunday evenings 60 min 

7810 22  Churchill Square - Woodingdean Winter Sunday evenings 60 min 

7812 26  Hove - Open Market - Hollingbury - Coldean Winter Sunday evenings 60 min 

7824 81A  Meadowview - Lewes Rd - Old Steine Winter Sunday evenings 60 min 

7813 27  Brighton Station - Rottingdean - Saltdean Winter Sunday evenings 60 min 

2895 91  
Coombe Road - Hollingdean - Cardinal Newman 

Sch 
Schooldays 1 single 

2871 78  Old Steine - Stanmer Village Suns & PHs (all year) Sats (summer) 60 min 

2872 79  Old Steine - Ditchling Beacon Suns & PHs (all year) Sats (summer) 60 min 

7809 21B  Churchill Square - Queens Park - Marina Winter Sunday evenings 60 min 

90



91



92



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 77 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Brighton Station Gateway 

Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Jim Mayor Tel: 294164 

 Email: Jim.mayor@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The Brighton Station Gateway project has been under development since 2010. 

It aims to rationalise and improve circulation and access for people and vehicles 
at the main entrance points to, and in the area around, the city’s main railway 
station. The project seeks to contribute towards a number of the Council’s 
transport goals including assisting in economic growth, improving safety and 
security and enhancing equality of access. 

 
1.2 Consultation on a preferred scheme for Brighton Station Gateway was 

undertaken in late 2012. The results of consultation were reported to Transport 
Committee in January 2013. Committee agreed that more work should be 
undertaken to better understand the impact of relocating the Station taxi rank to 
Frederick Place, and that feasibility work should be carried out on options relating 
to the Station canopy to enable a decision to be made on these aspects of the 
scheme at March 2013 Transport Committee (subsequently rescheduled to April 
2013).  

 
1.3 This report summarises that additional work and requests that the preferred 

scheme be progressed to delivery. The preferred scheme delivers a host of 
benefits around the station’s southern entrance including enhanced cycling and 
pedestrian facilities, simplified junctions and crossings, an enhanced, de-
cluttered environment, enhanced bus provision and new taxi drop off facilities.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

 
That the Committee:- 

 
2.1 Instructs the Executive Director Environment, Development and Housing to  

progress to detailed design a preferred scheme that retains taxis in their current 
location (as set out in Appendix 5) and to advertise any necessary traffic 
regulation orders (TROs).  

 

93



2.2 Instructs the Executive Director Environment, Development and Housing to 
implement the detailed design subject to the outcome of the statutory TRO 
consultation process 

 
2.3 Instructs the Executive Director Environment, Development and Housing towork 

with other relevant partners to develop a Taxi Management Plan that will ensure 
the station taxi rank is properly managed in future.  

 
 
2.4 Agrees that a decision on the future of the Station Canopy be deferred, subject to 

receipt of a future Network Rail planning application. 
 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 In November 2010 Cabinet granted approval to undertake work that would lead 

to the enhancement of the environment around Brighton Station. The project 
sought a design solution that improved the station environment as a welcome, a 
place and an interchange: an aspiration supported by all political parties.  

 
3.2 In January 2012 officers updated the Environment, Transport & Sustainability 

Cabinet Members Meeting (CMM) on the results of public scoping consultation. 
CMM agreed that design options should be developed and shared with the public 
through full consultation. 
 

3.3 Feedback from design options consultation was reported to Transport Committee 
in July 2012. Committee agreed that an amalgamated preferred option should be 
developed based on the positive and negative comments received relating to all 
the various options. This preferred option would be presented back to Committee 
in October 2012, where members would make a decision as to whether the 
proposed preferred option should be progressed to full public consultation. 

 
3.4 Officers worked with stakeholders between August and September to develop a 

preferred scheme for the space to the south of the Station that could form the 
basis of public consultation. At Transport Committee in October 2012, members 
agreed that this should form the basis of a final stage of consultation, and that 
officers should report back in January 2013 with the results of consultation. 

 
3.5 Consultation on the preferred option took place in late 2012. Feedback was 

reported back to Transport Committee in January 2013. Compared with previous 
stages of consultation, levels of feedback were reasonably low. Most of the 
feedback focused on the impact of moving the taxi rank into Frederick Place. A 
secondary focus of interest was proposed changes to the station canopy.  

 
3.6 Officers felt that concerns around the proposed taxi rank relocation warranted 

further investigative work and recommended that additional time was granted to 
properly investigate, quantify and where possible resolve consultee concerns in 
order to enable members to make a more informed decision as to how the 
project should be progressed at Transport Committee in March 2013 
(subsequently rescheduled to April 2013). 

 

94



 
 
 
 
 
Conclusions of Additional Work 
 
Frederick Place 
 
3.7 Since January 2013 work to better understand the impacts of placing a taxi rank 

in Frederick Place has been undertaken with the support of representatives from 
the taxi trade and the council’s transport modeling consultancy, JMP. A copy of 
JMP’s report, outlining their findings, is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
3.8 JMP’s report suggests that concerns raised during consultation around the 

relocation of the taxi rank to Frederick Place could be resolved by a mixture of 
design, introduction of a voluntary code of practice for taxi drivers, and 
introduction of a marshal (which would necessitate revenue funding of 
approximately £20,000 per annum).   

 
3.9 The report supports the concern raised during consultation as to the suitability of 

Trafalgar Lane for accommodating increased numbers of southbound traffic. The 
report suggests two alternative transport arrangements that could enable the 
Frederick Place taxi rank to be accommodated. However both restrict some 
vehicle access and/or create some increases in traffic on residential streets 
between Gloucester Road and Trafalgar Street. The potential for negative impact 
would be greater if the taxi rank did not operate as expected. 

 
3.10 Significantly there has been ongoing opposition to the proposals from sections of 

the North Laine community, particularly from the North Laine Community and 
Traders Associations. A letter from the Traders Association is attached as 
Appendix 2: an e-petition against the taxi relocation has also been signed by 217 
people. If the options investigated had positive outcomes for the North Laine – 
such as significantly lowering levels of traffic - it would be easier to make a case 
for moving ahead with Frederick Place. However this is not the case, and it is 
therefore recommended that the Frederick Place option is not pursued. 

 
North of the Station 
 
3.11 Initial analysis of taxi locations identified a number of inherent issues with 

relocating taxis to the north of the station. However, throughout the consultation 
processes, a number of residents have expressed a preference for pursuing this 
option. In March, officers met with Southern Railway to ascertain whether 
Southern would reconsider relocating taxis to the north of the Station. Southern 
had expressed reluctance to relocate taxis to the north for operational reasons – 
particularly due to potential conflict with replacement bus services, and have 
reaffirmed these concerns.  

 
Keeping Taxis in their Current Location 
 
3.12  Keeping taxis in their current location also raises issues. The issues are largely 

operational and ambient. Primarily the presence of large numbers of taxis directly 

95



outside the station leads to conflict with other users of the space. Certain aspects 
of existing carriageway design contribute to congestion in the wider area. These 
issues are exacerbated by the lack of management of the taxi rank. The detailed 
design process will look to resolve engineering issues which exacerbate taxi 
conflict issues, informed by a taxi management plan which will be developed with 
partner agencies. Southern Railway’s written confirmation of their commitment to 
better manage the taxi rank in future is attached as Appendix 3.  

 
3.13 Retaining taxis in their current location does not have a significant impact on the 

physical layout of the core southern environmental improvement. The road into 
the taxi rank area needed to be retained for servicing access and wider 
improvements, such as improved pedestrian and cycle facilities and simplified 
junctions in Queens Road, Surrey Street, Gloucester Road and Junction Road 
can be delivered irrespective of where taxis are located.  
 

Benefits 
 
3.14 The scheme vision was agreed with a representative group of Stakeholders on 

project commencement.   The section below illustrates how each element of the 
Vision will be realised. 

 
A fitting welcome to the city 
The first impression of the city upon leaving the Station is dominated by complex 
traffic infrastructure and associated clutter (such as guard-railing and traffic 
signals). It is this infrastructure that has the greatest negative impact on the 
environment around the Station. By simplifying the carriageway design, the 
impact of traffic infrastructure will be greatly reduced, enabling positive elements 
of the environment to take precedence.  

 
3.15 An efficient interchange 

Formalising the current temporary gyratory road system, which was established 
to accommodate development of the Old Bingo Hall, will enable simplification of 
junctions, improving traffic flow and enabling easier crossing for cyclists and 
pedestrians. The gyratory system will also enable carriageway space to be 
reduced – significantly enhancing provision for pedestrians (the main users of the 
space) without any detrimental impact on vehicular traffic. The rebalancing of 
space will also enable a cycle contra-flow to be provided in Queens Road. Cycle 
parking is due to be enhanced by Southern Railway’s efforts to deliver a 
dedicated cycle parking facility at the north of the Station. Bus and taxi services 
will be retained outside the Station’s southern entrance in a simpler arrangement 
which complements rather than dominates the environment.  

 
3.16 A high quality public place 

As with the welcome to the city, the main way in which the public places around 
the station can be improved is by removing the elements that currently have the 
greatest negative impact on the environment (those relating to the overly 
complex traffic infrastructure).  The simplified traffic arrangement will enable 
widened footways which provide opportunities for businesses lining Queens 
Road to create outdoor activity areas. Improving the environment is also likely to 
encourage investment from business owners (as has happened in New Road). 
Where possible tree planting will be introduced to bring additional aesthetic 
benefit.   

96



 
3.17 Further details of how the scheme’s objectives will be met are contained in 

Appendix 6. 
 
3.18 Therefore, it is recommended that the preferred option previously presented to 

Transport Committee in October 2012 is progressed towards implementation, 
incorporating the amendment or taxis being retained in their current location 
(Appendix 5). 

 
Cost & Wider Investment 
 
3.19 A cost estimate has been prepared for the scheme. Physical works are expected 

to cost in the region of £1.5million, including design fees and a contingency of 
20%. This estimate is consistent with costs assumed at scheme outset, and the 
provisional Local Transport Plan.  

 
3.20 The proposals for Station Gateway form an integral part of wider regeneration of 

and investment in the Station and surrounding area.  
 
3.21 Within the station Southern Railway are currently carrying out £4.9m of 

enhancements with works targeted for completion by the end of the current year.   
In addition the council is committed to supporting Southern Railway and Network 
Rail in reopening one or both of the historic entrances from the Station to 
Trafalgar Street.   The council is also working with English Heritage and rail 
partners to assess the costings and practicality of enhancing the station forecourt 
by improving or removing the canopy. 

 
3.22 To the north of the station Southern Railway has now secured funding of £850K 

for a dedicated cycle hub and a planning application is being prepared.    
In addition S106 funding in excess of £300K has been secured to enable 
improvements to be made to the area directly outside the north of the station, 
and design will progress following the outcome of the Cycle Hub planning 
decision.  

 
3.23 In the surrounding area development of New England Quarter Block J, to the 

immediate east of the northern Station Entrance, is currently ongoing. As well as 
providing new office, hotel and residential space, Block J will incorporate direct 
connections between the northern Station entrance and Anne St / London Road.   
To the south the new Ibis Hotel on Queen’s Road is near completion. 

 
3.24 Further details on these wider works are set out in Appendix 4.  
 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The Station Gateway project process has been undertaken in line with 

Community Engagement Framework and Standards. This report seeks to 
address issues and concerns arising from full public consultation on the preferred 
Station Gateway proposal. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 

97



 
5.1 The Station Gateway project is funded from the Local Transport plan capital 

budget. This includes a budget of £400,000 for 2013/14. There are provisional 
allocations of £900,000 for 2014/15 and £500,000 for 2015/16.  The overall 
provisional allocation includes funds for the works outlined in this report, wider 
improvements (such as a contribution towards the cycle parking hub and 
potential re-opening of one / both of the Trafalgar Street entrances) and design 
fees. The costs of improvements to the south of the station will need to be 
managed within these allocations. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 03/04/2013 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 As the Highways and Traffic Authority the Council has powers to make the 

alterations and improvements outlined in this report. Any necessary traffic 
regulation orders will need to be advertised in accordance with the statutory 
requirements and if there are objections these will need to be considered at a 
future meeting of the Transport Committee. 

 
The Council is under a legal duty as a public authority to consider the human 
rights implications of its actions. Parking and traffic restrictions have the potential 
to affect the right to respect for family and private life and the right to protection of 
property. These are qualified rights which means they may be restricted where 

 this is for a legitimate aim, necessary and proportionate. 
 
 Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 18/04/13 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 The project improves the accessibility of the environment for all through 

measures such as simplifying road crossings (the current arrangement has been 
described as one of the worst in the city for visually impaired people) and 
creating accessible taxi drop off facilities. An accessibility audit will be 
undertaken during the process of developing detailed design. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The enhancement project will promote sustainable transport, and particularly 

overcome current barriers to walking and cycling in the vicinity of the station. 
Sustainable construction practises and materials will be used where possible. 
The improvements will enhance the built environment and, through albeit indirect 
links to the greenway, contribute towards enhanced natural habitats and wildlife 
conditions. By improving the station as a welcome to the city and improving the 
immediate environment for businesses, the scheme will contribute to enhancing 
the local economy at a micro and macro scale.  

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 

98



5.5 Stakeholder consultation has identified the need for any improvements delivered 
by the Station Gateway project to enhance real and perceived safety in the area, 
especially later in the day. The design process will seek to deliver this objective. 

 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 Due to the large number of stakeholders the primary risk was that stakeholder 

support would not be achieved.   A significant amount of consultation has taken 
place during the design process and there is now a reasonable confidence that 
the proposal is supported by the majority of stakeholders. 

 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7 By tackling the poor quality of the existing public realm around the station, the 

project will overcome issues impacting on public health including air and noise 
pollution. The project will also enhance living and working conditions and 
contribute towards a healthy and sustainable place and community. 

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 Enhancing the station as a place, interchange and welcome will contribute 

towards the Corporate Plan objectives of tackling inequality and creating a more 
sustainable city, whilst the design process will contribute towards the objective of 
engaging people who live and work in the city.    

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 During the course of the Station Gateway project, every potential location for the 

taxi rank has been considered. The only remaining alternative options are to 
have no taxi provision at the Station, or to abandon all attempts to improve the 
wider Station environment. 

 
6.2 It is considered that significant benefits can still be achieved by retaining the taxi 

rank in its current location.  
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 Reasons for the recommendation not to pursue the Frederick Place rank are set 

out in the main body of the report (3.7 to 3.10) 
 
7.2 All alternative options for taxi rank locations in the vicinity of the station have 

been tested. None have been identified as currently suitable. Therefore the 
report recommends that the wider Station Gateway improvements are 
progressed with taxis retained in their existing location. Better management of 
the taxi rank and changes to the design of the station environment should reduce 
many of the negative impacts of the existing rank on the station area. 

 
7.3 The preferred scheme is still offers significant benefits in line with the project 

vision and objectives previously agreed by the council. The benefits achieved 
against original objectives are summarised in Appendix 6. In order to capture 
those benefits as quickly as possible, it is recommended that Committee agree 
that the scheme should now progress to detailed design ahead of physical 
implementation. 

99



 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. JMP report into the implications of a Frederick Place taxi rank. 
 
2. Letter of objection to the Frederick Place taxi rank from the North Laine Traders 

Association. 
 
3.  Southern Railway’s written confirmation of their commitment to better manage 

the taxi rank in future. 
 
4. Wider Station Phases. 
 
5. Revised Proposal. 
 
6. Benefits achieved by the scheme against original vision & objectives. 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. None 
 

100



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 –
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 S
tu

d
y

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

1
s
t
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

101



2

J
M

P
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 L
im

it
e

d

3
 H

a
rb

o
u

r 
E

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 S
q

u
a

re

L
o

n
d

o
n

 E
1

4
 9

G
E

T
 0

2
0
 7

5
3

6
 8

0
4

0

F
 0

2
0
 7

0
0

5
 0

4
6

2

E
 d

o
c
k
la

n
d
s
@

jm
p

.c
o

.u
k

w
w

w
.j
m

p
.c

o
.u

k

J
o

b
 N

o
. 

S
T

1
3

3
0

5

R
e

p
o
rt

 N
o

. 
1

P
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y
 T

H

V
e

ri
fi
e

d
 C

S

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 C

S

S
ta

tu
s
 D

ra
ft

Is
s
u

e
 N

o
. 

1

D
a
te

 2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

102



C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

P
a
g
e
 5

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t
h
e

 N
o

rt
h

 L
a
in

e
p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

P
a
g
e
 6

C
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

P
a
g
e
 8

S
tu

d
y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

P
a
g
e
 9

S
tu

d
y
 M

e
th

o
d
o

lo
g

y
P

a
g
e
 1

1

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
P

a
g
e
 1

3

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

P
a

rk
in

g
P

a
g
e
 1

7

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

S
p
e
e
d
s

P
a
g
e
 1

8

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

1
2
 H

o
u

r 
tr

a
ff
ic

 v
o

lu
m

e
s

P
a
g
e
 1

9

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

P
e
a
k
 H

o
u
r 

T
ra

ff
ic

 V
o

lu
m

e
s
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 o
f 
T

ra
ff
ic

 
P

a
g
e
 2

1

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

O
th

e
r 

K
e

y
 S

ta
k
e
h
o

ld
e

rs
P

a
g
e
 2

3

S
c
h
e

m
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 T

a
x
i 
 F

e
e
d
e

r 
R

a
n
k
s

P
a
g
e
 2

4

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
O

p
ti
o
n
s
 –

Im
p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
e
d
 s

c
h
e

m
e

P
a
g
e
 2

8

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
O

p
ti
o
n
s
 –

P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

P
a
g
e
 2

9

A
d

v
a
n

ta
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 D

is
a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
P

re
fe

rr
e
d

 O
p
ti
o
n
s

P
a
g
e
 3

1

U
s
e

r 
Im

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
P

re
fe

rr
e
d

 O
p

ti
o
n
s

P
a
g
e
 3

2

C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

P
a
g
e
 3

4

3

103



4

A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 A
  
–

T
ra

v
is

 P
e

rk
in

s
 C

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 B
 –

R
o

y
a

l 
M

a
il 

C
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 C
 –

T
ra

ff
ic

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
o

f 
C

o
n
s
u

lt
e
d
 S

c
h
e

m
e

104



5

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 –

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 P

ro
je

c
t

5

F
ig

u
re

 1
 -

 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 f
o

r 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 –

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 

S
c

h
e

m
e

S
c
h

e
m

e
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

D
u
ri
n
g
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

a
n
d
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
, 

a
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 

th
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 

w
a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
o
f 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

T
h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 r

e
lo

c
a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
ta

x
i 
ra

n
k
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

d
 r

a
n
k
 w

o
u
ld

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e

 a
 p

ic
k
 u

p
 a

re
a
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 

s
ta

ti
o
n
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
n
o
rt

h
b

o
u
n
d
 
fe

e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k
 
o
n
 
F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 

P
la

c
e
 i

n
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 

T
h
e
 f

e
e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 u

ti
lis

e
 t

h
e
 

w
e
s
te

rn
 
e
n
d
 
o
f 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

(b
e
lo

w
 
th

e
 
T

ra
fa

lg
a

r 
S

tr
e
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r-

c
ro

ft
).

 
T

h
e
 

re
v
is

e
d
 

ta
x
i 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te

d
 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

tr
a
ff
ic

 m
o
v
in

g
 i
n
, 

o
u
t 

a
n
d

th
ro

u
g
h
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 l
a
te

 2
0
1
2
.

T
h
e
 

in
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

ta
x
i 

ra
n
k
 

a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 

in
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

c
a
n
 

b
e
 

s
e

e
n
 

in
 

F
ig

u
re

 1
. 

T
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 
s
a
w

 
a
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 
ra

is
e
d
, 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 
fr

o
m

 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 
N

o
rt

h
 
L
a
in

e
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

a
s
 
to

 
th

e
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 

P
la

c
e
 

ta
x
i 

ra
n
k
 

a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
is

 
re

p
o
rt

 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

s
 
th

e
 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
o
f 

th
e
 
s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 
ta

x
i 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

a
is

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 t

a
x
i 
ra

n
k
 t

o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
.

105



D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

L
a

in
e

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 

to
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 

s
h
o
w

n
 

in
 

F
ig

u
re

 
2
 

w
a
s
 

g
iv

e
n
 

a
t 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 

to
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
, 

a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
ta

k
in

g
 
p
la

c
e
, 

th
e
 

N
o
rt

h
 
L
a
in

e
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
w

e
re

 
a
d
ju

s
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

a
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

s
a
w

 
v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

in
to

 
N

o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 f

ro
m

 C
h
e
a
p
s
id

e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

o
u
th

-

w
e
s
tb

o
u
n
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 
in

 
N

o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

to
 

th
e
 

N
o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
n
d
 

T
ra

d
e
rs

 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

d
e
s
ir
e
 
w

a
s
 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 
to

 
re

ta
in

 
th

is
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 n
o
rt

h
. 

F
ig

u
re

 2
 -

 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 O

ri
g

in
a

l 
S

c
h

e
m

e

106



D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 S
c

h
e

m
e

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

l

A
s
 

a
 

re
s
u
lt
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

fr
o
m

 
C

h
e
a
p
s
id

e
 

w
a
s
 

re
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
th

is
 

c
re

a
te

d
 

th
e
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 

th
e
 

s
o
u
th

b
o
u
n
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 r

e
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
in

 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 
G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
. 

In
 
a
 
b
id

 
to

 

m
in

im
is

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

tr
a
ff
ic

 o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

O
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 K

e
m

p
 

S
tr

e
e
ts

, 
a
n
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 b
ri
e
f 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h
 T

ra
v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
 

w
a
s
 

o
n
ly

 
b
lo

c
k
e
d
 

b
y
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
 s

h
o
rt

 p
e
ri
o
d
 e

v
e
ry

 F
ri
d
a
y
 m

o
rn

in
g
, 

th
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
th

a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 w

a
s
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
. 

T
h
e
 

b
a
s
is

 
o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

w
a
s
 

th
a
t 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
 

w
o
u
ld

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 l
o
c
a
l 

w
e
s
tb

o
u
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 l

iv
in

g
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
, 

w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 

m
o
re

 c
o
n
v
o
lu

te
d
 r

o
u
te

 w
o
u
ld

 d
is

s
u
a
d
e
 r

a
t-

ru
n
n
in

g
 f

ro
m

 w
id

e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

ra
ff

ic
. 

A
n
 i

llu
s
tr

a
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i

s

s
h
o
w

n
 

in
 

F
ig

u
re

 
3
. 

T
h
is

 
c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ts

 
th

e
 

p
la

n
 

s
h
o
w

n
 

in
 

F
ig

u
re

 1
.

F
ig

u
re

 3
 -

 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 S

ta
ti

o
n

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 T
a
x
i 
R

a
n

k
 R

e
lo

c
a

ti
o

n

107



8

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
to

o
k
 

p
la

c
e
 

in
 

la
te

 
2
0
1
2
. 

A
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
e
re

 
ra

is
e
d
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 

th
e
 

im
p
a

c
t 

o
f 

re
lo

c
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

a
x
i 

ra
n
k
 t

o
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 c

a
n
 b

ro
a
d
ly

 

b
e
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
d
 

in
to

 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

a
c
tu

a
l 

ta
x
i 

ra
n

k
, 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

re
v
e
rs

in
g
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 t

o
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 t

a
x
i 
ra

n
k
 o

n
 w

id
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
tr

a
ff
ic

 f
lo

w
. 

T
a
x
i 

R
a
n

k
 C

o
n

c
e
rn

s
: 

T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

c
o
m

m
o
n
ly

 c
it
e
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

n
o
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

a
n
k
 

w
e
re

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

ir
 a

n
d
 n

o
is

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 (

2
0
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
),

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f

ta
x
is

 
s
p
ill

in
g
 

/ 
th

e
 

ra
n
k
 

s
p
re

a
d
in

g
 

in
to

 
a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 
(1

3
) 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

o
f 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 

P
la

c
e
 

to
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
te

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
ta

x
is

 (
1
2
).

  
O

th
e
r 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
s
e
v
e
ra

l 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

p
e
o
p
le

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 
a
 
ra

n
k
 
b
e
in

g
 

c
o
n
tr

a
ry

 t
o
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
’s

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
tu

s
 (

6
),

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

 

a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 r

a
n
k
 o

b
s
tr

u
c
ti
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 /

 s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 /

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 (

6
),

 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 
(5

),
 

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 

/ 
b
lo

c
k
a
g
e
s
 

(5
) 

a
n
d
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 

tu
rn

in
g

 
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 

ta
x
is

 

tu
rn

in
g
 l
e
ft
 a

t 
th

e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 e
n
d
 o

f 
F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e

 (
5
).

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

W
id

e
r 

T
ra

ff
ic

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

s

2
9
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
w

e
re

 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 

w
id

e
r 

tr
a
ff
ic

 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 

p
la

c
in

g
 a

 t
a
x
i 

ra
n
k
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 

M
o
s
t 

c
o
m

m
o
n
ly

 c
it
e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
(1

3
),

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

ra
t 

ru
n
n
in

g
 

(1
0
),

 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 

(9
) 

a
n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 (

4
).

 

4
4
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
e
re

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

/ 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 
T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
 

a
s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 (

to
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
) 

n
o
rt

h
 –

s
o
u
th

 r
o
u
te

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 
N

 
L
a
in

e
. 

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 
c
e
n
tr

e
d
 
o
n
 
n
a
rr

o
w

n
e
s
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
s
tr

e
e
t 

to
 

c
o
p
e
 w

it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

ra
ff
ic

, 
la

c
k
 o

f 
p
a
s
s
in

g
 p

la
c
e
s
 w

h
e
n
 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

w
a
s
 b

lo
c
k
e
d
 b

y
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

(d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
ig

h
t 

c
o
rn

e
r)

 f
ro

m
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t.

9
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
e
re

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 r

e
v
e
rs

a
l 
o
f 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 S

tr
e
e
t.
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

u
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 
S

tr
e
e
t 

in
to

 
N

o
rt

h
 
R

o
a
d
 
a
s
 
w

e
ll 

a
s
 
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

o
v
e
r 

a
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
e
tc

. 

108



9

S
tu

d
y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

A
im

s
 a

n
d

 O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

T
h
e
 
a
im

 
o
f 

th
e
 
s
tu

d
y
 
is

 
to

 
b
u

ild
 
o
n
 
th

e
 
w

o
rk

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 
to

 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

a
n
d
 

ta
k
e
 

in
to

 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

a
is

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tu
d
y
 i
s
 t

o
 :

 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

a
is

e
d

 d
u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
; 

a
n

d
 

w
h
e
re

 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 
p
ro

v
e
 
to

 
b
e
 
v
a
lid

, 
c
o
m

e
 
u
p
 
w

it
h
 
w

a
y
s
 
in

 

w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

c
a
n
 b

e
 o

v
e
rc

o
m

e
 t

o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 r

a
n
k
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d

9

C
o

n
te

x
t

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

in
 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
3
. 

It
 
w

a
s
 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

re
v
e
rs

in
g
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 S

tr
e
e
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
* 

b
u
t 

th
a
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r

w
o
rk

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

to
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 

th
e
 

w
id

e
r 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 
ra

is
e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 
a
 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 
b
e
in

g
 
m

a
d
e
 
a
s
 
to

 
h
o
w

 
th

e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 

*D
u
ri
n
g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

o
v
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 
in

 
F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

a
ls

o
 

id
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 

lik
e
ly

c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 t

u
rn

in
g
 r

ig
h
t 

fr
o
m

 F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 S

tr
e
e
t 

in
to

 

N
o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 q

u
e
u
in

g
 i
n

 N
o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
o
r 

le
a
v
e
 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

. 
A

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i

n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

m
a
k
in

g
 

th
e
 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 

/ 
Q

u
e
e
n
s
 

R
o
a
d
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 

2
 

w
a
y
 

w
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
to

 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 w
e
s
t.

109



1
0

S
tu

d
y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

M
a
p
 o

f 
S

tu
d
y
 A

re
a

S
tu

d
y
 A

re
a

T
h
e
 

s
tu

d
y
 

a
re

a
 

is
 

th
e
 

N
o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
a
re

a
 

o
f 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 

b
o
u
n
d
e
d
 

b
y
 

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t,
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 

Y
o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 /

 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
P

la
c
e
 
to

 
th

e
 
e
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 
G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 
to

 
th

e
 
s
o
u
th

. 
A

m
a
p
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 F

ig
u

re
  
4
 b

e
lo

w
. 

110



1
1

S
tu

d
y
 M

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

1
1

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 w

e
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 

k
e
y
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

e
y
s
 i
n
to

 N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 F

ig
u

re
 5

.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

p
a
tt
e
rn

s
 

o
f 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

a
 

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 o

th
e
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i

n
 N

o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
c
a
n
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
.

T
h
e
 
d
a
ta

 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 
o
n
 
a
 
w

e
e
k
d
a

y
 
a
n
d
 
w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 
in

 
D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
:

-T
ra

ff
ic

 
v
o
lu

m
e
s
 
in

 
th

e
 
N

o
rt

h
 
L
a
in

e
a
re

a
 
o
n
 
a
 
s
tr

e
e
t 

b
y
 
s
tr

e
e
t 

b
a
s
is

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

u
to

m
a
ti
c
 t

ra
ff
ic

 c
o
u
n
ts

1
; 

a
n

d

-T
ra

ff
ic

 r
o
u
ti
n
g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 a

re
a
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

ri
g
in

a
n
d
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s

2

1
A

u
to

m
a
ti
c
 t

ra
ff
ic

 c
o
u
n
ts

 a
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 d

u
c
ts

/l
o
o
p
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

tr
e
e
ts

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 

c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 
s
p
e

e
d
 
a
n

d
 
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 
p
a
s
s
in

g
 
o

v
e
r 

th
e
 
d
u
c
ts

/l
o
o
p
s
 
o
v
e
r 

a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 p

e
ri

o
d
.

2
O

ri
g

in
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o

n
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 

a
re

 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 

b
y
 

u
s
in

g
 

A
u
to

m
a
ti
c
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

P
la

te
 

R
e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
 (

A
N

P
R

) 
c
a
m

e
ra

s
. 

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
te

s
 a

re
 m

a
tc

h
e
d
 i

n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 t

ra
v
e

lli
n
g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

w
o
 p

o
in

ts
.

F
ig

u
re

 5
 –

 S
u

rv
e

y
 L

o
c
a
ti

o
n

s

111



1
2

S
tu

d
y
 M

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

1
2

K
e
y
 S

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

T
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 
re

v
e

a
le

d
 
a
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
  

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 

In
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 

o
b
ta

in
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

m
o
re

 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
k
e
y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 t

h
o
u
g
h
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

, 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
:-

•
R

o
y
a
l 
M

a
il 

D
e
p
o
t 

lo
c
a
te

d
 o

ff
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d

•T
ra

v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

ff
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e

•O
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 a

t 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

H
o
u
s
e
, 

C
la

re
m

o
n
t 

H
o
u
s
e
, 

A
s
p
e
c
t 

H
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 A

lb
e
rt

 H
o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 /

 s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 y

a
rd

s
 

o
n
to

 F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
.

•T
a
x
i 
G

ro
u
p
s

W
e
 

a
ls

o
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 

th
e
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 

IB
IS

 

H
o
te

l 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 o

n
 Q

u
e
e
n

s
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 f
u
tu

re
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
e
s

o
n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
.

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
p

o
s

a
ls

 f
o

r 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e

U
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

d
a
ta

 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 

tr
a
ff

ic
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
, 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

s
it
e
 

v
is

it
s
, 

tr
a

ff
ic

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

a
 t

a
x
i 
fe

e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 /

 T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 a

 p
ic

k
 

u
p

 /
 s

e
t 

d
o
w

n
 a

re
a
 o

n
 J

u
n

c
ti
o
n
 R

o
a
d
.

T
h
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 
w

a
s
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
a
ro

u
n
d
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 
th

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 k

e
y
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 T

a
b
le

 1
 b

e
lo

w
:-

T
a

b
le

 
1
 
–

 
K

e
y
 
C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 
In

 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 
O

p
ti

o
n

s
 
fo

r 
N

o
rt

h
 

L
a

in
e

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

T
a
x
is

G
e

n
e

ra
l

T
ra

ff
ic

A
ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

D
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 

S
e

rv
ic

in
g
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 

fe
e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 N
o
rt

h
 

L
a

in
e

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 o

n
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

ro
u
ti
n
g
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 

T
a
x
i 

c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o
n

 

p
a
tt
e

rn
s

L
o
c
a

l 
a
n
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 T
ra

ff
ic

 

Im
p
a
c
ts

T
a
x
i 

M
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t

R
o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 

v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 

c
o
n
fl
ic

ts

T
a
x
i 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 a

n
d
 a

lo
n
g
 

th
e
 r

a
n
k

112



1
3

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 –

O
v
e

rv
ie

w

N
o

rt
h

 L
a
in

e
 -

 G
e
n

e
ra

l

N
o
rt

h
 
L
a
in

e
is

 
a
 
s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 
a
n
d
 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
in

c
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
. 

It
 i
s
 h

o
m

e
 t

o
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e

n
t 

re
ta

ile
rs

,

p
u
b
s
, 

c
a
fé

s
, 

th
e
a
tr

e
s
 

a
n
d
 

m
u
s
e
u
m

s
, 

it
 

is
 

re
g
a
rd

e
d
 

a
s
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
's

 b
o
h
e
m

ia
n
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 B
ri
g

h
to

n
 r

a
il 

s
ta

ti
o
n
 

is
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

th
e
 g

a
te

w
a
y
 r

a
il 

s
ta

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 s

in
c
e
 i
t 

w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 

1
8
4
0
.

F
ig

u
re

 6
 -

 
G

lo
u

c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a

d
, 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
F

ig
u

re
 7

 -
 F

re
d

e
ri

c
k
 P

la
c
e
, 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e

F
re

d
e
ri

c
k
 P

la
c
e

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 o

n
e
 w

a
y
 s

o
u
th

b
o
u

n
d
 a

n
d
 

h
a
s
 
a
 
m

ix
 
o
f 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
ra

n
g
in

g
 
fr

o
m

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
y
a
rd

s
 

a
n
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 R

o
a
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 
w

e
s
te

rn
 
s
id

e
 
to

 
a
 
m

ix
 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

a
n
d
 
c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

u
s
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 s

id
e
. 

T
h
e
 P

ri
n
c
e
 A

lb
e
rt

 p
u
b
 i

s
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t.
 T

h
e
re

 

a
re

 d
o
u
b
le

 y
e
llo

w
 l

in
e
s
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

le
n
g
th

 o
f 

F
re

d
e
ri

c
k
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i

n
fo

rm
a
l 

lo
a
d

in
g
 a

n
d
 u

n
lo

a
d
in

g
 t

a
k
e

s
 p

la
c
e
 

to
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
 d

re
y
. 

113



1
4

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 –

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
F

ig
u

re
 8

 –
 K

e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 N
o

rt
h

 L
a

in
e

F
ig

u
re

 9
 -

 T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n

e
, 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e

O
v

e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

, 
K

e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 T
id

y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n

d
 K

e
n

s
in

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e

O
v
e

r 
S

t,
 K

e
m

p
 S

t,
 T

id
y
 S

t 
a

n
d

 K
e

n
s
in

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

re
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

s
tr

e
e
ts

. 
O

v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 K

e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
o
th

 o
p
e
ra

te
 o

n
e
 w

a
y
 

n
o
rt

h
b
o
u
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
ru

n
 
p
a
ra

lle
l 

to
 
F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 
P

la
c
e
 
w

h
ils

t 
T

id
y
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 K

e
n
s
in

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

re
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

te
 

in
 

a
 

s
o
u
th

 
to

 
n
o

rt
h
 

lo
o
p
. 

P
a
rk

in
g
 

is
 

ti
g
h
tl
y
 

c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 

w
it
h
 

a
ll 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 
c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 
p
a

rk
in

g
 
a
n
d
 

s
o
m

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 p

e
rm

it
 a

n
d
 2

 h
o
u
r 

p
a
y
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 b

a
y
s
. 

O
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 K

e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
o
th

 a
llo

w
 b

i 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
y
c
lin

g
. 

A
 t

y
p
ic

a
l 

la
y
o
u
t 

fo
r 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 

in
 F

ig
u
re

 8
 o

f 
K

e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 F

ig
u
re

 7
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 

ta
x
i 

ra
n
k
. 

T
a
x
is

 w
o
u
ld

 j
o
in

 t
h
e
 r

a
n
k
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n

tu
rn

 

le
ft
 o

n
 t

o
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

(u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 b

ri
d
g
e
) 

b
e
fo

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

 p
ic

k
 

u
p
 p

o
in

t 
in

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 o

n
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

114



1
5

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 –

O
v
e

rv
ie

w

F
ig

u
re

 1
0
 -

 
T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n

e
, 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n

e

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 
T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
 
is

 
a
n
 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 
tw

o
 
w

a
y
 
ro

u
te

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
, 

 i
t 

c
a
n
 o

n
ly

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 

s
in

g
le

 
w

a
y
 

w
o
rk

in
g
. 

A
 

T
ra

v
is

 
P

e
rk

in
s
 

o
u
tl
e
t 

is
 

lo
c
a

te
d
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 h

a
lf
 w

a
y
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 l

a
n
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 k
n
o
w

n
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

lo
a
d
in

g
 

/ 
u
n
lo

a
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 
th

is
 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 
is

s
u
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 
a
 
fa

c
e
-t

o
-f

a
c
e
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 
w

it
h
 
T

ra
v
is

 
P

e
rk

in
s
. 

T
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 m

in
u
te

s
 i

n
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 A
  

b
u
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:-

-T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

s
a
le

s
 a

re
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 a

 v
e
h
ic

le
 t

ri
p
 w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 a
 

s
m

a
ll 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
w

a
lk

 i
n
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

. 

-
B

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 t
h
ir
d
 a

n
d
 a

 h
a
lf
 o

f 
a

ll 
s
a
le

s
, 

re
q
u
ir
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 t
o
 

c
o
lle

c
t 

g
o
o
d
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
. 

T
h
is

 e
q
u
a
te

s
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
w

h
e
re

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

3
7
 a

n
d
 2

0
6
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k
. 

-T
h
e
 b

u
s
ie

s
t 

ti
m

e
 i
s
 m

id
-m

o
rn

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 9

a
m

 a
n
d
 m

id
d
a
y
. 

-W
h
e
n
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 c
o
lle

c
t 

b
u
lk

ie
r 

it
e
m

s
 i
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 s

to
p
 a

n
d
 

lo
a
d
 g

o
o
d
s
 o

n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
. 

-T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 t

im
e
 i
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 5

-1
0
 m

in
u
te

s
 b

u
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

n
a
rr

o
w

  
w

id
th

 o
f 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
 w

h
e
n
 a

 v
e
h
ic

le
 s

to
p

s
 t

o
 l
o
a
d
 

g
o
o
d
s
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 b
lo

c
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

ro
o
m

 f
o
r

a
n
o
th

e
r 

v
e
h
ic

le
 t

o
 p

a
s
s
. 

-T
ra

v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 t
im

b
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
n
c
e
 a

 w
e
e

k
 o

n
 a

 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 .

 D
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 v

e
h
ic

le
, 
 t
h
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 p

a
rk

s
 o

n
 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
. 

T
h
e
 t

im
b
e
r 

is
 t

h
e
n
 u

n
lo

a
d
e
d
 v

ia
 f

o
rk

lif
t 

tr
u
c
k
 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
v
e
rs

e
s
 a

lo
n
g
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
 

-T
ra

v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 d
a
ily

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
ir
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

s
to

re
, 

w
h
ic

h
 b

ri
n
g
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
s
to

c
k
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 a

 

1
7
to

n
n
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 a

n
d
 u

n
lo

a
d
in

g
 w

ill
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
.

-
th

e
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
t 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 n

o
rt

h
 t

o
 s

o
u
th

 w
it
h
 K

e
m

p
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
u
th

 t
o
 n

o
rt

h
 r

o
u
te

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

a
re

a
. 

-L
o
c
a
l 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 d

ic
ta

te
s
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
e
 a

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
e
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 i
f 

th
e
 l
a

n
e
 i
s
 b

lo
c
k
e
d

b
y
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

u
rn

in
g
 i
n
. 

F
ig

u
re

s
 1

1
 t
o
 1

4
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 i
llu

s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
.

115



1
6

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 –

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
F

ig
u

re
1
1

 a
n

d
 1

2
  
- 

L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 o
n

 T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a

n
e

F
ig

u
re

 1
3
 a

n
d

 1
4
  
- 

L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 G

lo
u

c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d

116



1
7

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 –

P
a

rk
in

g

T
h
e
 
a
ff
e
c
te

d
 
N

o
rt

h
 
L
a
in

e
a
re

a
 
s
it
s
 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 
w

id
e
r 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 

A
re

a
 

Y
 

w
h
ic

h
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
e
s
 

n
o
rt

h
 

a
s
 

fa
r 

a
s
 

N
e
w

 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 e

a
s
t 

to
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
. 

1
1
6
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i

n
 K

e
m

p
 S

t,
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 S

t,
 O

v
e
r 

S
t,
 T

id
y
 S

t 
a
n
d

K
e
n
s
in

g
n
to

n
P

la
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 
p
e
rm

it
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
m

a
y
 

o
c
c
a
s
io

n
a
lly

 u
s
e
 v

is
it
o
r 

p
e
rm

it
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 (

b
a
y
s
 

a
re

 
n
o
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 
m

a
rk

e
d
) 

6
4
 
re

s
id

e
n

t 
p
a
rk

in
g
 
b
a

y
s
 
in

 
th

e
s
e
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 2

2
 s

h
a
re

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a
rk

in
g
 /

 p
a
y
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 b

a
y
s
.

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e
l 

to
 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

a
re

a
s
 o

n
 a

 f
a
ir
ly

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 f

in
d
 a

 p
a
rk

in
g
 b

a
y
. 

T
h
is

 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 b
u
t 

is
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 

.

117



E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 –

S
p

e
e

d
s

M
e
a
n

 S
p

e
e
d

s
 (

m
p

h
)

8
5
th

p
e

rc
e

n
ti

le
A

v
e
ra

g
e

F
o
u
n
d
ry

 S
tr

e
e
t

2
1

.7
1
7
.2

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e

2
3

.7
1
9
.3

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 S

tr
e
e
t

2
2

.4
1
6
.4

K
e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t

2
0

.8
1
6
.8

K
e
n
s
in

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e

1
5

1
2
.3

O
v
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t

3
1

.5
2
5
.1

Q
u

e
e
n

s
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

2
0

.1
1
5

S
y
d
n
e
y
 S

tr
e
e
t

2
6

.4
1
9
.1

T
id

y
 S

tr
e
e
t

2
0

.1
1
5
.4

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

1
9

.9
1
5
.7

U
p

p
e
r 

G
a
rd

n
e
r 

S
tr

e
e

t
1

7
.7

1
3
.1

A
V

E
R

A
G

E
2

1
.8

1
6
.9

1
8

In
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

v
e
h
ic

le
 s

p
e
e

d
s
 i

n
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 a

s
 

a
 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 
b
y
 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
In

 
o
rd

e
r 

to
 
q
u
a
n
ti
fy

 
th

is
, 

s
p
e
e
d
 
s
u
rv

e
y
 

d
a
ta

 w
a
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 A

u
to

m
a
ti
c
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

o
u
n
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

F
ig

u
re

 
4
 
(s

e
e
 
p
a
g
e
 
1
1
 
o
f 

th
e
 
re

p
o
rt

) 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 
 
th

e
 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f

th
e
s
e
 c

o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 T

a
b
le

 2
 (

o
p
p
o
s
it
e
) 

s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 s

p
e
e
d
s
 

fo
r 

ro
a
d
s
 i

n
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
in

 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 2

4
 

h
o
u
r 

w
e
e
k
d
a
y
 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 

T
h
e
 
8
5

th
p
e
rc

e
n
ti
le

 
s
p
e
e
d
 
(w

h
ic

h
 
is

 
th

e
 

s
p
e
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

8
5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 t

ra
ff
ic

 i
s
 t

ra
v
e
lli

n
g
 b

e
lo

w
) 

h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
, 

a
s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 o

ft
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 t

ra
ff
ic

 e
n
g
in

e
e
rs

 a
s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
m

o
d
if
y
in

g
 s

p
e
e
d
 l
im

it
s
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

ro
a
d
s
 
o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 
O

v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t,
 
th

e
 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 
s
p
e
e
d
 
is

 
le

s
s
 
th

a
n
 

2
0
m

p
h
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

ro
a
d
s
. 

8
5

th
p
e
rc

e
n
ti
le

 s
p
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 b

e
lo

w
 2

5
m

p
h
. 

T
h
e
 

ro
llo

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
m

p
h
 z

o
n
e
 f

o
r 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 8
 A

p
ri
l 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

p
e
e

d
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r.

 

O
v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

s
p
e
e
d
s
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
tr

e
e
ts

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 w
h
y
 f

ro
m

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

d
a

ta
. 

E
ls

e
w

h
e
re

, 
th

e
 

d
a
ta

 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 
th

a
t 

m
o
s
t 

d
ri
v
e
rs

 
a
re

 
tr

a
v
e
lli

n
g
 

w
it
h
in

 p
re

s
c
ri
b
e
d
 s

p
e
e
d
 l
im

it
s
.

T
a
b

le
 2

 –
 M

e
a
n

 a
n

d
 8

5
th

p
e
rc

e
n

ti
le

 t
ra

ff
ic

 s
p

e
e
d

s
 i

n
 N

o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e

118



1
9

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

1
2
 h

o
u
r 

T
ra

ff
ic

 V
o
lu

m
e
s

N
a
rr

a
ti

v
e
 o

n
 k

e
y
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n

ts
.

F
ig

u
re

 1
5

K
e
y

119



2
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 –

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
T

ra
ff

ic
 V

o
lu

m
e

s

B
a
se
li
n
e
S
ce
n
a
ri
o

N
e
tw

o
rk

F
lo
w
s

P
e
a
k
H
o
u
r
fl
o
w
s
(1
7
0
0

1
8
0
0
)

4
U

n
co

m
p
le

te
d
 T

ri
p
s

7
U

n
co

m
p
le

te
d
 T

ri
p
s

1
2

U
n

co
m

p
le

te
d
 T

ri
p
s

1
4
5

1
1
9

1
7
1

1
1
9

1
6
4

1
1
6

W
b

1
6
3

1
5
2

E
b

1
7
0

1
4
7

E
n

tr
y

E
x
it

2
8

1
6
7

1
2

8

1
7
0

E
n

tr
y

1
2

0
1
0

4
0

1
4
5

E
x
it

1
7

N
b

1
2

N
b

5
0

N
b

1
9
5

S
b

S
b

S
b

1
9

U
n

co
m

p
le

te
d
 T

ri
p
s

1

9
N

b

2
1

S
b

1
2
4

5
2

2
1

1
0

1
1
3

3
8

9

2
6

5
8

2
5

3
6

1
2

1
7

6
9

5
0

1
4

3
8

U
n

co
m

p
le

te
d
 T

ri
p
s

5
U

n
co

m
p
le

te
d
 T

ri
p
s

E
n

tr
y

1
3

U
n

co
m

p
le

te
d
 T

ri
p
s

1
5
0

E
x
it

2
4

N
b

5
0

N
b

1
4

N
b

0
S

b
S

b
S

b

Queen'sGardens

FrederickStreet

FoundryStreet

BlackmanStreet

WhitecrossStreet

PelhamStreet

FrederickPlace

OverStreet

KempStreet

TrafalgarLane

D

P

O

C

N
E

F
ig

u
re

 1
6

K
e
y

120



E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 –

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

ra
ff

ic
 V

o
lu

m
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

a
y

2
1

T
ra

ff
ic

 V
o
lu

m
e
s
 v

a
ry

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
 a

n
d
 h

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d

tr
a
ff

ic
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
P

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 i
t 

w
a
s
 

a
ls

o
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

ri
p
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 

in
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
, 

to
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a
te

 b
e

tw
e
e
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

ri
p
s
 (

d
ir
e
c
t)

 w
h
ic

h
 

in
 t

h
e
o
ry

 c
o

u
ld

 f
in

d
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 r

o
u
te

 (
p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 h

a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
e

a
s
t 

–
w

e
s
t 

tr
ip

s
 w

o
u

ld
 d

iv
e
rt

 t
o
 N

o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d
 /

 V
a
lle

y
 

G
a

rd
e

n
s
 f

o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
v
o
id

 N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
) 

a
n
d
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a
l 
tr

ip
s
 

re
la

te
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
/ 

re
ta

il 
n
e
e
d
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 u

n
lo

a
d
in

g
, 

s
h
o
rt

 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 p
a
rk

in
g
.

A
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 1

2
h
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 f
o
r 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
:-

5
8
%

 o
f 

tr
ip

s
 a

re
 d

ir
e
c
t,
 t

a
k
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 5

 m
in

u
te

s
 t

o
 c

ro
s
s
 t

h
e

n
e

tw
o
rk

, 

1
2
%

 w
e
re

 l
o
a
d
in

g
, 

ta
k
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 5

 a
n
d
 2

5
 m

in
u
te

s
 ,

1
5
%

 w
e
re

 s
h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

 p
a
rk

in
g
, 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

5
 m

in
u
te

s
 a

n
d
 2

 h
o
u
rs

 

(t
y
p
ic

a
l 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

 f
o
r 

s
h
o
rt

 s
ta

y
),

 

1
5
%

 w
e
re

 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 p
a
rk

in
g
, 

lo
n
g
e
r 

th
a
n
 2

 h
o
u
rs

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
d
ir
e
c
t 

tr
ip

s
 i
s
 f

a
ir
ly

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 

d
a
y
 (

re
fe

r 
to

 T
a
b

le
s
 3

 a
n

d
 4

 o
n
 n

e
x
t 
p
a
g
e
 b

re
a
k
d
o
w

n
),

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

ft
e
rn

o
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t

if
 

th
e
s
e
 t
ri
p
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 r

o
u
te

s
 t

h
e
re

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 d

a
y
. 

R
o
y
a
l 
M

a
il 

v
a
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
tr

a
ff

ic
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 
O

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
, 

R
o
y
a

l 

M
a
il 

v
a
n
s
 o

n
ly

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
3
.6

 %
 o

f 
a
ll 

tr
ip

s
, 

w
h
ils

t 
o
n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
 (

n
o
t 

s
h
o
w

n
) 

th
e
 f

ig
u
re

 i
s
 5

.8
%

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
o
w

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 
tr

ip
s
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
is

p
e
rs

e
d
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
M

a
il 

s
it
e

. 

121



T
a
b
le

s
 o

f 
T

ra
ff

ic
 V

o
lu

m
e
s

T
a
b
le
3

A
b
so
lu
te

T
ri
p
s
a
cr
o
ss

1
2
h
o
u
r
p
e
ri
o
d
–
F
re
d
e
ri
ck

P
la
ce

H
o
u
r
S
ta
rt
in
g

T
ri
p
T
y
p
e
s

D
ir
e
ct

Lo
a
d
in
g

Lo
n
g
st
a
y

S
h
o
rt
st
a
y

G
ra
n
d
T
o
ta
l

R
o
y
a
lM

a
il
V
a
n
s

7
2
0

1
2

1
1

9
5
2

1
0

8
5
1

1
8

2
6

1
9

1
1
4

2
4

9
9
5

2
3

4
5

2
9

1
9
2

1
1

1
0

5
2

2
5

2
6

2
3

1
2
6

1
4

1
1

7
7

1
6

2
9

2
8

1
5
0

1
6

1
2

6
5

3
1

1
5

1
9

1
3
0

2

1
3

6
9

1
3

2
3

2
4

1
2
9

2

1
4

8
2

2
0

1
4

2
8

1
4
4

3

1
5

7
4

2
1

7
2
1

1
2
3

3

1
6

7
7

2
7

0
1
2

1
1
8

3

1
7

9
9

2
6

0
9

1
3
4

3

1
8

1
5

4
0

1
2
0

1

T
o
ta
l

7
7
6

2
3
6

1
9
8

2
2
2

1
4
3
2

9
2

T
a
b
le
4

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
o
f
T
ri
p
T
y
p
e
s
o
cc
u
rr
in
g
in

e
a
ch

h
o
u
r

F
re
d
e
ri
ck

P
la
ce

H
o
u
r
S
ta
rt
in
g

T
ri
p
T
y
p
e
s

D
ir
e
ct

Lo
a
d
in
g

Lo
n
g
st
a
y

S
h
o
rt
st
a
y

G
ra
n
d
T
o
ta
l

R
o
y
a
lM

a
il
V
a
n
s

7
3
%

5
%

6
%

4
%

4
%

1
1
%

8
7
%

8
%

1
3
%

9
%

8
%

2
6
%

9
1
2
%

1
0
%

2
3
%

1
3
%

1
3
%

1
2
%

1
0

7
%

1
1
%

1
3
%

1
0
%

9
%

1
6
%

1
1

1
0
%

7
%

1
5
%

1
3
%

1
0
%

1
8
%

1
2

8
%

1
3
%

8
%

9
%

9
%

2
%

1
3

9
%

6
%

1
2
%

1
1
%

9
%

2
%

1
4

1
1
%

8
%

7
%

1
3
%

1
0
%

3
%

1
5

1
0
%

9
%

4
%

9
%

9
%

3
%

1
6

1
0
%

1
1
%

0
%

5
%

8
%

3
%

1
7

1
3
%

1
1
%

0
%

4
%

9
%

3
%

1
8

2
%

2
%

0
%

0
%

1
%

1
%

T
o
ta
l

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

122



2
3

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 –

O
th

e
r 

K
e

y
 S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

R
o

y
a
l 

M
a

il
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 

M
a
il 

o
ff
ic

e
 d

e
p
o
t 

is
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 G

lo
u

c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 
N

o
rt

h
 
R

o
a
d
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
n
c
e
 
c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
a
ff
e
c
te

d
 
b
y
 
th

e
 
p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 

R
o
y
a
l 
M

a
il 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f

th
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

re
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 B
.

In
 

s
u
m

m
a
ry

 
th

e
 

R
o
y
a
l 

M
a
il 

d
e
p
o
t 

h
a
n
d
le

s
 

b
o
th

 
d
e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

te
s
 

2
4
 

h
o
u
rs

 
a
 

d
a
y
. 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
g
in

 
o
n
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 

e
v
e
n
in

g
s
 

a
n
d
 

fi
n
is

h
 

o
n
 

S
a
tu

rd
a
y
 

a
ft

e
rn

o
o
n
s
 

g
iv

in
g
 

a
n
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

 6
.5

 d
a
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

e
e
k
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

g
re

s
s
 

p
o
in

ts
 t

o
 s

it
e
; 

o
n
e
 o

n
 N

o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 t

w
o
 o

n
 G

lo
u
c
e

s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
. 

T
h
e
 

fi
rs

t 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l

o
a
d
in

g

b
a
y
, 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

n
 u

p
p
e

r 
p
a
rk

in
g
 d

e
c
k
 

w
h
e
re

 v
e
h
ic

le
s
 a

re
 s

to
re

d
 o

v
e
rn

ig
h
t.
 T

h
e
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

is
 c

lo
s
e
d
 a

t 
n
ig

h
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

0
p
m

 a
n
d
 6

a
m

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 

K
e
y
 r

o
u
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 
R

o
a
d
, 

N
o
rt

h
 
R

o
a
d
, 

S
p
ri
n
g
 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
C

h
u
rc

h
 
S

tr
e
e
t.

 

T
h
e
s
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 F

o
u
n
d
ry

 S
tr

e
e
t 

a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

s
o
u
th

. 
A

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

n
o
rt

h
 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
, 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 
P

la
c
e
, 

O
v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t,
 
T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

B
la

c
k
m

a
n
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

W
h
it
e
c
ro

s
s

S
tr

e
e

t.
 

It
 

is
 

th
o
u
g
h
t 

th
a
t 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 k

e
y
 r

o
u
te

 f
o
r 

R
o
y
a
l 
M

a
il 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

T
h
e
re

a
re

 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

0
0
 t

w
o
 w

a
y
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 2

4
 h

o
u
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 

O
f 

th
e
s
e
 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 
8
5
%

 
o
f 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
re

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
0
7

0
0
 
a
n
d
 

1
9
0
0
. 

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 s

p
e
e
d
 o

f 

m
a
il 

v
a
n
s
 o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 
a
n
d
 
th

e
 
d
e
s
ir
e
 
n
o
t 

to
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

m
o
re

 
m

a
il 

tr
a
ff
ic

 
o
n
to

 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

s
tr

e
e
ts

. 
T

h
e
 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 

s
p
e
e
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 s

e
e
m

s
 t

o
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 O

v
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t,

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

s
p
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 l
im

it
s
.

O
c

c
u

p
ie

rs
 a

t 
In

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

H
o

u
s
e
, 

C
la

re
m

o
n

t 
H

o
u

s
e
, 

A
s
p

e
c
t 

H
o

u
s
e
 a

n
d

 A
lb

e
rt

 H
o

u
s
e
 –

 Q
u

e
e
n

s
 R

o
a
d

O
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 a

n
d
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e

rs
 a

t 
th

e
s
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 w

e
re

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
.

T
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 r
e
a

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

y
a

rd
s
 a

re
 u

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

b
a

s
e
m

e
n

t 
p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

fo
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
e
s
. 

T
h
is

is
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 h
e
a
d
ro

o
m

 r
e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

a
n
d
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
o

v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
g
o
o
d
s
. 

D
e

liv
e
ri
e

s
 t

o
 B

u
d

g
e

n
s

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
a
re

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 Q
u
e
e
n
s
 R

o
a
d
.

T
h
e
 o

n
ly

 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 I
B

IS
 h

o
te

l 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 

A
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 y

a
rd

 c
a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 a

 7
.5

t 

tr
u
c
k
 f

o
r 

la
u
n
d
ry

 a
n
d
 f

o
o
d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

123



2
4

S
c
h
e
m

e
 I

m
p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 T

a
x
i 
F

e
e
d
e
r 

R
a
n
k
s

T
h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 i

n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 t

h
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 i

s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 r

e
lo

c
a
ti
n
g

th
e
 

ta
x
i 
ra

n
k
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 c
a
n
 b

e
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
:

-T
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

/ 
T

e
rm

in
u
s
 R

o
a
d
 j
u

n
c
ti
o
n

-T
a
x
i 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r

-T
a
x
i 
P

o
llu

ti
o
n

-T
a
x
i 
C

a
p
a
c
it
y

-T
a
x
i 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 
to

 
a
n
d
 
a
lo

n
g
 
th

e
 
ra

n
k
 
o
n
 
F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 
P

la
c
e
/T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t

-O
th

e
r 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 t

a
x
is

 r
a
is

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

T
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 

fo
llo

w
s
:-

1
. 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e

t 
/ 

T
e

rm
in

u
s

 R
o

a
d

 j
u

n
c

ti
o

n
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
in

d
ic

a
te

 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 s

a
fe

ly
 a

t 
th

is
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n

2
. 

T
a
x
i 

B
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

A
 
m

a
rs

h
a
l 

a
t 

th
e
 
F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 
P

la
c
e
 
ra

n
k
 
c
o
u
ld

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
 
m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

ra
is

e
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 

ta
x
i 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

(f
ro

m
 

ta
x
i 

d
ri
v
e
rs

 

c
re

a
ti
n
g
 n

o
is

e
 a

n
d
 l

it
te

r 
to

 t
a
x
is

 b
lo

c
k
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 c

ir
c
u
la

ti
n
g
 i

n
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

s
tr

e
e
ts

).
 
A

 
ta

x
i 

m
a
rs

h
a
l 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 
th

e
 

n
ig

h
t-

ti
m

e
 /

 e
a
rl
y
 m

o
rn

in
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 (

1
0

p
m

 -
1
a

m
) 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

w
e
e
k
d
a
y
 p

e
a
k
 p

e
ri
o
d
 (

5
p
m

-8
p
m

).
 

T
h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 a

 m
a
rs

h
a
l 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 £

2
0
,0

0
0
 

p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

; 
a
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
g
a
in

e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 

th
e
 m

a
in

 t
a
x
i 
o
p
e
ra

to
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
 a

n
d
 G

M
B

 

u
n
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 a

t 
th

e
 W

e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e

t 
ra

n
k
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
.

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 a

 s
u
it
a
b
ly

 e
n
fo

rc
e
d
 ‘
n
o
 r

ig
h

t 
tu

rn
’
re

s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
 c

o
u

ld
 

s
to

p
 t

a
x
is

 e
n
te

ri
n
g
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 

o
v
e
rc

o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
ta

x
is

 c
ir
c
u
la

ti
n
g
 i
n
 O

v
e
r 

a
n
d
 K

e
m

p
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

to
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 r

a
n
k
.

3
. 

T
a
x
i 

P
o

ll
u

ti
o

n

A
ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 u

s
in

g
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 M

e
th

o
d
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

th
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

’s
  

D
e
s
ig

n
 M

a
n
u
a
l 

fo
r 

R
o
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 

B
ri
d
g
e
s
. 

U
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 t

ra
ff
ic

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 a

 t
ra

ff
ic

m
o
d
e
l 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

y
 J

M
P

 t
o
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
 t

ra
ff
ic

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 N

O
2
 a

n
d
 

P
M

1
0
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
c
e
p
to

r 

lo
c
a

ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 a

ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 

w
o
rs

e
n
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

a
x
i 

ra
n
k
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 
o
f 

K
e
m

p
, 

O
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
 

(l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 

5
%

).
 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
p
o
llu

ta
n
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 w

it
h
in

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

A
ir
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

(N
A

Q
S

) 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

le
v
e
ls

 
fo

r 
a
ll 

tr
a
ff
ic

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
s
 t

e
s
te

d
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

d
a
y
s
 

w
h
e
re

 
P

M
1
0
 
c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 
5
0

g
m

-3
 
w

o
u
ld

 
a
ls

o
 
b
e
 

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 N

A
Q

S
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 l
e
v
e
l.
 A

s
 t

h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
a
n
c
e
s

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

M
o
re

 d
e
ta

ils
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

fo
u
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 a

ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

.

124



2
5

S
c
h
e
m

e
 I

m
p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 T

a
x
i 
F

e
e
d
e
r 

R
a
n
k
s

4
. 

T
a
x
i 

C
a
p

a
c
it

y

T
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

a
x
i 
fe

e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
:-

-
A

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 s

id
e
 o

f 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e

-
A

 t
u
rn

in
g
 c

ir
c
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 d
e
liv

e
ri

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 I

B
IS

 h
o
te

l 
u
n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

-
A

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

ri
n
c
e
 A

lb
e
rt

 p
u
b
 d

re
y

-
A

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 o

ff
 s

tr
e

e
t 

c
a

r 
p
a
rk

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 s

id
e
 o

f 
F

re
d
e
ri
c
k

P
la

c
e

-
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ta

x
is

 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 O

ld
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

H
o
u
s
e

O
n
c
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
, 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 

P
la

c
e
 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

(J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 
R

o
a
d
 
p
ic

k
 
u
p
, 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 

P
la

c
e
 

ta
x
i 

fe
e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k
s
) 

w
o
u
ld

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

fo
r 

2
1
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
. 

 
T

h
is

 
w

o
u
ld

 
c
o
n
s
is

t 
o
f 

1
3
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 

o
n
 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
, 

4
 o

n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

4
 o

n
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
.

H
e
n
c
e
 t

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
4
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 f

o
re

c
o
u
rt

 r
a
n
k
 (

1
7
).

 T
h
e
 n

e
w

 

ra
n
k
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 r

a
n
k
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
a
x
i 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 i

n
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ic
k
 u

p
 a

re
a
 i

s
 

o
ft
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 b

y
 t

ra
ff
ic

 s
ig

n
a
ls

 /
 t

h
e
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 c

a
b
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d
. 

F
ig

u
re

 1
4
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d
 l

a
y
o
u
t 

o
f

th
e
 f

e
e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k

125



2
6

F
ig

u
re

 1
7

 -
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
a
x
i 

fe
e
d

e
r 

ra
n

k
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts

126



2
7

S
c
h
e
m

e
 I

m
p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 T

a
x
i 
F

e
e
d
e
r 

R
a
n
k
s

T
a
x
i 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 

a
n

d
 

a
lo

n
g

 
th

e
 

ra
n

k
 

o
n

 
F

re
d

e
ri

c
k

 

P
la

c
e
/T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
s
ta

g
e
d
 c

a
ll 

fo
rw

a
rd

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 r

a
n
k
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 t

a
x
is

 w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 c

a
n
 /

 s
h
o
u
ld

 j
o
in

 e
a
c
h

s
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

ra
n
k
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

c
o
u
ld

 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

in
 

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 

R
o
a
d
 

b
e
fo

re
 t

a
x
is

 m
a
d
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

to
 t

ry
 a

n
d
 j

o
in

 t
h
e

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 r

a
n
k
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
n
 b

e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
a
ll 

fo
rw

a
rd

fa
c
ili

ty
 
to

 
th

e
 
T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

ra
n
k
. 

T
h
e
 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

tr
ia

lle
d
 

a
t 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

P
a
d
d
in

g
to

n
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

w
o
u
ld

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
d
is

p
la

y
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
te

c
to

r 
lo

o
p

s
.

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 t

a
x
i 
m

a
rs

h
a
l 
w

o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e

 r
a
n
k
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
It
 
is

 
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 
th

a
t 

a
 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 
c
o
d
e
 
o
f 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t,

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
 m

a
rs

h
a
l 

a
t 

p
e
a
k
 t

im
e
s
 /

 t
h
e
 

e
v
e
n
in

g
 

w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

e
 

ra
n
k
 

o
p
e
ra

te
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
If

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 

a
n
 

is
s
u
e
, 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 
c
o
u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

a
 
c
a
m

e
ra

 
to

 

e
n
a
b
le

 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
ro

u
n
d
 
th

e
 
ra

n
k
. 

T
h
is

 
is

 

lik
e
ly

 
to

 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
a
m

e
ra

, 
a
n
d
 

a
ls

o
. 

fo
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

If
 t

h
e
 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

w
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 
fo

rw
a
rd

 
a
 
m

e
a
n
s
 
o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 
th

is
 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n

t 
w

o
u
ld

 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

O
th

e
r 

c
o

n
c

e
rn

s
 -

 A
 c

a
b

 r
a

n
k

 w
il

l 
e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 a

n
ti

 s
o

c
ia

l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

in
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 .

 

T
h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
 r

a
n
k
 (

a
n
d
 s

o
 p

a
s
s
iv

e
 s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e

) 
in

 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 d
is

c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

in
 t

h
is

 

a
re

a
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
 m

a
rs

h
a
l 
m

a
y
 h

e
lp

 m
it
ig

a
te

 

p
u
b
lic

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

 o
v
e
r 

th
is

 i
s
s
u
e
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 l
a
te

 a
t 

n
ig

h
t.

A
  

ta
x

i 
ra

n
k

 i
n

 N
o

rt
h

  
L

a
in

e
 i

s
 c

o
u

n
te

r 
to

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
’s

 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 s
ta

tu
s
 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 t

a
x
i 
ra

n
k
 i
n
 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 h
a
rm

 i
ts

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 
A

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
h
a
rm

 w
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 o

u
tw

e
ig

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
f 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 T

a
x
i 

R
a
n
k
 f
ro

m
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 C

a
n
o
p
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 

a
n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

a
t 

G
ra

d
e
 I
I*

 L
is

te
d
 B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
H

ill
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

is
 l
o
c
a
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

a
v
e
a
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 A

lb
e
rt

 P
u

b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 i
s
 L

is
te

d
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
x
i 
ra

n
k
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

ru
n
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 i
t 

(t
h
e
 r

a
n
k
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t

ru
n
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 d

ra
y
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 

a
re

a
),

 a
n
d
 t

h
a

t 
c
a
re

 n
e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 r

a
n
k
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

le
a
d
 t

o
 d

is
p
la

c
e
d
 t

ra
ff
ic

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 

127



2
8

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 –

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S

c
h

e
m

e
T

e
s

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 S
c

h
e

m
e

H
a
v
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

ta
x
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k

P
la

c
e
, 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tu
d
y
 e

x
a
m

in
e
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
ts

.

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
 t

e
s
te

d
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

fo
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.T

e
s
ti
n
g

s
h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 o
p
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

s
o
u
th

b
o
u
n
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 o

n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a

n
e
 b

y
 4

4
8
%

. 
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

th
e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
tr

a
ff
ic

 b
lo

c
k
in

g
 b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
 o

n
to

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ra
v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

D
iv

e
rt

in
g
 t

h
e

s
e

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

tr
a
ff
ic

 d
o
w

n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a

n
e
 w

o
u
ld

 

re
a
lis

ti
c
a
lly

 n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 O

rd
e
r 

o
f 

T
ra

v
is

 

P
e
rk

in
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
.

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 t

h
is

 o
p
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r.

T
h
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 f
lo

w
 d

ia
g
ra

m
 (

F
ig

u
re

 2
0

) 
s
h
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

is
 

o
p
ti
o
n
 t

e
s
t 

is
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a

s
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 D
. 

 

V
a

ri
a
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 S
c

h
e

m
e

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 t

e
s
te

d
 

a
n
d
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
 d

is
c
o
u
n
te

d
:

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 p

lu
s
  
W

h
it
e
c
ro

s
s

N
o
rt

h
b
o
u
n
d
 O

n
ly

T
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 t

e
s
te

d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
n
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 N

o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
fr

o
m

 W
h
it
e
c
ro

s
s

S
tr

e
e

t 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e

 N
E

 t
o

 S
W

 m
o

v
e

m
e
n

ts
, 

s
ti
ll 

c
re

a
te

d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
a
ro

u
n
d
 1

0
0
0
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 –

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
 S

o
u
th

b
o
u
n
d
 O

n
ly

 

M
a
k
in

g
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
 o

n
e
-w

a
y
 s

o
u
th

b
o
u
n
d
 h

a
d
 a

 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 T

ra
v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 m

u
c
h
 h

ig
h
e
r 

fl
o
w

s
 o

n
 K

e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 –

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

L
a
n
e
 a

n
d
 Q

u
e
e
n
s
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

S
o
u
th

b
o
u
n
d
 O

n
ly

T
h
is

 o
p
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 d

is
c
o
u
n
te

d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
it
s
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 T
ra

v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 –

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
w

e
s
tb

o
u
n
d
 p

lu
g
 o

n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t

T
h
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 w

e
s
tb

o
u
n
d
 ‘
p
lu

g
’
o
n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t

ra
ff

ic
 f

lo
w

 o
n
 O

v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 1
0
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
r 

to
 o

v
e
r 

1
2
0
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
r 

–
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t.
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 –

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
‘P

lu
g
’
w

it
h
 K

e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
o
u
th

b
o
u
n
d

T
h
is

 o
p
ti
o
n
 l
e
d
 t

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
tr

a
ff
ic

 o
n
 K

e
m

p
 S

tr
e
e
t

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 O

p
ti

o
n

s

T
w

o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 T

ra
ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
v
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
, 

a
re

 s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 p

a
g
e
s
. 

128



2
9

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 –

P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

F
ig

u
re

 1
9

 –
 P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

O
p

ti
o

n
 1

129



3
0

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 –

P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

F
ig

u
re

 2
0

 –
 P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

O
p

ti
o

n
 2

130



3
1

Sho
rt D

esc
ript

ion
Adv

ant
age

s
Dis

adv
ant

age
s

Pot
ent

ial 
Op

tion
 1

O
pt

io
n 

1 
m

ai
nt

ai
ns

 a
cc

es
s 

fr
om

 

N
or

th
 L

ai
ne

 to
 Q

ue
en

s 
R

d 
vi

a 
a 

2 

w
ay

 G
lo

uc
es

te
r 

R
d 

ju
nc

tio
n.

  

A
cc

es
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
w

es
t (

vi
a 

C
he

ap
si

de
) 

re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 li
m

it 

th
ro

ug
h 

tr
af

fic
 b

y 
m

ak
in

g 

W
hi

te
cr

os
s 

&
 B

la
ck

m
an

 S
t o

ne
 

w
ay

 n
or

th
bo

un
d.

K
em

p 
S

t m
ad

e 
so

ut
hb

ou
nd

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

lo
ca

l a
cc

es
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

no
rt

h.
 

M
ai

nt
ai

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
ac

ce
ss

 fo
r 

lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 b

ut
 d

is
co

ur
ag

es
 s

om
e 

w
id

er
 th

ro
ug

h 

m
ov

em
en

ts

T
ra

ffi
c 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
on

 O
ve

r 
S

tr
ee

t a
nd

 K
em

p 
S

tr
ee

t a
re

 

m
od

er
at

e 
w

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

ho
ur

ly
 in

cr
ea

se
s:

 1
5v

ph
 fo

r 

O
ve

r 
(1

 e
ve

ry
 4

 m
in

ut
es

);
 4

0v
ph

 fo
r 

K
em

p 
(1

 e
ve

ry
 1

.5
 

m
in

ut
es

).
 

P
os

ta
l o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

T
ax

is
 a

re
 le

ss
 li

ke
ly

 to
 c

irc
ul

at
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

N
or

th
 L

ai
ne

 

th
an

 w
ith

 P
ot

en
tia

l O
pt

io
n 

2

Lo
ca

l a
cc

es
s 

in
to

 N
or

th
 L

ai
ne

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
or

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

th
an

 a
t p

re
se

nt
 w

ith
 n

o 
di

re
ct

 

ac
ce

ss
 fr

om
 C

he
ap

si
de

 (
w

es
t)

T
ra

fa
lg

ar
 L

an
e 

w
ill

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 fl
ow

s,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 n

or
th

bo
un

d,
 s

o 
m

or
e 

co
nf

lic
t t

ha
n 

cu
rr

en
tly

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

.

T
ra

ffi
c 

no
t w

is
hi

ng
 to

 u
se

 T
ra

fa
lg

ar
 L

an
e 

fo
r 

no
rt

hb
ou

nd
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 (
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 

du
rin

g 
lo

ad
in

g 
/ u

nl
oa

di
ng

) 
w

ou
ld

 in
st

ea
d 

be
 te

m
pt

ed
 to

 u
se

 O
ve

r 
S

t (
un

le
ss

 a
cc

es
s 

co
nt

ro
l w

as
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
at

 th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 e
nd

 o
f T

ra
fa

lg
ar

 L
an

e)

R
eq

ui
re

s 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
so

lu
tio

n 
fo

r 
G

lo
uc

es
te

r 
R

oa
d 

/ Q
ue

en
s 

R
oa

d 
w

hi
ch

 m
ig

ht
 

re
qu

ire
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

si
ze

 o
f t

he
 ju

nc
tio

n.
 C

os
t i

m
pl

ic
at

io
n

Pot
ent

ial 
Op

tion
 2

O
pt

io
n 

2 
re

st
ric

ts
 a

cc
es

s 
fr

om
 

N
or

th
 L

ai
ne

 to
 Q

ue
en

s 
R

d.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

ns
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

ca
n’

t a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

w
es

t o
f t

he
 c

ity
 

di
re

ct
ly

, b
ut

 a
ls

o 
st

op
s 

an
y 

w
id

er
 

th
ro

ug
h 

tr
af

fic
 in

 th
e 

N
or

th
 L

ai
ne

. 

K
em

p 
S

tr
ee

t a
nd

 O
ve

r 
S

tr
ee

t 

be
co

m
e 

so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 

D
is

co
ur

ag
es

 a
ll 

th
ro

ug
h 

m
ov

em
en

ts

O
ve

r 
S

tr
ee

t i
nc

re
as

es
 a

re
 m

od
er

at
e 

w
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 

ho
ur

ly
 in

cr
ea

se
s:

 2
0v

ph
 fo

r 
O

ve
r 

(1
 e

ve
ry

 3
 m

in
ut

es
);

 

K
em

p 
S

tr
ee

t  
an

d 
T

ra
fa

lg
ar

 L
an

e 
flo

w
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
si

m
ila

r 
to

 

th
at

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 to
da

y

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 fl
ow

s 
on

 T
ra

fa
lg

ar
 S

tr
ee

t

P
os

ta
l o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 n
ot

  s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

F
re

de
ric

k 
P

la
ce

 fl
ow

s 
w

ou
ld

 in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

ar
ou

nd
 8

00
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

pe
r 

da
y 

or
 6

6 
pe

r 
ho

ur
. 

W
he

n 
ta

xi
s 

ar
e 

ad
de

d,
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

n 
F

re
de

ric
k 

P
la

ce
 is

 fu
rt

he
r 

in
cr

ea
se

d.
 H

ow
ev

er
 

co
nf

lic
t a

t t
he

 n
or

th
er

n 
en

d 
is

 r
em

ov
ed

 b
ec

au
se

 T
ra

fa
lg

ar
 S

tr
ee

t w
ou

ld
 b

ec
om

e 
on

e 

w
ay

 w
es

tb
ou

nd
 b

et
w

ee
n 

F
re

de
ric

k 
P

la
ce

 a
nd

 O
ve

r 
S

tr
ee

t.

P
ot

en
tia

l i
ss

ue
 w

ith
 ta

xi
’s

 c
irc

ul
at

in
g 

do
w

n 
O

ve
r 

 a
nd

 K
em

p 
S

tr
ee

t i
f t

he
y 

ca
nt

 fi
nd

 

sp
ac

e 
on

 th
e 

fe
ed

er
 r

an
k 

as
 a

 r
ig

ht
 tu

rn
 b

an
 c

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

im
po

se
d 

fr
om

 G
lo

uc
es

te
r 

R
oa

d 
to

 F
re

de
ric

k 
P

la
ce

. (
T

hi
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 p
ar

tly
 m

iti
ga

te
d 

by
 a

 c
al

l f
or

w
ar

di
ng

 s
ys

te
m

)

P
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 c
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 b
ac

k 
of

 ta
xi

 q
ue

ue
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 r

is
k 

of
 q

ue
ue

 

ju
m

pi
ng

 –
 a

lth
ou

gh
 th

is
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
by

 a
 y

el
lo

w
 ju

nc
tio

n 
bo

x.

A
cc

es
s 

ou
t o

f N
or

th
 L

ai
ne

 m
or

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

th
an

 O
pt

io
n 

1 
an

d 
he

nc
e 

lo
ng

er
 jo

ur
ne

ys
 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 fo
r 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
so

ut
h 

w
es

t 
of

 N
or

th
 L

ai
ne

131



3
2

‘U
s
e
r 

Im
p
a
c
ts

’
o
f 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s

Imp
act

 on
..

R
es

id
en

ts
T

ax
i 

O
p

er
at

o
rs

B
u
si

n
es

se
s

T
ra

v
is

 P
er

k
in

s
R

o
y
al

 M
ai

l

A
cc

es
s

O
p
ti
o
n
1
P
re
fe
rr
e
d

O
p
ti
o
n
2
w
ill
re
st
ri
ct

a
cc
e
ss

to
th
e
S
e
a
fr
o
n
t.

It
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
ca
lc
u
la
te
d

th
a
t
to

re
a
ch

th
e

C
lo
ck
to
w
e
r
/
C
h
u
rc
h
il
l

S
q
u
a
re

S
h
o
p
p
in
g

C
e
n
tr
e
w
o
u
ld
re
q
u
ir
e
a

1
m
il
e
d
e
to
u
r
fr
o
m

st
re
e
ts

su
ch

a
s
O
v
e
r
,

K
e
m
p
a
n
d
F
re
d
e
ri
ck

P
la
ce

co
m
p
a
re
d
to

th
e

e
xi
st
in
g
si
tu
a
ti
o
n
.

O
p
ti
o
n
1
P
re
fe
rr
e
d

W
h
il
st

a
cc
e
ss

is
n
o
t
so

m
u
ch

o
f
a
n
is
su
e

fo
r
ta
xi
o
p
e
ra
to
rs
b
e
ca
u
se

th
e
y

ca
n
u
se

T
ra
fa
lg
a
r
S
tr
e
e
t

w
e
st
b
o
u
n
d
to

a
cc
e
ss

th
e
se
a
fr
o
n
t,

th
e
a
b
se
n
ce

o
f
a
ri
g
h
t
tu
rn

b
a
n

fr
o
m

G
lo
u
ce
st
e
r
R
o
a
d
to

F
re
d
e
ri
ck

P
la
ce

fo
r
O
p
ti
o
n
2
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in

so
m
e
ta
xi
d
ri
ve
rs
a
tt
e
m
p
ti
n
g
to

ju
m
p
th
e
q
u
e
u
e
.
T
h
e
re

is
a
ls
o
a

g
re
a
te
r
ri
sk

o
f
ta
xi
s
ci
rc
u
la
ti
n
g

a
ro
u
n
d
N
o
rt
h
La
in
e
w
it
h
th
is

o
p
ti
o
n
.
H
o
w
e
v
e
r
th
is
ri
sk

co
u
ld
b
e

m
it
ig
a
te
d

to
so
m
e
e
xt
e
n
t

th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
u
se

o
f
m
a
rs
h
a
ls

a
n
d

e
n
fo
rc
e
d
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f

a
y
e
llo
w
b
o
x
a
t
th
e
ju
n
ct
io
n
.

O
p
ti
o
n
1
P
re
fe
rr
e
d

F
o
r
th
e
sa
m
e
re
a
so
n
s
a
s

re
si
d
e
n
ts

O
p
ti
o
n
2
p
re
fe
rr
e
d
–
T
h
is

re
su
lt
s
in
le
ss

tr
a
ff
ic
u
si
n
g

T
ra
fa
lg
a
r
La
n
e
a
n
d
h
e
n
ce

w
ill

b
e
p
re
fe
rr
e
d
b
e
ca
u
se

it
h
a
s

le
ss

o
f
a
n
im

p
a
ct
o
n
th
e

b
u
si
n
e
ss

O
p
ti
o
n
1
P
re
fe
rr
e
d

F
o
r
th
e
sa
m
e
re
a
so
n
s

a
s
re
si
d
e
n
ts
a
n
d
re
ta
ile
rs
.
O
p
ti
o
n
2
is
lik
e
ly
to

in
cr
e
a
se

d
e
li
v
e
ry

ti
m
e
s
a
n
d
a
ls
o
in
cr
e
a
se

fu
e
l

co
st
s
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
fo
r
ru
n
s
to

S
e
v
e
n
D
ia
ls
.

H
o
w
e
v
e
r
th
e
im

p
a
ct

o
f
O
p
ti
o
n
2
w
ill
b
e

a
m
e
li
o
ra
te
d
so
m
e
w
h
a
t
b
y
th
e
o
p
ti
o
n
o
f

u
si
n
g
th
e
N
o
rt
h
R
o
a
d
e
n
tr
a
n
ce
.
T
h
e
re
su
lt
is

th
a
t
th
e
G
lo
u
ce
st
e
r
R
o
a
d
e
n
tr
a
n
ce

w
o
u
ld
n
o
t

b
e
u
se
d
to

th
e
sa
m
e
e
xt
e
n
t
th
a
t
it
is
n
o
w
.
It

is
n
o
t
k
n
o
w
n
w
h
e
th
e
r
th
is
co
u
ld
b
e

a
cc
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
d
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
w
it
h
in
th
e
si
te

T
ra

ffi
c 

V
ol

um
es

K
e
m
p
S
tr
e
e
t,
T
ra
fa
lg
a
r

La
n
e
,
Q
u
e
e
n
s
G
a
rd
e
n
s

re
si
d
e
n
ts
a
re

li
k
e
ly
to

p
re
fe
r
O
p
ti
o
n
2

b
e
ca
u
se

o
f
th
e
lo
w
e
r

tr
a
ff
ic
vo
lu
m
e
s

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
th
is
is
lik
e
ly

to
b
e
o
ff
se
t
b
y
th
e

re
d
u
ce
d
a
cc
e
ss

to
th
e

so
u
th
.
A
ll
o
th
e
r

re
si
d
e
n
ts
a
n
d

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
th
o
se

o
n

F
re
d
e
ri
ck

P
la
ce

a
re

li
k
e
ly
to

fa
vo
u
r
O
p
ti
o
n

1

O
p
ti
o
n
1
P
re
fe
rr
e
d

O
p
ti
o
n
1

re
su
lt
s
in
m
u
ch

lo
w
e
r
tr
a
ff
ic

v
o
lu
m
e
s
o
n
F
re
d
e
ri
ck

P
la
ce

a
n
d

h
e
n
ce

re
d
u
ce
d
co
n
fl
ic
t
w
it
h
o
th
e
r

ro
a
d
u
se
rs

O
p
ti
o
n
1
P
re
fe
rr
e
d

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
fo
r
T
ra
fa
lg
a
r

S
tr
e
e
t
re
ta
il
e
rs
w
h
o
w
ill

e
xp
e
ri
e
n
ce

lo
w
e
r

v
o
lu
m
e
s.
T
h
e
re

is
a
ri
sk

th
a
t
m
o
re

il
le
g
a
l

m
o
v
e
m
e
n
ts
m
a
y
b
e

m
a
d
e
d
o
w
n
S
y
d
n
e
y

S
tr
e
e
t
w
it
h
O
p
ti
o
n
G
ii
a
s

re
si
d
e
n
ts
se
e
k

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
m
e
a
n
s
o
f

a
cc
e
ss
in
g
V
a
ll
e
y

G
a
rd
e
n
s
w
it
h
o
u
t
h
a
v
in
g

to
u
se

P
re
st
o
n
C
ir
cu
s.

O
p
ti
o
n
2
p
re
fe
rr
e
d
–
F
o
r

re
a
so
n
s
g
iv
e
n
a
b
o
v
e

U
n
li
k
e
ly
to

b
e
co
n
ce
rn
e
d
a
b
o
u
t
tr
a
ff
ic

v
o
lu
m
e
s
u
n
le
ss

it
a
ff
e
ct
s
d
e
li
v
e
ry

ti
m
e
s.
F
o
r

th
is
re
a
so
n
O
p
ti
o
n
1
is
lik
e
ly
to

b
e
P
re
fe
rr
e
d
.

132



3
3

‘U
s
e
r 

Im
p
a
c
ts

’
o
f 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s

Imp
act

 on
..

R
es

id
en

ts
T

ax
i 

O
p

er
at

o
rs

B
u
si

n
es

se
s

T
ra

v
is

 P
er

k
in

s
R

o
y
al

 M
ai

l

P
ar

k
in

g
O
p
ti
o
n
1
P
re
fe
rr
e
d

O
p
ti
o
n
2
w
ill
re
st
ri
ct

a
cc
e
ss

to
N
o
rt
h
La
in
e

a
n
d
h
e
n
ce

p
a
rk
in
g

b
e
h
a
vi
o
u
r
m
a
y
ch
a
n
g
e

to
re
fl
e
ct
th
e
n
e
w

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
.
F
o
r

e
xa
m
p
le

re
st
ri
ct
e
d

a
cc
e
ss

m
ig
h
t

e
n
co
u
ra
g
e
re
si
d
e
n
ts
to

p
a
rk

fu
rt
h
e
r
a
w
a
y
fr
o
m

th
e
ir
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
a
s

a
cc
e
ss

m
a
y
b
e
le
ss

co
n
st
ra
in
e
d
(s
u
ch

a
s
to

th
e
so
u
th

o
f
N
o
rt
h

R
o
a
d
o
r
n
o
rt
h
o
f

T
ra
fa
lg
a
r
S
tr
e
e
t)
.
T
h
is

m
a
y
in
tr
o
d
u
ce

n
e
w

p
a
rk
in
g
p
re
ss
u
re
s
fo
r

re
si
d
e
n
ts
in
a
d
ja
ce
n
t

a
re
a
s
.

N
o
t
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
a
s

ta
xi
d
ri
v
e
rs
w
ill
u
se

th
e
fe
e
d
e
r
ra
n
k
s

O
p
ti
o
n
1
P
re
fe
rr
e
d

A
n
y
sc
h
e
m
e
(2
)

th
a
t
m
a
k
e
s
a
cc
e
ss

to
p
a
y
a
n
d
d
is
p
la
y

sp
a
ce
s
in
N
o
rt
h
La
in
e
m
o
re

d
if
fi
cu
lt
is

li
k
e
ly
to

b
e
vi
e
w
e
d
u
n
fa
v
o
u
ra
b
ly
b
y

b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
m
o
st

o
f
th
e
e
xi
st
in
g
v
is
it
o
rs

to
N
o
rt
h
La
in
e
a
re

lik
e
ly
to

a
rr
iv
e
o
n

fo
o
t,
b
ik
e
,
b
y
p
u
b
li
c
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
o
r
p
a
rk

in
th
e
m
u
lt
i
st
o
re
y
ca
r
p
a
rk
s
su
ch

a
s

N
o
rt
h
S
tr
e
e
t
a
n
d
W
h
it
e
cr
o
ss
S
tr
e
e
t,
a

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
o
f
sa
le
s
a
re

lik
e
ly
to

b
e

d
e
ri
v
e
d
fr
o
m

p
a
ss
in
g
tr
a
d
e
.
T
h
e

re
d
u
ct
io
n
in
p
e
rm

e
a
b
il
it
y
o
f
n
o
rt
h
la
in
e

in
O
p
ti
o
n
2
w
ill
re
d
u
ce

th
e
p
ro
p
e
n
si
ty

fo
r
p
a
ss
in
g
tr
a
d
e
cu
st
o
m

T
ra
v
is
P
e
rk
in
s
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
fr
o
m

o
ff

st
re
e
t
p
a
rk
in
g
w
h
ic
h
n
o
rm

a
lly

m
e
a
n
s
th
a
t
cu
st
o
m
e
rs

a
re

n
o
t

re
q
u
ir
e
d
to

u
se

su
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
p
a
y

a
n
d
d
is
p
la
y
b
a
y
s.
H
o
w
e
v
e
r

O
p
ti
o
n
2
w
il
l
b
e
p
re
fe
rr
e
d

b
e
ca
u
se

th
is
re
su
lt
s
in
le
ss

tr
a
ff
ic

u
si
n
g
T
ra
fa
lg
a
r
La
n
e
a
n
d
h
e
n
ce

h
a
s
le
ss

o
f
a
n
im

p
a
ct
o
n
th
e

b
u
si
n
e
ss

R
o
y
a
lM

a
il
st
a
ff
b
e
n
e
fi
t
fr
o
m

o
ff
st
re
e
t

p
a
rk
in
g
w
h
ic
h
n
o
rm

a
ll
y
m
e
a
n
s
th
a
t
th
e

u
se

o
f
su
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
p
a
y
a
n
d
d
is
p
la
y
b
a
y
s

is
n
o
t
re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

133



C
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

3
4

T
h
is

 s
tu

d
y
 h

a
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 

(i
)i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

re
lo

c
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

a
x
i 

fe
e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k
 f

ro
m

 i
n
 f

ro
n
t 

o
f 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
i)
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

to
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 
it
s

re
lo

c
a

ti
o

n

T
a
x
i 

F
e
e
d

e
r 

R
a
n

k

T
h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i

s
 f

e
a
s
ib

le
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
te

 t
h
e
 t

a
x
i 

ra
n
k
 t

o
 

F
re

d
e
ri
c
k
 

P
la

c
e
 

a
n
d
 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

th
a
t 

a
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

is
 

p
u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

a
 

c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 

a
n
d
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 m

it
ig

a
te

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 t

a
x
i 
im

p
a
c
ts

. 

T
h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 

ta
x
i 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

o
r 

a
ir
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
n
d
 

th
a
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 

A
 f

e
e
d
e
r 

ra
n
k
 o

f 
u
p
 t

o
 1

3
 t

a
x
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

a
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

4
 

o
n
 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

4
 

o
n
 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
. 

 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 
n
o
t 

e
x
p
lic

it
ly

 
m

o
d
e
lle

d
, 

th
e
 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 
lik

e
ly

 
to

 
o
ff
e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

o
f 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
n
a
b
le

s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 f

o
re

c
o

u
rt

 a
re

a
 t

o
 g

iv
e
n
 

o
v
e
r 

to
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

T
h
e
 t

a
x
i 

ra
n
k
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 u
n
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
x
i 

o
p
e
ra

to
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 i

s
s
u
e
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

 m
a
rs

h
a
l 

w
o
u
ld

 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
.

A
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

p
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 i
n
 l
a
te

 2
0
1
2
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 T

ra
v
is

 P
e
rk

in
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
.

T
h
e
 
s
tu

d
y
 
a
ls

o
 
c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 
th

a
t 

a
 
tr

a
d
e
 
o
ff
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
a
n
d

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

d
iv

e
rt

in
g
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 o
n
to

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

. 

B
o
th

 t
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

lis
te

d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
, 

re
q
u
ir
e
 s

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

‘a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
tr

o
l’

to
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 m
o

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 

T
h
is

 

c
a
n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 e

it
h
e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
ro

u
g
h
 r

o
u
te

s
 

in
 

N
o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
(o

p
ti
o
n
 

F
iii

) 
o
r 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
n
g
 

tr
a

ff
ic

 
fr

o
m

 
e
x
it
in

g
 

o
n
to

 

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 R

o
a
d
 f

ro
m

 G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 (

o
p
ti
o
n
 G

ii)
. 

If
 t

h
e
s
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

ta
k
e
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 m
o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n

 b
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 7

0
0
 a

n
d
 8

5
0
 t

ri
p
s
 f

o
r 

a
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
w

e
e
k
d
a
y
 7

a
m

 t
o
 7

p
m

 p
e
ri
o
d
.

It
 
is

 
in

e
v
it
a
b
le

 
th

a
t 

w
it
h
 
th

e
 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 
tr

a
ff

ic
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

th
e
re

 
w

ill
 

b
e
 

‘w
in

n
e
rs

’
a
n
d
 

‘l
o
s
e
rs

’.
 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
o
th

 
th

e
 

s
h
o
rt

lis
te

d
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 
re

d
u
c
e
 
th

e
 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 
O

v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

, 
K

e
m

p
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

 a
n
d
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

L
a
n
e
. 

W
h
ils

t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
a
l 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 

s
e
e
m

 l
a
rg

e
 t

h
e
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 f

ro
m

 a
 

lo
w

 b
a
s
e
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

 t
h
e
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 

a
n
 h

o
u
rl
y
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
c
a
s
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

K
e
m

p

S
tr

e
e
t 

(F
iii

) 
o
n
ly

 a
m

o
u
n
ts

 t
o
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
 v

e
h
ic

le
 p

e
r 

9
0
 s

e
c
o
n
d
s
 

a
n
d
 f

lo
w

s
 w

o
u
ld

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
 5

0
%

 o
f 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

d
a
y
 f

lo
w

s
 o

n
 F

re
d
e
ri
c
k
 P

la
c
e
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll,
 o

p
ti
o
n
 F

iii
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 f

a
v
o
u
re

d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 i

t 
s
e
e
m

s
 t

o
 

o
ff

e
r 

a
 w

id
e
r 

ra
n
g
e

 o
f 

b
e
n

e
fi
ts

 t
h
a

n
 O

p
ti
o

n
 G

ii

A
n
c
ill

a
ry

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 s

ig
n
in

g
, 

ro
a
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 
re

d
u
c
e
 
th

e
 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

fu
rt

h
e
r.

 

134



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 C
 –

T
ra

ff
ic

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e

F
ig

u
re

 2
0
 –

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 –

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 F
lo

w
s
 

135



T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

in
e
e
rs

136



  

 
   

Note of Meeting Date 6
th
 December 2012 

 Job No/ Name ST13305 North Laine, Brighton 

 Present Andy Nicholson, Philip Harding (Travis Perkins), Chris 
Sibthorpe, Tim Hapgood (JMP). 

 Subject Travis Perkins Consultation 

 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

1. A meeting was held on site at Travis Perkins Trading Co. Ltd, 1-2 Trafalgar Lane, Brighton, East Sussex, 
BN1 4ES for approximately 1 hour on Thursday 6

th
 December between 13:00 and 14:00. The following 

topics were discussed and this note provides a record of those discussions. 

 Travis Perkins Operations; 

 Daily / weekly vehicle arrival and departure profile: volume and timings; 

 Vehicle size and routing; 

 Vehicle loading and unloading operations: location, dwell time, handling equipment etc; and 

 Vehicle access problems or issues. 

Overview of Travis Perkins’ Operations 

2. The site was originally a local timber merchant established in 1829. Travis Arnold (Perkins) acquired the 
site in 1924 and they have been trading from the site ever since.  

3. Travis Perkins is open Monday to Friday 07:30 to 17:00 and Saturday 08:00 to 12:00. The site is closed 
on Sundays. 

4. The site serves both commercial and public customers and supplies a range of products including 
building materials, plumbing and heating, landscaping materials, timber and sheet materials, painting 
and decorating, dry lining and insulation, doors and joinery, and hand and power tools.  

5. The sites functions are split between a customer facing shop with an entrance into the customer car park 
and a warehouse for customer collections of bulkier items which faces on to Trafalgar lane. 

6. Trafalgar Lane is a narrow two way road running north to south in the North Laine area of Brighton. The 
road connects with Trafalgar Street at the northern end and Gloucester Road at the southern end. There 
are double yellow lines along the length of Trafalgar Lane.   

Customer Trip Generation and Loading / Unloading 

7. A week of sales data was supplied covering the period 27/11/12 to 03/12/12. The total number of sales 
over the six day period was 412. The average number of sales per day Monday to Friday was 77, both 
account customers and cash purchases. Saturday sales totalled 28. There is very little seasonal 
variation in trade. 

8. The busiest time was estimated to be mid-morning between 9am and midday. At any one time it is 
normal to have 3-4 customers on-site. Customer vehicles are typically cars or vans up to large transit 
van size. 

9. The vast majority of sales are associated with a vehicle trip with only a small percentage of walk in 
customers. Between a third and a half of all sales require customers to collect goods from the 
warehouse. This equates to somewhere between 137 and 206 collections per week. Excluding 
Saturday’s this equates to between 26 and 39 collections per day. 

APPENDIX A  

137



   
North Laine Study, Brighton JobNo. ST13305 
Travis Perkins Meeting   
 
 

 
Page 2of 3 

 

10. When customers collect bulkier items from the warehouse it requires them to stop and load goods on 
Trafalgar Lane. The average loading time is thought to only be 5-10 minutes. However due to the narrow 
width of Trafalgar Lane when a vehicle is stopped to load goods the road is effectively blocked with 
insufficient room for another vehicle to pass. During the site visit a number of customers loaded goods 
from the warehouse on Trafalgar Lane and twice this caused a blockage to another vehicle. The pictures 
below illustrate the problems caused by loading on Trafalgar Lane. 

  

11. Travis Perkins have put up signage on the entrance to warehouse to encourage caution when 
manoeuvring and carrying out loading activities.  

Travis Perkins Deliveries 

12. Travis Perkins receive a timber delivery once a week on a Wednesday in the early morning (before 
9AM)by a 33 tonne vehicle Due to the size of the vehicle and scaffolding which is in place on a dwelling 
opposite the entrance to Trafalgar Lane on Gloucester Road, the vehicle parks on Gloucester Road. The 
timber is then unloaded via forklift truck which reverses along Trafalgar Lane to reach the warehouse. 
The pictures below illustrate the operation. 

  

13. Travis Perkins also receive a daily delivery from their central store, which brings general stock. The 
delivery is made in a  smaller 17tonne vehicle and usually arrives between midday and 14:00. The 
vehicle is usually able to reverse in to Trafalgar Lane and unload in the customer car park. If it not 
possible to reverse in to Trafalgar Lane the vehicle will unload on Gloucester Road. 

14. Travis Perkins also occasionally receive irregular deliveries, which are made using a 7.5tonne vehicle.  

15. Travis Perkins also have their own on-site flatbed lorry, which they use for making customer deliveries as 
required. This can be parked in the warehouse without affecting movements along Trafalgar Lane. 

16. Commercial refuse collections require Travis Perkins’ bins, which are stored in the car park, to be 
wheeled to Gloucester Road for collection by Veolia. The collection is made on a Wednesday between 

138



   
North Laine Study, Brighton JobNo. ST13305 
Travis Perkins Meeting   
 
 

 
Page 3of 3 

 

6-7am. Other premises based in Trafalgar Lane at the northern end keep their bins on-street and  are 
collected by Biffa via Trafalgar Street usually late on a Thursday. 

Vehicle Size and Routing and Access Issues 

17. Although Trafalgar Lane is a two way road the predominant movement is thought to be north to south 
with Kemp Street acting as an alternative south to north route through the area.  

18. It is thought that local knowledge dictates the use of the lane at present and vehicles will look to see if 
the lane is blocked by loading vehicles before turning in. However it is also quite common for vehicles to 
turn into the lane and then try to reverse out again if the lane is blocked.  

19. Royal Mail vans from the depot on Gloucester Road are frequent users of the lane as a through route. 
Seven Royal Mail vans were counted using the lane (north to south) whilst the site visit took place. 

20. Access to the lane from both Trafalgar Street to the north and Gloucester road to the south is tight. Both 
junctions have substandard visibility. The largest vehicle that can safely traverse the junctions is a large 
transit van. Although as demonstrated through the Travis Perkins deliveries it is possible for large 
vehicles to reserve into the lane if necessary. 

21. There are no particular issues with parking on Trafalgar Lane due to the double yellow lines and the 
narrow width of the road naturally prohibiting parking. There are no defined loading / unloading 
restrictions and traffic wardens are known to be relatively accommodating basing permitted loading time 
on the size of the vehicle. 

22. Trafalgar Lane is also used as a pedestrian and cycle through route and is lined on one side with rear 
pedestrian accesses to residential properties that face on to Kensington Place. 

North Laine Traffic Management Proposals 

23. Travis Perkins have made formal representations regarding their concerns about the proposed changes 
to the road network in North Laine as part of the station improvement programme. 

24. The principal concern is regarding the access restriction proposed to the west of Trafalgar Lane on 
Trafalgar Street. The access restriction would see westbound traffic restricted to emergency vehicles 
only to discourage through traffic and stop rat running through Kemp and Over Street. If implemented the 
access restriction would likely cause increased use of Trafalgar Lane as a through route north to south. 

25. Travis Perkins believe Trafalgar Lane is highly unsuitable for use as a through route and would not be 
able to accommodate any increase in traffic. The narrow width of the road and the arrangement of 
loading on-street outside of the Travis Perkins warehouse already causes the road to become blocked 
when loading takes place and any increase in traffic would exacerbate the problem further. This in turn 
would potentially cause wider network management problems in the North Laine area.  

 
 

Distribution  

Name/ Signed Tim Hapgood 

139



  

 
   

File Note Time / Date 10:30am 7
th
 December 2012 

 Job No/ Name ST13305 North Laine Study, Brighton 

 Present John Beard, Nicholas Fleet, Peter Patrick (Royal Mail), Chris 
Sibthorpe, Tim Hapgood (JMP). 

 Subject Royal Mail Conference Call  

 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

1. A conference call was held with Royal Mail Brighton MPU, North Road, Brighton, BN1 1AA for 
approximately 1.5 hours on Friday 7th December between 10:30 and 12:00. The following topics were 
discussed and this note provides a record of those discussions. Prior to the conference call Royal Mail 
provided details of their inbound and outbound delivery vehicle movements as well as their collections 
and night time operations. 

 Overview of Royal Mail operations 

 Daily / weekly vehicle arrival and departure profile: volume and timings and data availability.

 Vehicle size and routing. 

 Vehicle loading and unloading operations: location, dwell time, handling equipment etc. 

 Vehicle access problems or issues. 

Overview of Royal Mail operations 

2. The Royal Mail depot handles both deliveries and collections and operates 24 hours a day. Operations 
begin on Sunday evenings and finish on Saturday afternoons giving an approximate 6.5 day working 
week. 

3. The site is situated to the south west of the North Laine area and bordered by Gloucester Road to the 
north, Foundry Street to the east, North Road to the south and Frederick Gardens to the west. There are 
access and egress points to site; one on North Road and two on Gloucester Road. The first entrance on 
Gloucester Road provides access to the loading bay, the second entrance provides access to an upper 
parking deck where vehicles are stored overnight. The Gloucester Road entrance is closed at night 
between 10pm and 6am for security purposes. 

4. Royal Mail are currently in a seasonal peak, which has resulted in some additional 31 vehicles being 
hired at the beginning of November in the run up to Christmas. 

Trip Generation and Loading / Unloading  

5. The data provided on vehicle arrivals and departures is currently being assessed in detail to build a daily 
and weekly profile. However initial analysis suggests there are close to 500 daily two way (arrival and 
departure) vehicle movements associated with the site over the 24 hour working period. Building in the 
current seasonal peak this figure rises to around 560 daily two way vehicle movements. The arrival and 
departure profile will in part be verified once the data from the traffic surveys has been received and 
analysed. 

6. Time periods with the greatest level of vehicle activity appear to be between 07:00 and 11:00 and 13:30 
and 15:00. Night time operations between 22:00 and 06:00 appear to account for some 40 two way 
vehicle movements. 

7. Loading and unloading takes place within the confines of the site. No particular problems were raised, 
although occasionally unloading may occur on-street on either North road or Gloucester Road depending 
on the volume of vehicles using the loading bay. 

APPENDIX B 

140



   
North Laine Study, Brighton JobNo. ST13305 
Royal Mail Conference Call   
 
 

 
Page 2of 3 

 

8. Vehicle sizes within the Royal Mail fleet range from small vans (150 cubic feet capacity) and LDV Maxus 
vans through to larger transit vans and 7.5t and 17t lorries that are used for collections and night time 
operations. 

Vehicle Routing and Access Issues 

9. With entrances on both North Road and Gloucester Road serving destinations all over Brighton and 
Hove Royal Mail vehicle routing varies depending on the day of the week, traffic congestion and vehicle 
size. Much of the routing chosen is based on local knowledge and drivers will select a route that gets 
them to their destination as quickly as possible given the time sensitive nature of deliveries and 
collections. 

10. Drivers are not told which route to take, except drivers of 7.5t vehicles which are required to use North 
Road. It is felt drivers are best placed to judge which route to take based on the prevailing traffic 
conditions. 

11. Key routes that provide access to the North Road entrance include Queens Road, North Road, Spring 
Gardens and Church Street. These roads along with Foundry Street also provide access to the 
Gloucester Road entrances from the south. Accessing the Gloucester Road entrances from the north 
requires use of Gloucester Road, Frederick Place, Over Street, Trafalgar Street and Blackman Street 
and Whitecross Street. It is thought that Trafalgar Lane is not a key route for Royal Mail vehicles 
because of its narrow width although vehicles were observed to use this route if the route was clear of 
vehicles 

12. It is also thought there is an approximate 50 / 50 split in vehicles using the different entrances. Except as 
specified at night when the Gloucester Road entrance is shut.  

13. Royal Mail are currently carrying out a review of vehicle routes, which will potentially impact on the 
current arrangements. 

14. It is acknowledged that the current site location presents its own problems, but the site is managed to 
run as effectively as it can. 

North Laine Traffic Management Proposals 

15. Royal Mail has concerns that the current traffic management proposals will potentially exacerbate local 
rat running of traffic. However it is thought the proposals would likely result in less Royal Mail vehicles 
using Kemp and Over Street. 

16. Key routes that are needed for Royal Mail to operate effectively include:  

 Retaining Foundry Street north bound; 

 Gloucester Road two way to allow access to Frederick Place; 

 Frederick Place either north bound or south bound as a route in or out of the area. 

17. It was acknowledged that with the proposals that Richmond Place/ Grand Parade/Church Street might 
become more of an attractive route compatred to the A23/St Peters Place/Cheapside / Whitecross Street 
for inbound movements particularly with increased volumes of traffic on Trafalgar Lane.  It was 
considered that this would not be a significant issue for Royal Mail.  

Conference Call Actions 

18. Following the conference call Royal Mail has provided number plate and vehicle type information for both 
their usual Brighton fleet and additional seasonal vehicles. This will be used to verify the records from 
Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) data captured as part of the traffic surveys being carried 
out as part of the North Laine Study. The information from Royal Mail is very helpful and is received with 
thanks. 

Distribution  

Name/ Signed Tim Hapgood 

141



   
North Laine Study, Brighton JobNo. ST13305 
Royal Mail Conference Call   
 
 

 
Page 3of 3 

 

 

142



Appendix 2: Letter of objection to the Frederick Place taxi rank from the North 
Laine Community Association. 
 

Dear Ian Davey 

 

I write to you on behalf of the North Laine Traders Association (NLTA), of which I am 

Chair. As you know we represent over one hundred individual businesses in a vibrant and 

essential part of the Brighton community. Our members have discussed and debated the new 

proposals for the Station Gateway Project (http://www.brighton-

hove.gov.uk/downloads/bhcc/transport/station-gateway/Station_gateway_-

_design_proposal.pdf) for some considerable time. 

 

Earlier this week we raised the subject of the Project at our committee meeting and our 

conclusions were summarised as follows:- 

 

1) Although the NLTA support the Council vision in making the Station a welcoming 

gateway to the City this should not be the detriment of the North Laine business area and the 

local community. 

 

2) To our knowledge at present no business in the North Laine has supported the proposals 

whereas many have strongly opposed, especially in the area immediately south-east of the 

Station. 

 

3) We note your undertaking to consult with the local community: 

 

‘’We're also talking to residents and businesses about changes to the current one way system 

in North Laine [PDF 111kb] to accommodate the taxi rank proposals and reduce current 

amounts of through traffic.’’ 

 

We await the outcome of these consultations, bearing in mind your (Green Party) published 

policies for ‘greater public participation at all levels’, ‘bringing communities together rather 

than dividing them’ and support your party commitment that ‘people must be able to play an 

active part and hold their elected representatives to account’ 

 

 

4) The NLTA cannot see any benefit in these proposals (moving the taxi-rank into Frederick 

Place and changing the road pattern) for our area and business community, only a prolonged 

period of disruption. 

 

5) We are disappointed that the NLTA's wish for better access from the Station via Trafalgar 

Street is not taken into account as part of the planning application. This would have been a 

real benefit to Station users and the North Laine business community, but words such as ‘are 

considering’ and ‘We hope’, on the above referenced proposal means that this is highly 

unlikely to proceed. 

 

 

6) Wider transport restrictions at the Station which the Bus Company wants have not been 

ruled totally out.  

 

 In Summary improvements to the 'Station Experience' enabled by moving the taxi's and rank 

143



should not be at the expense of the North Laine Area, both for local communities and 

businesses.  

 

As our Ward Councillor, you know this is a very important part of Brighton & Hove and the 

area needs to be carefully looked after and nurtured.  

 

The current proposals need re-visiting before you would gain our support.  

 

Regards 

David Sewell 

 

www.northlaine.co.uk 

Chair of the N.L.T.A. 
 

144



Appendix 3 - Southern Railway’s written confirmation of their 
commitment to better manage the taxi rank in future. 

145



146



Appendix 4: Wider Station Phases 
 
Changes to the environment to the south of Brighton Station have always 
been viewed as one part of a wider programme of improvement works that 
together provide significant regeneration of this area of the city. Current 
investment in the area exceeds £8m, and of significantly greater value if 
developments such as Block J and the Ibis Hotel in Queens Road are 
considered. 
 
Other phases, and their current status, are summarized below: 
 
1: Station Canopy 
 
Work with English Heritage and rail partners is ongoing to assess costings 
and practicality of various approaches that could be taken to enhance the 
station forecourt by improving or removing the canopy. The options being 
investigated are: 
 
1/ Do nothing (leave the canopy as it is). 
2/ Make aesthetic improvements (replace canopy glazing, paint dark 
woodwork lighter) to make the concourse feel more airy, but otherwise leave 
the structure as it is. 
3/ Remove the canopy completely and renovate the building frontage. 
4/ Remove the canopy, renovate the building frontage, and reinstate a new 
enhanced canopy. 
5/ A mixture of options above (for example partial removal of sections of the 
canopy). 
 
Given that work is ongoing, the report recommends that a decision on the 
future of the Station Canopy is deferred, subject to receipt of a future Network 
Rail planning application. The recommendation is not intended to commit 
Network Rail to submit a planning application. Rather it is intended to clarify 
that if partners decide that there is merit in changing the canopy arrangement, 
any council decision would effectively be made through the formal planning 
application process, with Network Rail making the application as building 
owner. 
 
2: Cycle Parking Hub / Northern Station Gateway  
 
Southern Railway has been working for some time on developing proposals 
and seeking funding that would enable a dedicated cycle hub to be built at the 
north of the station. Southern Railway has now secured funding of £850K and 
a planning application is being prepared. Southern plan to submit the 
application imminently and should it be agreed, work to deliver the facility will 
commence immediately. 
 
Planned improvements to the area directly outside the northern station 
entrance have been on hold pending resolution of the future of the Cycle 
Parking Hub, due to the Hub’s potential for significant impact on this 
environment. However, S106 funding in excess of £300K has been secured to 

147



enable improvements to be made, and design will progress following the 
outcome of the Cycle Hub planning decision. Proposals for improvements will 
be presented to a future Committee meeting as soon as possible. 
 
3: Improvements within the Station  
 
Southern Railway’s £4.9m enhancement of the inner station is ongoing, with 
works targeted for completion by the end of the current year. 
 
4: Trafalgar Street Entrance(s)  
 
The council is committed to supporting Southern Railway and Network Rail in 
reopening one or both of the historic entrances from the Station to Trafalgar 
Street. However, delivering the entrances is not within the council’s direct gift, 
given that the council do not own or operate the station building. The rail 
companies are currently in dialogue with potential commercial partners who 
could support delivery of this objective. Those discussions are ongoing.  
 
5: Mangalore Way  
 
Network Rail has a long term ambition to improve Mangalore Way. However, 
it is unlikely that any investment will be made in the area at least until 
completion of Block J. 
 
6: Block J  
 
Development of Block J, to the immediate east of the northern Station 
Entrance, is currently ongoing. As well as providing new office, hotel and 
residential space, Block J will incorporate direct connections between the 
northern Station entrance and Anne St / London Road. 
 
Hyde Housing are currently on site constructing the residential block (147 
units) at the north end of Block J, together with the greenway and public 
square.  Works started in February 2013. 
 
The amended planning application submitted by Fourshore (HOT) Ltd for the 
block at the south end which includes offices (2460 sq m internal floorspace) 
and 94 bedroom hotel is currently awaiting the completion of a Section 106 
planning agreement before the planning permission can be issued.  This block 
has attracted funding from Coast to Capital, the Local Economic Partnership, 
under the Government’s Growing Places Fund.   
 

 
 

148



Appendix 5: Revised Proposal

Station

Junction Road

Q
u

e
e
n

s
 R

o
a
d

S
u

rr
e
y
 S

tr
e
e
t

F
re

d
e
ri

c
k
 P

la
c
e

149



150



Appendix 6: Benefits achieved by the scheme against original objectives 
 
The following note summarises benefits offered by the proposal against the 
original scheme vision and objectives:  
 
Vision: 
 
A fitting welcome to the city 
The first impression of the city upon leaving the Station is dominated by 
complex traffic infrastructure and associated clutter (such as guard-railing and 
traffic signals). It is this infrastructure that has the greatest negative impact on 
the environment around the Station. By simplifying the carriageway design, 
the impact of traffic infrastructure is greatly reduced, enabling positive 
elements of the environment to take precedence.  
 
An efficient interchange 
Formalising the gyratory road system enables simplification of junctions, 
which improves traffic flow and enables easier crossing for cyclists and 
pedestrians. The gyratory system also enables carriageway space to be 
reduced – significantly enhancing provision for pedestrians (the main users of 
the space) without any detrimental impact on vehicular traffic. The rebalancing 
of space also enables a cycle contra-flow to be provided in Queens Road. 
Cycle parking is due to be enhanced by Southern Railway’s efforts to deliver a 
dedicated cycle parking facility at the north of the Station. Bus and taxi 
services are retained outside the Station’s southern entrance in a simpler 
arrangement which complements rather than dominates the environment.  
 
A high quality public place 
As with the welcome to the city, the main way in which the public places 
around the station can be improved is by removing the elements that currently 
have the greatest negative impact on the environment (those relating to the 
overly complex traffic infrastructure).  The simplified traffic arrangement 
enables widened footways which provide opportunities for businesses lining 
Queens Road to create outdoor activity areas. Improving the environment is 
also likely to encourage investment from business owners (as has happened 
in New Road). Where possible tree planting is also introduced to bring 
additional aesthetic benefit.   
 
Objectives: 
 
An accessible environment 
The project improves the accessibility of the environment for all through 
measures such as simplifying road crossings (the current arrangement has 
been described as one of the worst in the city for visually impaired people) 
and creating accessible taxi drop off facilities. An accessibility audit will be 
undertaken during the process of developing detailed design. 
 
High quality cycle facilities 
Southern Railway has been working for some time on developing proposals 
and seeking funding that would enable a dedicated cycle hub to be built at the 

151



north of the station. Southern Railway has now secured funding of £850K and 
a planning application is being prepared. Southern plan to submit the 
application imminently and should it be agreed, work to deliver the facility will 
commence immediately. 
 
By reclaiming road space the proposal enables a cycle contraflow to be 
provided on Queens Road.  
 
The simplified arrangement also reduces the need for clutter such as the 
guard-railing outside Budgens, which has historically attracted cycle fly 
parking, creating additional barriers to pedestrian movement. 
 
High quality pedestrian facilities 
By reclaiming road space, additional pedestrian space is provided on Queens 
Road and Surrey Street. As well as improving vehicular flow, simplified 
junctions enabled by the new road layout enable significant improvements to 
pedestrian crossings outside the Station and at Gloucester Road / Queens St.  
 
The simplified arrangement also provides a more pleasant environment than 
the existing, heavily engineered and cluttered streetscape.   
 
Effective and efficient deliveries and business access 
Dedicated loading spaces are provided for businesses including pubs on 
Surrey Street / Terminus Road. Located within the footway, these spaces 
enable businesses to be serviced without obstructing through traffic, and 
provide additional pedestrian space when not in use for servicing. 
 
An environment that reflects the qualities of Brighton & Hove 
The design of the current streetscape is heavily engineered and congested, 
untidy and cluttered and confusing. The poor quality of the environment 
makes it difficult for businesses in the area to thrive, which is reflected in the 
upkeep of some of the potentially attractive buildings in the area.  
 
By proposal simplifies the streetscape, creating a better balance of space and 
reducing the need for traffic related clutter, the proposal significantly improves 
the quality of the environment, and so the welcome to the city. 
 
Enhanced connections to surrounding areas such as North Laine 
The proposal primarily improves physical connections between the station 
and the south of the city by improving walking and cycling facilities along 
Queens Road and Surrey Street. These improvements are significant.  
 
Opportunities to make real improvement to the connection with the west of the 
city (via Guildford Road) are limited by spatial constraints on Terminus Road.   
 
Enhanced physical northern and eastern connections will be delivered 
through later phases (the Northern Gateway and Trafalgar Street entrances 
respectively). 
 

152



Simplifying the arrangement of Queens Road and Surrey Street also improves 
the inherent legibility of the route south from the station.  
 
Requirements and opportunities for enhanced signage can be considered at 
the next stage of detailed design. 
 
An environment that feels safe from physical harm and pollution 
The gyratory road system enables existing traffic flow to be maintained within 
a simpler arrangement. The simpler arrangement enables wider footways and 
improved crossings which reduce the perceived impact of traffic and make 
moving through the area much safer for pedestrians. Widening footways 
moves vehicles further from frontages which reduces impact of vehicle 
emissions and noise pollution on people in buildings lining the streets, whilst 
simplified junctions will improve traffic flow.   
 
An environment that is well managed and maintained 
The detailed design stage will consider maintainability of materials suggested 
for the scheme. Management of the environment, including taxis, licensing 
and crime, will be considered during and inform the detailed design process.  
 
An environment that encourages business success 
As stated above, the existing environment of Queens Road does little to 
encourage business success, whilst the proposal reduces the negative 
impacts of traffic in the area, creating an environment people (particularly 
potential business customers) are less likely to rush through. It is expected 
that the enhanced setting provided for businesses will be a boost to the local 
economy. New Road is a reasonable comparison as to the benefits that can 
be achieved through enhanced public realm.   
 
Better use of Mangalore Way 
Network Rail has a long term ambition to improve Mangalore Way. However, 
it is unlikely that any investment will be made in the area at least until 
completion of Block J. 
 
An improved Northern entrance 
Planned improvements to the area directly outside the northern station 
entrance have been on hold pending resolution of the future of the Cycle 
Parking Hub, due to the Hub’s potential for significant impact on this 
environment. However, S106 funding in excess of £300K has been secured to 
enable improvements to be made, and design will progress following the 
outcome of the Cycle Hub planning decision. Proposals for improvements will 
be presented to a future Committee meeting as soon as possible. 
 

153



154



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 78 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Resident Parking Schemes -  Formal Consultation 
Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 
Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 

Housing 
Contact Officer: Name:  Charles Field Tel: 29-3329 
 E-mail: charles.field@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
Key Decision: Yes  

Wards Affected:  Hollingdean & Stanmer, Preston Park, St Peters & 
North Laine 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1.  SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to address comments and objections to the draft traffic 

regulation orders. The traffic orders outline the inclusion of proposed extensions to the 
Area J Residents Parking Scheme (London Road Station area) The first was 
undertaken in the London Road Station North area (Appendix A) while the second was 
in the Round Hill area (Appendix B). Permission to proceed with the consultation was 
agreed at the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Cabinet Member meeting on 9th 
November 2011. 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS:  
  
2.1 That, having taken account of all duly made representations and objections, the 

Committee approves as advertised the following order; 
 
(a) Brighton & Hove Various Controlled Parking Zones Consolidation Order 2008 

Amendment Order No.* 20** (Area J extensions) TRO-6-2013  
 
2.2 That any necessary minor amendments and subsequent requests deemed appropriate 

by officers are added to the proposed scheme during implementation and advertised 
as an amendment Traffic Regulation Order. 

 
3.   RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
 
3.1 In 2009 a leaflet and questionnaire, asking about support for a residents parking 

scheme was sent to all properties in a large area to the north of Brighton covering 
Round hill and roads to the south of the Fiveways junction bordered by Preston Road, 
Stanford Avenue and Ditchling Road. At this time, respondents for the whole area 
were not in favour but a section to the south of the proposed area bordered by Viaduct 
Road, Preston Road, Ditchling Rise and Ditchling Road were heavily in favour and so 
Area J was extended to cover this area. 

 
3.2 Since then, the area to the North of London Road station and the Round Hill area have 

experienced parking pressures and the council has received requests to look at these 
locations again to see whether support for a residents parking scheme has changed. 

 

155



3.3 At the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting on 9th November 2011 it was agreed to 
consult these residents again to determine whether they would like the opportunity to 
join neighbouring residents parking schemes. 

 
3.4 In September 2012 an information leaflet and questionnaire giving details about 

proposals for a resident parking scheme was sent to all property addresses in the area 
to the North of London Road Station (1784 property addresses) and the Round Hill 
area (1260 property addresses).. 

 
3.5 Plans could also be viewed at exhibitions staffed by officers from Brighton & Hove City 

Council at: Stanford Avenue Methodist Church on Thursday 25 October, 1.30 pm to 
5.30 pm and on Friday 26 October 3.30 pm to 7.30 pm. There was also an unstaffed 
exhibition at Hove Town Hall, Norton Road from Monday 1 October, 2012 to 
Wednesday 31 October, 2012, 9am to 5pm.  

 
3.6 In the area North of London Road Station 715 valid responses were received giving a 

response rate of 40%. Overall, 394 (56%) respondents supported the proposed 
extension of the Area J scheme and 312 (44%) were not in favour. Responses from 
outside the area (17) or where no street name was given (1) were removed from the 
analysis. 9 responses where people did not state whether they are in favour of the 
proposed scheme were also removed from the analysis of this question. There are 16 
streets in the proposed scheme area. 

 
3.7 However, responses from Wellend Villas in Springfield Road were also separated from 

the final results. This is because at the time it was considered a car-free development 
and residents were ineligible for resident permits. Therefore, the final results outlined 
that overall 385 (58%) respondents supported the proposed extension of the Area J 
scheme and 280 (42%) were not in favour.  

 
3.8 In the Round Hill area 433 valid responses were received giving a response rate of 

34%. Overall, 239 (56%) respondents supported the proposed extension of the Area J 
scheme and 189 (44%) were not in favour. Responses from outside the area (7) or 
where no street name was given (6) were removed from the analysis. 5 responses 
where people did not reply whether they are in favour of the proposed scheme were 
also removed from the analysis of this question. There are 18 streets in the proposed 
scheme area. 

 
3.9 Therefore, the recommendation on 15th January 2013 in the report to the Environment, 

Transport & Sustainability Cabinet Member Meeting was that both these residents 
parking scheme extensions should be progressed to final design and advertised 
through a traffic regulation order. 

 
4.   CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The draft Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) was advertised on 20th February 2013 with 

the closing date for comments and objections on 13th March 2013.  
 
4.2 The Ward Councillors for the areas were consulted, as were the statutory consultees 

such as the Emergency Services.   
 
4.3 Notices were put on street for 20th February 2013 which outlined the proposal and 

after a week any missing notices on-street were replaced.  The notice was also 

156



published in The Argus newspaper on 20th February 2013. Detailed plans and the 
Traffic Regulation Order were available to view at Hove Library, Jubilee Library, the 
City Direct Offices at Bartholomew House and Hove Town Hall. A plan detailing the 
proposals is shown on Appendix A and B. 

 
4.4 The documents were also available to view and to respond to directly on the Council 

website.  
 
  London Road Station North area 
 
4.5 There were 296 items of correspondence received to the London Road Station North 

area proposal. All 296 items were received from individuals and included support, 
objections and general comments. The comments / objections are listed in Appendix 
C. 

 
4.6 121 items of correspondence were support for the proposals due to the parking 

problems in the area. 166 items of correspondence were objections to the proposals. 
The remaining 8 items of correspondence were general comments and changes 
required to the scheme. The 166 items objecting included 125 from within the 
proposed area, 29 from outside the proposed area and 12 addresses were not 
disclosed. 

 
4.7 The support and objections by road are outlined in Appendix D and they clearly 

indicate that the majority of objections have been received by the most Northerly 
roads. However, as shown by the informal consultation results outlined in Appendix D 
there are considerably less objections to the formal Traffic Order than objections by 
road to the previous consultation. To put the responses into some context the support / 
objections / comments from previous resident parking schemes since 2009 is outlined 
in Appendix G. Only twice in this period has there been more support than objections 
during the formal TRO stage (as opposed to support at the initial stage) and this was 
for single road extensions to schemes (Preston Park Avenue and Canning Street). The 
formal TRO stage is seen as a period to outline concerns rather than put forward 
support again as this would have been represented during the initial consultation 
period. 

 
4.8 The 166 representations that objected contained 18 different types of reasons to 

object to the resident parking proposals (some residents / businesses outlined more 
than one type of reason for their objection). 

 
4.9 77 of the representations were due to no parking problem being perceived in the area. 
 
4.10 Several residents in this area have been requesting parking controls to the Council 

and that is the why the Council agreed to include this area in the resident parking 
scheme priority timetable. Permission to proceed with the consultation was agreed at 
the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Cabinet Member meeting on 9th 
November 2011.  

 
4.11 From the original consultation in this area there are a few roads to the north against 

the proposals but there would be concern about vehicle displacement if these roads 
are not included. From previous experiences there have been a number of areas that 
rejected a resident parking scheme based on there being no problem at the time only 
to come back at a later date when part of a scheme has been introduced complaining 

157



about vehicle displacement. Officers have then been accused of having no “foresight” 
and eventually a re-consultation occurred and a resident parking scheme was 
introduced. Examples of this include Tivoli Crescent and Poets Corner. 

 
4.12 72 of the representations were that this is a revenue gaining exercise for the Council 

and / or they do not want to pay to park.  
 
4.13 When introducing new residents parking schemes the Council must demonstrate that 

these would be self financing. This is why charges have to be made for On-street 
parking through permits and pay & display. The Council do have to charge residents 
for permits for the schemes as the schemes have ongoing costs i.e. Civil enforcement 
officers, maintenance of signage and lining etc. Any surplus from the revenue received 
from the proposed parking schemes goes back into transport and environmental 
improvements throughout the City. 

 
4.14 48 of the representations were concerned that the proposals would affect businesses, 

services, schools and churches. 
 
4.15 Officers have met with representatives from the school and church to discuss parking 

needs and comments on the design have been considered. In some cases alterations 
have been made to bays in the area such as more pay & display bays for visitors. 
There were also a number of parking policy issues raised which does not come under 
the remit of this consultation, however, comments have been passed onto the relevant 
department to take into consideration. As with all the parking schemes introduced into 
Brighton and Hove the objective is to find the right balance of residents, business and 
daily parking for a local area. The introduction of a scheme will require that all day 
parkers and visitors using parking places will pay for their use. The consultation on the 
parking scheme is reflecting the fact that too many vehicles are trying to use this area 
or may park in certain roads if a scheme is introduced in other roads and a system for 
managing this situation has been requested by local residents. In terms of parking for 
the Church and / or Nurseries if a scheme is taken forward then extra exclusive pay & 
display bays (which finish at 6pm) will be considered in suitable roads in the vicinity. 

 
4.16 36 of the representations were concerned that displacement would occur. The majority 

of these respondents were from residents just north of the proposed boundary in 
Stanford Avenue. 

 

4.17 The council is aware that the introduction of a parking scheme may cause some 
displacement into adjacent areas, although to what level is very hard to predict.  This 
is because driver behaviour changes and where vehicles may go cannot be known in 
advance of a scheme introduction (e.g. some commuters using the local area may 
choose alternative means of travel or pay to park within the scheme). However, 
previous experience has shown that there can be a degree of displacement to 
neighbouring areas. Equally officers feel that not to proceed with a scheme in the 
proposed area would not be fair on residents suffering parking pressures and safety 
issues. 

 
4.18 34 of the representations were received to the reduction of parking spaces caused by 

waiting restrictions at junctions or across crossovers. 
 
4.19 The design of the proposals was created using guidance from Department for 

Transport and officer expertise from experience of previous schemes as well as the 

158



need for safety at junctions. In terms of crossovers the yellow lining is essential to 
make the scheme legal as there needs to be enforceable restrictions on every part of 
the public highway within a Controlled Parking Zone. The restrictions also need to be 
consistent with the rest of the scheme to ensure enforcement and deter any 
obstructional parking. 

 
4.20 34 of the representations were to the consultation process and / or that the process 

has been undemocratic. 
 
4.21 The consultation process has been extensive and is clearly outlined in the background 

papers outlined below. Overall during the previous consultation the majority of 
respondents in the whole area who responded were in favour of proceeding with these 
proposals. 

 
4.22 33 of the representations were received requesting that a Light touch parking scheme 

should be considered.  

 

4.23 The reason the scheme is being consulted on in this area at this point is because it is 
based on previous designs for an extension to a full scheme (Area J). The Committee 
agreed in November 2011 to take forward consultations up to 2014 for full scheme 
extensions where in particular residents had campaigned to be re-consulted and 
designs were in place.  Transport Committee on 15th January 2015 approved a 
recommendation in a report detailing the outcome of the Citywide Parking Review that 
no further light touch schemes are proposed. This is due to a number of issues 
outlined in that report including increased displacement and lack of flexibility for 
visitors. 

 
4.24 31 of the representations were that the scheme should only be in the Southern Roads 

of the proposal. 

 
4.25 As outlined in the report to the Transport Committee on 15th January 2013 there was a 

positive opinion from the majority of respondents within the London Road Station north 
area with sufficient public support for the proposed Area J extension, based on the 
scheme boundary. Therefore, the recommendation was that the revised Area J 
Residents Parking Scheme extension into the London Road Station North area be 
progressed to final design and advertised through a traffic order. In this area there 
were roads to the north against the proposals but there is concern about vehicle 
displacement if these roads are not included and the area as a whole did vote in 
favour of a scheme.  

 
4.26 30 of the representations were due to the fact there is no guarantee of more than one 

resident permit for each household or other permit issues such as for visitors or 
wanting a permit despite being outside the proposed area. 

 
4.27 Each household in the proposed scheme will be able to apply for one permit if they do 

not have off street parking for that vehicle. Any household requiring more than one 
permit can call the Parking Information Centre to request a second permit application 
form. Assuming that permits are available following the initial allocation, (as has been 
the case with the majority of previous schemes) these will be issued to other members 
of the household who have applied for a second permit for that household before the 
scheme begins operation. The number of permits issued currently in Area J is based 
on a 1:1 ratio of spaces available in resident permit only and shared resident permit/ 

159



pay & display spaces available and a waiting list will be created at that cut off point. 
Currently there is no resident permit waiting list in Area J and the current take up of 
resident permits is 718 (1120 permit limit) so it is at 63% of permit capacity. 

 
4.28 12 of the representations were that weekend / evening restrictions were not wanted. 

 
4.29 As mentioned previously the reason the scheme is being consulted on in this area at 

this point is because it is based on previous designs for an extension to a full scheme 
(Area J). The 9am-8pm Monday to Sunday resident parking scheme proposal for the 
original Area J parking scheme was designed by officers as it was felt this would be 
the best scheme for the area taking into account previous experience of implementing 
resident parking schemes over the last few years. This seven day proposal takes into 
account possible displacement at weekends and evenings (if the roads were not 
restricted) into the area from other resident parking schemes and restricted areas (for 
example Area Y in the North Central Brighton area which is a 7 day parking scheme 
up to 8pm). 

 
4.30 10 of the representations were concerned that the proposals will devalue property. 
 
4.31 We have received no complaints or evidence from residents that property prices are 

reduced due the introduction of a resident parking scheme in their road. 
 
4.32 9 of the representations were unhappy that the consultation excluded residents 

outside the proposed area.  
 
4.33 This was considered as part of the Citywide Parking report presented to Transport 

Committee on 15th January 2013. The area north of Stanford Avenue is due to be 
investigated from the end of the year with consultation with directly affected residents 
in 2014. 

 
4.34 9 of the representations did not want unsightly pay & display machines or signage in 

their area. 

 
4.35 The Council has considered the issue of additional street furniture causing street 

clutter and difficulties on narrow pavements. Therefore, the Council will be putting 
down the minimal signing / machines possible to allow enforcement and will take into 
consideration pavement widths.  

 
4.36 8 of the representations were concerned that there may be safety issues or perceived 

that there were no current safety issues to warrant the proposals. 
 
4.37 The design of this proposal involved liaising with the road safety team and the 

proposals should improve road safety by reducing parking on junctions. 
 
4.38 5 of the representations wanted free parking for the schools. 
 
4.39 This is a parking policy issue which does not come under the remit of this consultation, 

however, comments have been passed onto the relevant department to take into 
consideration. 

 
4.40 2 representations would like the parking scheme extended further.  
 

160



4.41 This was considered as part of the Citywide Parking report presented to Transport 
Committee on 15th January. The area north of Stanford Avenue is due to be 
investigated from the end of the year with consultation with residents in 2014. 

 
4.42 2 representations were concerned that no resident permits would be available to 

Wellend Villas in Springfield Road. 
 
4.43 It has been agreed that at Planning Committee on 13th March 2013 to allow the 

completion of a variation to the s106 planning agreement dated 27 September 2002 
relating to Wellend Villas, Springfield Road, Brighton to allow residents of the 
development to apply for residents’ parking permits. 

 
4.44 2 representations were concerned about taxi issues and specifically asked that taxi 

ranks be increased.  
 
4.45 The Council have taken into account all the taxi issues and also consulted taxi 

representatives as part of the traffic order process.  No taxi ranks are being removed 
or reduced as part of these proposals. Any requests for additional or increased taxi 
ranks can be considered as part of the six monthly Controlled Parking Zone Traffic 
Regulation orders. 

 
  Round Hill area 
 
4.46 There were 12 items of correspondence received to the Round Hill area proposal. All 

12 items were received from individuals and included support, objections and general 
comments. The comments / objections are listed in Appendix E. 

 
4.47 1 item of correspondence were support for the proposals due to the parking problems 

in the area. The remaining 11 items of correspondence were objections to the 
proposals. The support and objections by road are outlined in Appendix F 

 
4.48 The 11 representations that objected contained 9 different types of reasons to object 

to the resident parking proposals (some residents / businesses outlined more than one 
type of reason for their objection). 

 
4.49 6 of the representations were due to no parking problem being perceived in the area. 
 
4.50 Several residents in this area have been requesting parking controls to the Council 

and that is the why the Council agreed to include this area in the resident parking 
scheme priority timetable. Permission to proceed with the consultation was agreed at 
the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Cabinet Member meeting on 9th 
November 2011.  

 
4.51 6 of the representations were received to the reduction of parking spaces caused by 

waiting restrictions at junctions or across crossovers. 
 
4.52 The design of the proposals was created using guidance from Department for 

Transport and officer expertise from experience of previous schemes as well as the 
need for safety at junctions. In terms of crossovers the yellow lining is essential to 
make the scheme legal as there needs to be enforceable restrictions on every part of 
the public highway within a Controlled Parking Zone. The restrictions also need to be 

161



consistent with the rest of the scheme to ensure enforcement and deter any 
obstructional parking. 

 
4.53 5 of the representations were that that this is a revenue gaining exercise for the 

Council and / or they do not want to pay to park.  
 
4.54 When introducing new residents parking schemes the Council must demonstrate that 

these would be self financing. This is why charges have to be made for On-street 
parking through permits and pay & display. The Council do have to charge residents 
for permits for the schemes as the schemes have ongoing costs i.e. Civil enforcement 
officers, maintenance of signage and lining etc. Any surplus from the revenue received 
from the proposed parking schemes goes back into transport and environmental 
improvements throughout the City. 

 
4.55 2 of the representations were concerned that displacement would occur.  
 

4.56 The council is aware that the introduction of a parking scheme may cause some 
displacement into adjacent areas, although to what level is very hard to predict.  This 
is because driver behaviour change and where vehicles may go cannot be known in 
advance of a scheme introduction (e.g. some commuters using the local area may 
choose alternative means of travel or pay to park within the scheme). However, 
previous experience has shown that there can be a degree of displacement to 
neighbouring areas. Equally officers feel that not to proceed with a scheme in the 
proposed area would not be fair on residents suffering parking pressures and safety 
issues. 

 
4.57 2 of the representations were due to the fact there is no guarantee of more than one 

resident permit for each household or other permit issues such as for visitors or 
wanting a permit despite being outside the proposed area. 

 
4.58 Each household in the proposed scheme will be able to apply for one permit if they do 

not have off street parking for that vehicle. Any household requiring more than one 
permit can call the Parking Information Centre to request a second permit application 
form. Assuming that permits are available following the initial allocation, (as has been 
the case with the majority of previous schemes) these will be issued to other members 
of the household who have applied for a second permit for that household before the 
scheme begins operation. The number of permits issued currently in Area J is based 
on a 1:1 ratio of spaces available in resident permit only and shared resident permit/ 
pay & display spaces available and a waiting list will be created at that cut off point. 
Currently there is no resident permit waiting list in Area J and the current take up of 
resident permits is 718 (1120 permit limit) so it is at 63% of permit capacity. 

 
4.59 2 representations were concerned about taxi issues and specifically asked that taxi 

ranks be increased.  
 
4.60 The Council have taken into account all the taxi issues and also consulted taxi 

representatives as part of the traffic order process.  No taxi ranks are being removed 
or reduced as part of these proposals. Any requests for additional or increased taxi 
ranks can be considered as part of the six monthly Controlled Parking Zone Traffic 
Regulation orders. 

 
 

162



4.61 1 representation would like overnight restrictions. 

 
4.62 As mentioned previously the reason the scheme is being consulted on in this area at 

this point is because it is based on previous designs for an extension to a full scheme 
(Area J). The 9am-8pm Monday to Sunday resident parking scheme proposal for the 
original Area J parking scheme was designed by officers as it was felt this would be 
the best scheme for the area taking into account previous experience of implementing 
resident parking schemes over the last few years. This seven day proposal takes into 
account possible displacement at weekends and evenings (if the roads were not 
restricted) into the area from other resident parking schemes and restricted areas (for 
example Area Y in the North Central Brighton area which is a 7 day parking scheme 
up to 8pm). 

 
4.63 1 representation was to the consultation process and / or that the process has been 

undemocratic. 
 
4.64 The consultation process has been extensive and is clearly outlined in the background 

papers outlined below. Overall during the previous consultation the majority of 
respondents in the whole area who responded were in favour of proceeding with these 
proposals. 

 
4.65 1 representation received requesting that a Light touch parking scheme should be 

considered.  

 

4.66 The reason the scheme is being consulted on in this area at this point is because it is 
based on previous designs for an extension to a full scheme (Area J). The Committee 
agreed in November 2011 to take forward consultations up to 2014 for full scheme 
extensions where in particular residents had campaigned to be re-consulted and 
designs were in place.  In a separate Citywide Parking Review report that was 
presented to Transport Committee on 15th January 2013 it was approved that no 
further light touch schemes are proposed. This is due to a number of issues outlined in 
the report including increased displacement and lack of flexibility for visitors. 

 
 Conclusions  
 
4.67 The recommendation is that both scheme extensions be progressed due to the 

reasons outlined within the relevant background and consultation responses. 
 
4.68 Ward Councillors in all three wards affected have been consulted about this proposal.  
 
4.69 Preston Park and St Peters & North Laine Ward Councillors are in support of the 

proposals. Ward Councillors in Hollingdean & Stanmer have voiced their concerns 
about displacement into their Ward and also difficulties that may be presented to 
certain residents and services. 

 
4.70 In terms of the London Road Station North area there are a number of reasons why it 

is being recommended to proceed with the whole area rather than the Southern part of 
the area. 
 

i. There is concern about vehicle displacement if the Northern roads are not 
included. A number of previous experiences have seen residents originally 

163



against a parking scheme proposal come back to complain that the Council did 
not take this into consideration and that there was a lack of foresight by officers.  

 
ii. If a parking scheme is not taken forward in these roads it maybe a long while 

before the roads can be consulted again due to an agreed resident parking 
scheme priority timetable up to 2017. The timetable includes consulting residents 
north of Stanford Avenue in the Preston Park Triangle area next year which if 
taken forward would lead to the area left out being sandwiched between two 
parking scheme areas. 

 
iii. Respondents to the initial consultation in the whole area voted in favour of a 

scheme (58%). 
 

iv. The objections that have been received to the Traffic Regulation Orders are less 
by road than the objections received during the initial consultation when the 
scheme was originally agreed at Committee (Appendix D). 

 
v. Preston Park Ward Councillors have been consulted and although they appreciate 

the concerns outlined agree with the principles and recommendations outlined. 
 
4.71 Any necessary minor amendments or subsequent requests to the approved schemes 

deemed appropriate by officers will be introduced during the implementation stage and 
advertised through a traffic regulation amendment order. 

 
4.72 As part of the consultation undertaken in the scheme regard has been given to the free 

movement of traffic and access to premises since traffic flow and access are issues 
that have generated requests from residents and in part a need for the measures 
being proposed. The provision of alternative off-street parking spaces has been 
considered by officers when designing the schemes but there are no opportunities to 
go forward with any off street spaces due to the existing geographical layout of the 
areas and existing parking provisions in the areas.  

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The set up costs of new parking schemes such as this are capital projects and are 

funded by unsupported borrowing. This is repaid from revenue over 7 years, using the 
income generated.  

 
5.2 The financial impact of the income from the proposed new scheme, along with the 

associated ongoing revenue costs, has been included within the budget for 2013-14 
which was approved by Budget Council in February 2013. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates   Date: 09/04/13 
 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.3 The Council regulates traffic by means of orders made under the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984. Procedural regulations require public notice of orders to be 
given and any person may object to the making of an order. Any unresolved 

164



objections to an order must be considered by the Transport Committee before it 
can be made. 
 
The Council is under a duty to exercise its powers under the Act secure the safe 
and convenient movement of traffic and the provision of adequate on and 
offstreet parking facilities. It must also take into account any implications that 
orders would have for access to premises, local amenity, air quality, public 
transport provision and any other relevant matters. 

 
Under section 55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, as amended by the 
Traffic Management Act 2004, the Council must keep an account of all parking 
income and expenditure in designated (i.e. on-street) parking spaces which are 
in a Civil Enforcement Area, and of their income and expenditure related to their 
functions as an enforcement authority. Any surplus may be used for transport 
and highways related projects and expenditure such as supported bus services, 
concessionary fares and Local transport Plan projects. 

 
In carrying out consultation the Council is under a general duty to ensure that any 
consultation is fair. This means that it must be carried out when proposals are 
being formulated, that adequate time and information about proposals must be 
given to consultees to ensure that they can provide a proper response, and that 
any consultation responses must be properly considered in reaching the 
decision. 

 
The Council is under a legal duty as a public authority to consider the human 
rights implications of its actions. Parking and traffic restrictions have the potential 
to affect the right to respect for family and private life and the right to protection of 
property. These are qualified rights and therefore there can be interference with 

  them where this is necessary, proportionate and for a legitimate aim. 
 
  Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum  Date: 10/04/13 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.4 The proposed measures will be of benefit to many road users. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.5 The new motorcycle bays will encourage more sustainable methods of transport. 
 
5.6 Managing parking will increase turnover and parking opportunities for all. 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.7 The proposed amendments to restrictions will not have any implication on the 

prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.8 Any risks will be monitored as part of the overall project management, but none have 

been identified. 
 

165



 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.9 The legal disabled bays will provide parking for the holders of blue badges wanting to 

use the local facilities. 
 
6.  EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
 
6.1 The only alternative option for the proposals is doing nothing which would mean the 

proposals would not be taken forward or only taking forward part of the scheme. 
However, it is the recommendation of officers that these proposals are proceeded with 
for the reasons outlined within the report. 

 
7.  REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To seek approval of the schemes to the implementation stage after taking into 

consideration of the duly made representations and objections. These proposals and 
amendments are recommended to be taken forward for the reasons outlined within the 
report. 

 
 
 
 

166



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1.  Appendix A - London Road Station North area Plan  
 
2.  Appendix B - Round Hill area Plan.  
 
3.  Appendix C - Items of correspondence – London Road Station North  
 
4.  Appendix D - London Road Station North area – Road by road analysis 
 
5.  Appendix E - Items of correspondence – Round Hill  
 
6.  Appendix F – Round Hill area – Road by road analysis  
 
7.  Appendix G - Support / Objections to TRO – Recent Parking scheme proposals 
 
Background Documents 
 

1. Item 43 - Environment Cabinet Member Meeting Report – 9th November 2011 

 

2. Item 49 – Transport Committee Meeting Report – 15th January 2013 

 

167



168



169



170



171



172



 1 

Who Object 

/ 

Support 

Contents 

1. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

2. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

3. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

4. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

5. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

6. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

7. Resident Object • No parking problem. 

8. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

9. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

• Undemocratic 

10.Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

• Undemocratic 

11. Resident Object • Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

12. Business Object • It will affect our business 

• Undemocratic 

13. Resident Object • No parking problem. 

14. Resident Object • Undemocratic 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

15. Resident Object • No parking problem. 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

16. Resident Object • No parking problem. 

• Undemocratic 

17. Resident Object • Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

• No parking problem. 

18. Resident Object • Undemocratic 

• No safety issue / will cause safety issue. 

• Should be free parking for schools. 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

19. Resident Object • Undemocratic 

• Displacement will occur. 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Will reduce parking available. 

• No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

20. Resident Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

APPENDIX C – Items of correspondence – London Road Station North  

 
 

173



 2 

• Undemocratic 

21. Resident Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

22. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• No safety issue / will cause safety issue. 

• Undemocratic 

23. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Undemocratic 

• No safety issue / will cause safety issue 

24. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available. 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

25. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

26. Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur. 

• Would like parking scheme extended further 

27. Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Undemocratic 

• consultation excludes responses outside area 

• Does not want machines / signage in area. 

28. Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • consultation excludes responses outside area 

• Displacement will occur. 

• Would like parking scheme extended further 

29. Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur. 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

30. Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur. 

31. Resident 

 

Object • No parking problem. 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

32. Resident Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

33. Resident Object • No parking problem 

34. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• Undemocratic 

35. Service Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

36. Service Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

37. Resident Object • Undemocratic 

• Will reduce parking available. 

174



 3 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

38. Resident Object • Will reduce parking available. 

• No parking problem 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

39. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

40. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Will reduce parking available. 

41. Resident Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Will devalue property 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Displacement will occur 

42. Resident Object • Does not want machines / signage in area. 

• Will devalue property 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

43. Resident Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Undemocratic 

44. Resident Object • Undemocratic 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• No parking problem 

• Will affect businesses / services 

• Displacement will occur 

• Will cause parking issues for the schools. 

45. Resident Object • No parking problem 

46. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Will devalue property 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

47. Resident Object • Will reduce parking available 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

48. Resident Object • No parking problem 

49. Resident Object • Will devalue property 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

175



 4 

50. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

51. Resident Object • Will reduce parking available 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Will devalue property 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

52. Resident Object • Will reduce parking available 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• No parking problem 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

53. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

54. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

55. Resident Object • Will reduce parking available 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Will devalue property 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

56. Resident Object • No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

57. Resident Object • Will reduce parking available 

• Displacement will occur 

• Does not want machines / signage in area. 

58. Resident Object • Displacement will occur 

59. Resident Object • consultation excludes responses outside area 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

60. Resident Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• No parking problem 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Will reduce parking available 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

176



 5 

61. Resident Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Undemocratic 

• Displacement will occur 

62. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Will devalue property 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

63. Resident Object • No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

64. Resident Object • Will reduce parking available 

65. Resident Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

66. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Displacement will occur 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

67. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

68. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Displacement will occur 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Will reduce parking available 

69. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• consultation excludes responses outside area 

70. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

71. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

72. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Does not want machines / signage in area. 

• No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available 

73. Resident Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Displacement will occur 

74. Resident Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• No parking problem 

177



 6 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

75. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

76. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

77. Resident Object • No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• No parking problem 

78. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

79. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Displacement will occur 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

80. Resident Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

81. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

82. Resident Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

83. Resident Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Undemocratic 

• No parking problem 

84. Resident Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Displacement will occur 

85. Business – 

Petition ( 18 

signatures) 

Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

86. Resident Object • Undemocratic 

• Displacement will occur 

• No parking problem 

• Does not want machines / signage in area. 

87. Resident Object • No resident permit allowed for Wellend Villas. 

88. Resident Object • No resident permit allowed for Wellend Villas. 

89. Resident Object • No resident permit allowed for Wellend Villas. 

90. Resident Object • No resident permit allowed for Wellend Villas. 

178



 7 

91. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

92. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Displacement will occur 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Undemocratic 

93. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Displacement will occur 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

94. Resident Object • No parking problem 

• Undemocratic 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

95. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

96. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Will reduce parking available 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Will devalue property 

97. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Undemocratic 

98. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

99. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

100. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

101. 

Resident 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

102. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

103. 

Resident 

Object • No safety issue / will cause safety issue 

104. 

Resident 

Object • No safety issue / will cause safety issue 

179



 8 

105. 

Resident 

Object • Undemocratic 

• Will reduce parking available 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

106. 

Resident 

Object • Will reduce parking available 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• No parking problem 

107. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

108. 

Resident 

Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• No parking problem 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

109. 

Resident 

Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Will reduce parking available 

110. 

Resident 

Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Does not want machines / signage in area. 

111. 

Resident 

Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

112. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Will reduce parking available 

113. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Displacement will occur 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

114. 

Resident 

Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

180



 9 

115. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

116. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Does not want machines / signage in area. 

• Will reduce parking available 

117. 

Resident 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Displacement will occur 

• Will reduce parking available 

118. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Displacement will occur 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Undemocratic 

119. 

Resident 

Object • Undemocratic 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

120. 

Resident 

Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

121. 

Resident 

Object • Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

122. 

Resident 

Object • Displacement will occur 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

123. 

Resident 

Object • Displacement will occur 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Does not want machines / signage in area. 

124. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Displacement will occur 

125. 

Resident 

Object • Will reduce parking available 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No parking problem 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

181



 10 

scheme 

126. 

Resident 

Object • Will devalue property 

127. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

128. 

Resident 

Object • Undemocratic 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Displacement will occur 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Does not want machines / signage in area. 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

129. 

Resident 

Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Displacement will occur 

• No parking problem 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

130. 

Resident 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

131. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

132. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

133. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur 

 

134. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Will reduce parking available 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

135. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • No parking problem 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

182



 11 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

136. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No safety issue / will cause safety issue 

• No parking problem 

137. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur 

• consultation excludes responses outside area 

• Undemocratic 

138. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No safety issue / will cause safety issue 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

139. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur 

• consultation excludes responses outside area 

140. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur 

• consultation excludes responses outside area 

• Undemocratic 

141. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur 

• Undemocratic 

• consultation excludes responses outside area 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No safety issue / will cause safety issue 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

142. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

 

143. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

144. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• No parking problem 

145. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No parking problem 

• Will devalue property 

146. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur 

• consultation excludes responses outside area 

• Undemocratic 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

183



 12 

147. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

148. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

 

149. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No parking problem 

150. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

151. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • No parking problem 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Displacement will occur 

152. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Displacement will occur 

153. 

Resident 

(Outside) 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

 

154. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• No parking problem 

• Don’t want weekend / evening restrictions 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Displacement will occur 

• Undemocratic 

155. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • No parking problem 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

156. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • No parking problem 

• Displacement will occur 

• Undemocratic 

157. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Should be free parking for schools. 

158. Business 

(Unknown) 

Object • Taxi rank should be increased / Taxi issues 

159. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • No parking problem 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Displacement will occur 

184



 13 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Should be free parking for schools. 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Doesn’t want to pay to park 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

160. Business 

(Unknown) 

Object • Taxi rank should be increased / Taxi issues 

161. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • Should be free parking for schools. 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

162. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• No parking problem 

163. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • No parking problem 

• Will reduce parking available 

• Undemocratic 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

164. 

Resident 

(Unknown) 

Object • Undemocratic 

• Will affect businesses / services / Schools / 

Churches 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

• Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

165. Petition 

– 50 

signatures 

 

Object • Should only be in the Southern roads of the 

scheme 

166. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

167. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

168. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

169. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

170. Support • Support for the proposals  

185



 14 

Resident 

171. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

172. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

173. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

174. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

175. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

176. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

177. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

178. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

179. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

180. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

181. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

182. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

183. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

184. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

185. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

186. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

187. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

188. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

189. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

190. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

191. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

192. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

193. Support • Support for the proposals  

186



 15 

Resident 

194. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

195. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

196. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

197. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

198. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

199. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

200. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

201. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

202. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

203. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

204. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

205. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

206. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

207. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

208. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

209. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

210. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

211. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

212. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

213. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

214. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

215. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

216. Support • Support for the proposals  

187



 16 

Resident 

217. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

218. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

219. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

220. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

221. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

222. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

223. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

224. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

225. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

226. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

227. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

228. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

229. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

230. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

231. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

232. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

233. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

234. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

235. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

236. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

237. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

238. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

239. Support • Support for the proposals  

188



 17 

Resident 

240. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

241. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

242. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

243. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

244. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

245. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

246. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

247. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

248. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

249. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

250. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

251. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

252. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

253. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

254. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

255. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

256. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

257. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

258. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

259. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

260. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

261. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

262. Support • Support for the proposals  

189



 18 

Resident 

263. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

264. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

265. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

266. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

267. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

268. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

269. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

270. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

271. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

272. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

273. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

274. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

275. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

276. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

277. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

278. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

279. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

280. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

281. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

282. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

283. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

284. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

285. Support • Support for the proposals  

190



 19 

Resident 

286. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals  

287. 

Resident 

N/A • General Comment / changes required 

288. 

Resident 

N/A • General Comment / changes required 

289. Petition 

(28 

signatures) 

N/A • General Comment / changes required 

290. 

Resident 

N/A • General Comment / changes required 

291. 

Resident 

N/A • General Comment / changes required 

292. 

Resident 

N/A • General Comment / changes required 

293. 

Resident 

N/A • General Comment / changes required 

294. 

Resident 

N/A • General Comment / changes required 

295. 

Resident 

Support • Support for the proposals 

296. 

Resident 

Object • No parking problem. 

 

191



192



Appendix D - Support / Objections – Road by Road Analysis

London Road Station North area

(Previous Informal consultation results for reference)

Support Objections Total Support Objections Total

Ditchling Road 0 14 14 11 54 65

Edburton Avenue 2 14 16 19 35 54

Florence Road 31 4 35 65 15 80

Grantham Road 0 18 18 19 26 45

Rugby Road 19 9 28 60 15 75

Semley Road 0 5 5 0 8 8

Southdown Avenue 13 17 30 30 22 52

Springfield Road 40 5 45 149 22 171

St Andrews Road 0 3 3 4 5 9

Stanford Avenue 6 36 42 20 67 87

Beaconsfield Road 0 0 0 2 8 10

Ditchling Gardens 0 0 0 6 3 9

111 125 236 385 280 665

58% 42%

Outside of consultation area 6 29 35

Unknown address 5 12 17

Total 122 166 288

General Comments 8

296

193



194



 1 

Who Object 

/ 

Support 

Contents 

1. Resident Object • No parking problem. 

• Will Reduce Parking 

2. Resident Object • Will Reduce Parking 

• Displacement will occur 

3. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• Will Reduce Parking 

• Undemocratic 

4. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

• Should be a light touch parking scheme. 

5. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

• Will Reduce Parking 

• Would like overnight restrictions. 

6. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

• Will Reduce Parking 

7. Resident Object • Doesn’t want to pay to park. 

• No parking problem. 

• Will Reduce Parking  

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

8. Resident Object • Displacement will occur 

• No guarantee of a resident permit / permit 

issues 

9. Petition  

(31 

signatures) 

Support • Support for the proposals and a particular 

amendment. 

10. Resident 

(outside) 

Object • No parking problem. 

11. Business 

(Unknown) 

Object • Taxi rank should be increased / Taxi issues 

12. Business 

(Unknown) 

Object • Taxi rank should be increased / Taxi issues 

 

APPENDIX E – Items of correspondence – Round Hill 

 

 

195



196



Appendix F - Support / Objections – Road by Road Analysis

Round Hill area
(Previous Informal consultation results for reference)

Support Objections Total Support Objections

Belton Road 0 3 3 10 14

Mayo Road 1 0 1 4 8

princes crescent 0 1 1 28 14

richmond road 0 1 1 29 43

roundhill crescent 0 2 2 37 37

Outside of consultation area 0 2 2

Unknown address 0 2 2

Total 1 11 12

197



198



Appendix G - Support / Objections to TRO – Recent Parking scheme proposals

Scheme Year Support Objections Comments Total

London road Station north (J ext) 2013 122 166 8 296

Round Hill area (J ext) 2013 1 11 0 12

Richmond Heights (C ext) 2012 8 11 0 19

Canning Street (C ext) 2012 5 3 0 8

Tivoli Crescent (A ext) 2011 0 8 0 8

Viaduct Rise (J ext) 2010 0 62 0 62

RSCH scheme (H ext) 2010 1 6 1 8

Preston Park Station (A) 2009 1 29 3 33

The Marlet area (O ext) 2009 0 3 1 4

Preston Park Avenue (J ext) 2009 2 1 0 3

199



200



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 79 
 
 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Lively Cities – Regeneration in the London Road 
area 

Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director, Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Alan Buck Tel: 29-2287 

 Email: alan.buck@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: St Peter’s & North Laine 

 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 This report informs members of the results of the INTERREG IVB-assisted Lively 

Cities ‘place making’ pilot project that took place in the Ann Street/Providence 
Place area between 1 – 14 October 2012.  The project is one of a number of 
interventions planned to help regenerate the wider area, in line with the council’s 
London Road Central Masterplan (Supplementary Planning Document SPD 10). 

 
1.2 The council now has the opportunity to develop the successful elements of the 

pilot into a permanent plan for implementation.  Members are requested to 
endorse the preparation by officers of a plan for a permanent scheme that can be 
presented to the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee at the end 
of the year/ early 2014.  This will enable certain transport-related elements of the 
scheme to fall within the remit of (and receiving funding from) the Local Transport 
Plan (LTP).   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the committee endorses the preparation of a permanent implementation 

plan that falls within the remit of the Local Transport Plan and which takes 
forward and develops the successful aspects of the Lively Cities Common Room 
pilot project for the Ann Street/Providence Place area.  

 
2.2 That the permanent implementation plan be considered at a future meeting of the 

Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee. 
 

201



3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

 
3.1 In December 2009 the council adopted the London Road Central Masterplan 

(Supplementary Planning Document SPD 10) as a means of addressing and 
guiding opportunities for redevelopment, regeneration and other improvements in 
the area for the benefit of all.  One important aspect of the masterplan is that it 
identifies opportunities for public realm and open space improvements around 
the edge of the shopping area.  The intention of the SPD in this respect is to act 
as a driver for improved and increased opportunities for people to spend time 
within and around London Road, thereby benefiting a range of social, economic 
and recreational needs in this densely populated inner city area.   

 
3.2 In 2011 the council became a partner on the INTERREG IVB Lively Cities 

project, which aims to transform failing public spaces into popular and valued 
community assets.  This represented a welcome opportunity to develop and test 
an innovative transformation of the Ann Street/Providence Place area to the 
immediate east of London Road, which is identified in SPD10 as an area in need 
of public realm improvements in order to help meet the masterplan’s objectives.  
The area includes the bottom end of Ann Street and Providence Place Gardens 
(a small grassed park area opposite St Bartholomew’s Church). 

 
3.3 Detailed analyses, data collection and surveys were undertaken in the area in the 

autumn of 2011.  A range of issues were identified that were combining to 
prevent the area from meeting its potential as a place for people to spend time 
and enjoy.   These included incidents of anti social behaviour, street drinking, 
graffiti, the physical presence of fencing around the park - acting as a 
disincentive for many to enter it, a complete absence of amenities such as 
seating and a considerable imbalance in the physical space allocated for 
pedestrians (the vast majority of users) over vehicles - to the detriment of 
pedestrians.   

 
3.4 In January 2012 the council held a competition for an innovative two week pilot 

project to dramatically and positively transform the area.  The winner was ‘The 
Common Room’ a radical and wide-ranging proposal by Plan Projects, in 
association with Luis Trevino Architects.   This proposed a range of activities, 
facilities, physical interventions and traffic restrictions - including the removal of 
on-street parking, a ban on heavy goods vehicles, complete removal of the 
railings around the park, provision of terraced steps into the park, fixed and 
movable seating, an art wall, a performance area, free large-capacity wi-fi and a 
range of activities including after-school play (for the local primary school) and 
table tennis.  The Common Room pilot was tested between 1 – 14 October 2012 
and was a considerable success in enticing a far wider range of users to spend 
time in and enjoy the area.  A summary report on the pilot forms an appendix to 
this committee report, a full report is available in the members’ rooms (or can be 
downloaded from (www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/livelycities) and a visual 
presentation including video footage will be given during this committee meeting. 

202



 
3.5 The testing of the pilot project and its proven success have been important 

factors in attracting funding and resources via Section 106 Agreements and 
elsewhere for a permanent scheme to be developed and implemented  - in line 
with the objectives of SPD10.  It is now proposed that a costed and phased plan 
be prepared in-house by officers in collaboration with the Common Room design 
team, and in consultation with ward members and the local community.  This will 
allow: 

 

• an informed means to identify existing funding available for implementation of 
the initial phase(s) and an effective means of attracting finance for later 
phases 

• efficient and collaborative working across the council on a project that spans 
a variety of service areas and interests including planning, transport, 
regeneration, parks, sports and recreation, economic development 

• spin-off benefits to be fully explored in respect of other projects and proposals 
within and around the London Road area.    

 
3.6 Following community consultation and agreement by the Environment, Transport 

& Sustainability Committee of a phased plan, it is anticipated that implementation 
will commence in 2014. 

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Community engagement and consultation have been and will continue to be 

integral to this project.  A stakeholder forum including representatives from a 
range of local community interests was established in July 2011, has met on a 
number of occasions to input to the project and is kept abreast of project 
developments.  This has included representation by resident interests, St 
Bartholomew’s Church, St Bartholomew’s School, City College, the London Road 
Local Action Team (LAT) and local ward councillors. The project has been 
discussed a number of times at meetings of the LAT. Community workshops 
were held as part of the data collection in the autumn of 2011.  Fieldwork 
undertaken by community volunteers who were trained by the council helped to 
gather a wide range of data from residents, workers, shoppers and other users of 
the project area.  This information was integral in informing the pilot project brief.    

 
4.2 The judging panel for the pilot project included a range of stakeholders including 

community representatives.  Shortlisted entries were the subject of a public 
exhibition and consultation, with public feedback informing the judges’ decision 
on the winner.  Further data, including the public’s responses to the pilot, was 
collected by community volunteers during the pilot project in October 2012.  An 
online survey was conducted on the council website.  The results of these 
various exercises are discussed in the appended report.  Various forms of social 
media have been used to advertise the project’s ongoing development including 
Facebook, YouTube and Twitter, as well as press releases. 

 
4.3 The community will continue to be consulted via a variety of means (including the 

above and via the stakeholder forum) in implementing a permanent scheme for 
the area.  

 

203



5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 Preparation of the detailed implementation plan will be funded by a mixture of 

existing staff resources, INTERREG IVB and the LTP. Once the implementation 
plan is prepared, the individual elements of it will need to be properly costed and 
funding identified for it. The permanent scheme will be funded from a mixture of 
INTERREG IVB, Section 106 contributions, the LTP and other potential future 
funding sources (e.g. via possible access to funding under a future City Deal 
arrangement).   

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 14/03/2013 
 
 Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 Any infrastructure to be provided as part of the permanent implementation plan 

may fall within the definition of “development” under the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and will therefore require planning permission, unless 
permitted development rights apply.  

 
 The traffic measures outlined will require traffic regulation orders which will need 

to be advertised in accordance with the relevant legislation, following approval of 
the detailed implementation plan by Environment, Transport & Sustainability 
Committee. 

 
 In carrying out consultation on the scheme the Council must comply with the 

legal requirements for fair consultation. This means that consultation must take 
place at the stage where proposals are being formulated, adequate time and 
information must be given to consultees to enable proper responses to be given, 
and the results of any consultation must be taken into account when developing 
the scheme. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted:  Hilary Woodward; Carl Hearsum Date: 21/03/13 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 The Lively Cities project seeks to implement an element of SP10, for which an 

equalities impact assessment was undertaken.  Equalities implications have 
informed the data collection process to date.  Identified equalities issues will be 
taken into account in developing a detailed implementation plan, for which a 
further equalities impact assessment will be undertaken. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The Lively Cities project seeks to implement an element of SP10 for which a 

sustainability assessment was undertaken.  The project seeks to provide a 
greatly improved environment and public realm that will be a valued community 
asset, encourage walking, cycling, outdoor play and recreation and assist in the 
physical and economic regeneration of London Road, an important inner city 
area in recognised need of improvement.  

 

204



 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 The project has identified and seeks to tackle a range of public safety issues 

including anti-social behaviour, graffiti, street drinking, drug dealing and general 
perceptions and fear of crime. 

 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 A risk assessment was undertaken as part of the pilot project in order to ensure 

public safety and the safety of those taking part in its implementation.  Further 
risk assessments will be undertaken as appropriate in developing a permanent 
improvement scheme for the area. 

 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7 The pilot project tested a range of facilities and attractions that had positive 

public health implications, including the provision of table tennis facilities and 
after-school play for the local primary school.  It is intended that these aspects be 
taken forward and developed as part of the permanent project for the area. 

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 The project helps to take forward important aspects of SPD 10, which is an 

adopted corporate document that sets out the council’s land use, sustainable 
transport and regeneration aspirations for improving the London Road area.  

 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 The 2012 competition for the pilot project allowed for a wide range of alternative 

options to be examined against the competition brief.  The Common Room was 
considered by the judges to best represent the concerns of the project brief, in 
addressing the various recognised issues, deficiencies and other problems in the 
area. 

 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 Endorsement for the principle of preparing an implementation plan for a 

permanent transformation of the area will enable elements of the scheme, 
including input from certain officers, to be funded against the Local Transport 
Plan (LTP) 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Ann Street/Providence Place Gardens – Common Room Site Assessment 

Report (Summary – Headlines & Recommendations) 
 

205



Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. Ann Street/Providence Place Gardens – Common Room Site Assessment 

Report  
 
Background Documents 
 
1. London Road Central Masterplan (SPD 10) 
 

206



Printing advice: 

For optimum results, this document should be printed 

back to back. This is because information provided in the 

even pages has been designed to be complemented by 

207



 

1 

 

208



 

2 

209



 

3 

210



 

4 

 

211



 

5 

212



 

6 

213



 

7 

 

 

 

 

 

214



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 80 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: West Hove & South Portslade resident parking 
consultation 

Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Owen McElroy Tel: 293693 

 Email: owen.mcelroy@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Westbourne, Wish, South Portslade 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE.    
 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline a plan and timetable for consulting 

residents in West Hove and South Portslade in accordance with the 
recommendations of the city wide parking review (“the review”) whilst taking 
account of further ward member consultation. 

 
1.2 The review was an investigation into the way the council manages parking 

through consulting residents, businesses and other stakeholders and learning 
from the best practice of other local authorities. The purpose of the review was to 
seek continuous improvement in the council’s parking management services 
whilst balancing the needs of users overall. The review also sought to examine 
the future of controlled parking schemes including scheme boundaries, changes 
to existing schemes and new schemes. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That, later this year residents, businesses and other stakeholders in Wish ward, 

Hove, with the exception of Boundary Road are asked by way of a simple letter, 
and any other measures officers deem appropriate, whether they agree in 
principle to the introduction of a full residents parking scheme for their area.    

 
2.2 That officers in consultation with ward members consider the responses to the 

letter and decide which, if any parts of Wish ward should proceed to detailed 
design consultation and a further report is brought to Committee giving authority 
to proceed to detailed design consultation on any proposed scheme. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 In January 2013, Transport Committee, as part of the city wide parking review, 

recommended that parts of Wish Ward and South Portslade were consulted on 
separate full schemes together with an extension to Area R along Portland Road 
including roads to the north up to the railway line. At the same time it was 
proposed that Area W was asked whether it wishes to convert to a full scheme.  

215



The justification was that during the review there had been requests and petitions 
from residents in Wish ward supported by ward members. Parts of Wish ward 
were experiencing displacement from adjacent parking schemes and pressure 
from seafront visitors and commuters using the bus services along the through 
routes. South Portslade being adjacent and having significant retail and industrial 
areas and a busy rail station was to be consulted at the same time. The existing 
Area W light touch scheme in Westbourne ward was to be re-consulted on 
becoming a full scheme in accordance with the approved policy not to create any 
more light touch schemes and to re-consult on existing schemes. 

 
3.2 In view of the cost and staff resource implications of such a wide ranging 

consultation it is proposed to carry out an initial consultation with residents in 
Wish ward, with the exception of Boundary Road before progressing to detailed 
design and to consult ward members on the scope and timing of this 
consultation.     

 
3.3  The costs of the detailed design stage are substantial in terms of money and 

officer time as they involve full parking surveys of occupancy and duration, 
computer aided design work and the design, printing and mail out of consultation 
leaflets and questionnaires, return postage and data entry.  

 
3.4  It is council policy that parking schemes are only introduced after careful 

consultation and if the consultation produces a negative vote it should not 
proceed.  A detailed consultation would be an expensive and time consuming 
process without any guarantee that there will be resident support.  

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Between November 2011 and July 2012 seven community meetings were 

attended by officers.  Three meetings in Wish were in favour of consultation and 
two against.  In Portslade both meetings were against consultation. Several 
business owners in Boundary Road, Hove and Station Road, Portslade attended 
the meetings and said that the current arrangements of one hour limited waiting 
worked well for them and they did not favour any changes  

  
4.2 During the review 30 items of correspondence were received from Wish ward 

broadly in favour of a residents' parking scheme or in favour of consultation 
(includes Bolsover Road) and 11 against.   In South Portslade 5 items of 
correspondence were received broadly in favour of a residents parking scheme 
or in favour of consultation and none against.  

 
4.3  In the postal questionnaire sent as part of the review to 6000 households 

throughout the city the question was asked “If you are not currently in a residents 
parking scheme would you like to be in one?” A number of positive responses 
were received from roads to the west of Wish Park, also from Bolsover Road and 
Portland Avenue.. 

 
4.4 A further survey of opinion of ward members for South Portslade, Wish and 

Westbourne was carried out in March 2013.  
 
4.5  In Wish ward both members supported consultation on the principle of a scheme 

although both asked for the consultation approach not to be fixed in terms of 

216



geographical boundaries within the ward so as to allow to allow for flexibility on 
any final agreed boundaries.  There was no consensus for consulting residents in 
South Portslade or to re-consult the existing light touch W area.  The exclusion of 
Boundary Road from consultation was also favoured by one of the ward 
members 

 
 Conclusions 
 
4.6 It is proposed that a simple letter with a yes/no questionnaire should be sent to 

residents and businesses in Wish Ward (excluding Boundary Road, Hove) later 
this year.  If there is support for detailed consultation then a leaflet/plan and 
questionnaire could be sent to residents in early 2014 and subject to further 
traffic order consultation a scheme could be implemented in late 2014 or early 
2015. 

 
4.7 Consultation in South Portslade and the existing light touch W zone consultation 

should not take place.  It should only take place in the future if there is evidence 
of support from residents and the consensus of ward members.     

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The set up costs of new parking schemes are capital projects and are funded by 

unsupported borrowings. This is repaid over 7 years, using the income 
generated. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 02/04/13 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 In carrying out consultation the Council is under a general duty to ensure that any 
           consultation is fair. This means that it must be carried out when proposals are 
           being formulated, that adequate time and information about proposals must be 
           given to consultees to ensure that they can provide a proper response, and that 
           any consultation responses must be properly considered in reaching the 
           decision. 

The Council is under a legal duty as a public authority to consider the human 
rights implications of its actions. Parking and traffic restrictions have the potential 
to affect the right to respect for family and private life and the right to protection of 
property. These are qualified rights and therefore there can be interference with 

           them where this is necessary, proportionate and for a legitimate aim. 
 
 
 Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 08/04/13 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
 
5.3 An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been carried out on the implications of 

this report.  However the impact of residents parking schemes has already been 
subject to an EIA.   

217



 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 Effective parking management contributes to reducing congestion and improving 

safe access contributing to the promoting sustainable transport usage and 
tackling climate change through reduction in carbon emissions.  

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 The recommendations are not expected to have implications for the 
 prevention of crime and disorder.  
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 Any risks will be identified as part of the overall project management.  Parking is 

a corporate critical budget: however no major risks have been identified  
 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7 Parking controls may help towards reducing motor traffic in the city, and therefore 

the effect on public health in terms of harmful pollutants (and injuries sustained in 
collisions) will be beneficial to public health. Nitrogen dioxide, principally 
emanating from vehicles, is a respiratory irritant which is known to exacerbate 
asthma. There is a 3.5% increase in mortality for a 100ug/m3 increase in ambient 
NO2. There is a 5% increase in hospital asthma conditions for the same increase 
in NO2. 

 
5.7.1 The majority of locally derived pollution comes from either diesel engines or older 
           petrol vehicles. Generally vehicles are more polluting to the local environment if 

they are heavier, older or run on diesel. Therefore promoting travel choice has to 
be part of a much more comprehensive air quality action plan. Parking controls 
are a positive contribution.  

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 The report further develops a recommendation of the city wide parking review 

and will contribute to the following priorities in the 2011-15 Corporate Plan; 
tackling inequality, creating a more sustainable city, engaging more individuals 
and groups across the city. A specific commitment was given to “review the 
effectiveness and impact of current parking schemes on the city, for residents, 
businesses and visitors”.   

 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 The main alternative to the plan and timetable for consultation is not to proceed, 

however Transport Committee approved the principle of consultation therefore it 
is the recommendation of officers that it is carried out.  

 
6.2 Various options for consultation and their advantages and disadvantages are 

assessed as part of this report.  
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

218



 
 
7.1 The report outlines the plan and timetable for consulting West Hove and South 

Portslade on parking proposals for their area following the recommendations set 
out in the city wide parking review report to transport committee in January this 
year in the light of additional ward member consultation. 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Appendix A plan of proposed parking review areas 
 
3.   Appendix B proposed timetable of parking reviews for West Hove & South 

Portslade   
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None  
 
Background Documents 
 
1. City wide parking review report transport committee 15 January 2013 Agenda 

item 53  
 

219



220



221



222



Appendix B - Proposed resident parking scheme timetable  
 

 

 Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

 Quarter 1   2   3   4 1   2   3   4 1   2   3   4 1   2   3   4 1   2   3   4 1   2   3   4  

Priority Area       

 

1 

 

Wish Park / Portland Road 

 

      

 

2 

 

Preston Park Triangle / 

Lewes Road Triangle 

 

      

 

3 

Hove Park area (West Of 

Dyke Road) and Bakers 

Bottom. 

      

 
 

 

223



224



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 81 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

0Subject: Blakers Park Road Safety Scheme – TRO  

Date of Meeting: 30th April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Jo Brooksbank Tel: 291819 

 Email: Jo.Brooksbank@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Preston Park 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 In November 2011 the Transport Committee approved proposals to implement 

infrastructure improvements on several roads in the Blakers Park area, including 
Cleveland Road, in response to a petition from local residents. The measures are 
designed to improve the safety and quality of walking routes to Blaker’s Park and 
for pupils attending Balfour Primary, Downs Junior and the Montessori Schools, 

 
1.2 Consultation with local residents resulted in broad support for the scheme which 

narrows the southern end of Cleveland Road at its junction with Stanford 
Avenue, retains existing School Keep Clear markings outside the Cleveland 
Road entrance to the Montessori School and deters unsafe parking and 
maintains good visibility for pedestrians on the corners of the junction.  

 
1.3 The purpose of this report is to consider comments and objections received in 

response to the advertisement of a Traffic Regulation Order which extends 
existing waiting restrictions, introduces a short section of additional double yellow 
lines and amends the position of School Keep Clear markings along the newly 
created kerb line, to achieve the objectives above. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Committee, having taken into account all duly made representations and 

objections, approves as advertised the Brighton & Hove (Waiting and 
loading/unloading restrictions and parking places) Consolidation Order 2008 
Amendment Order No.*20** (TRO-7-2013)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

225



3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS 

 
3.1      The proposed Traffic Regulation Order relates to one location, the junction of 

Cleveland Road and Stanford Avenue, as indicated in the original plan of the 
proposals shown in Appendix A.  Appendix A1 shows the revised plan, redrawn 
after the school relocated its pedestrian entrance during the consultation period 
and to overcome the objections received from residents. Of the comments 
received, four are in objection to the extent of waiting restrictions proposed and 
one is in support of the proposed extension to School Keep Clear markings 
outside the Montessori School.  All comment, support and objections are 
summarised in Appendix B. The majority of objections received refer to the 
extent of double yellow lines proposed to control parking on the east side of 
Cleveland Road, outside the school.   

 
3.2      The extent of these waiting controls has been determined to both support the 

objectives of the Safe Routes to School measures, whilst also concurring with 
guidance on safe parking contained in the Highway Code (rule 243) viz.: Drivers 
should not park i) near a school entrance; ii) within 10 metres of a junction; iii) 
where a kerb has been lowered to assist wheelchair users; or iv) in front of an 
entrance to property. 

 
3.3      The double yellow lines proposed on the corners of the junction seek  to provide 

clear sight lines for pedestrians crossing the road, to see and be seen and for 
motorists throughout the whole day and night. These double yellow lines are 
close to the school entrances on both Cleveland Road and Stanford Avenue; 
they cover an area 10m either side of the junction and include drop kerbs on 
Cleveland Road and also on Stanford Avenue adjacent to the pedestrian island. 

 
3.4      The length of double yellow lines north of the School Keep Clears will not now be 

implemented and will allow for further parking opportunities at all times, thereby 
accommodating objections from residents. 

 
3.5      The School Keep Clear restrictions are to provide clear sight lines for motorists, 

children and their parents, as well as other road users, outside the school 
entrance during the extended school day (Mon-Fri, 8am – 6pm except August). 
They provide a clear area in which children and adults can cross the road more 
safely.  

 
 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The Traffic Regulation Order was advertised between 1st March 2013 and 22nd 
           March 2013. 
 
4.2 Ward Councillors for the area were consulted, as were the statutory consultees such 

as emergency service organisations and public transport operators.   
 
4.3 Notices advertising the proposals and the reasons for them were placed on-street on 

2nd March 2013; including a layout plan.  Formal notice was also published in The 
Argus newspaper on 1st March 2013.  Detailed layout plans and a copy of the 

226



proposed Traffic Regulation Order were available for public inspection at Hove Library, 
Jubilee Library, the City Direct Offices at Bartholomew House and Hove Town Hall. 

 
4.4 The documents were also available to view and open for public response on the 

Council website.  
 
5 FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The cost implications for advertising and making the Traffic Regulation Order can 

be met from the ’Access to Parks’ budget of £60,000 which forms part of the 
Local Transport Plan (LTP) capital allocation.   

 
5.2 Any changes to the Traffic Regulation Order, traffic signs and road markings will 

result in additional officer time and this will be funded from with the current 
available budget. 

 
    ………………………………. …………………… 
Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 18.4.13 

 
Legal Implications: 

 
5.3 The Council has power to make traffic orders under the Road Traffic Regulation 

Act 1984. The orders have been advertised in accordance with the relevant 
procedure regulations. As there are unresolved objections they are now referred 
to this meeting for consideration. 

 
5.4 Relevant Human Rights to which the Council should have regard are the right to 

respect for family and private life and the right to protection of property. These 
are qualified rights and there can be interference with them in appropriate 
circumstances. 

 
… …………………………………  …………………..  
Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 17.4.13 

 
 

Equalities Implications: 
 
5.5      The proposed measures will be of universal benefit to all regardless of age, sex, 

race, faith, disability, sexuality, etc. They should be of particular benefit to more 
vulnerable members of society, including young and elderly pedestrians and 
people with disabilities. 

 
Sustainability Implications: 

 
5.6      The Safer Routes to School initiative seeks to increase use of sustainable travel 

modes to and from school by increasing the quality and safety of walking, cycling 
and scooting on specific routes to schools. 

 
Crime & Disorder Implications:  

 

227



5.7      The proposed amendments to restrictions will not have any implications on the 
prevention of crime and disorder. 

 
Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

 
5.8      Any risks will be monitored as part of the overall project management, but none 

has been identified. 
 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.9     There are no corporate/citywide implications for the decision. 
 

Public Health Implications: 
 
5.10    Public realm improvements, including the installation of double yellow lines at 

this junction will encourage more families to walk, especially those on the school 
run to and from local schools on this busy route.  The increased visibility and 
additional kerbside space made available by the proposed waiting restrictions will 
help pedestrians feel safer when crossing the road.  Increased walking and 
safety both contribute to improved public health. 

 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 The only alternative option is doing nothing which would mean the proposals 

would not be taken forward. However, it is the recommendation of officers that 
these proposals are proceeded with for the reasons outlined in the report. 

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To seek approval of the Traffic Order after taking into consideration of the duly 

made representations and objections. 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Appendix A – plan showing the proposals as advertised with the TRO 

Appendix A1 – revised plan showing the amended proposal 
        Appendix B – summary of representations received 
 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. None 

228



 

 

 

 

Blaker’s Park Road Safety Scheme – TRO for 

parking restrictions 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A – plan showing the original proposal as 

advertised with the TRO 
 

229



230



231



232



 

 

 

 

Blaker’s Park Road Safety Scheme – TRO for 

parking restrictions 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A1 – revised plan showing the 

amended proposal 

 

233



234



235



236



Appendix B - Blakers Park Road Safety Scheme – TRO 
Summary of representations received 
 
 
Objector  
 

 
Summary of Objection 

 
Response 

 
Recommendation 

 
1 
 

 
Extent of yellow lines; loss 
of resident parking spaces 
at all times;  

 
Proposed parking controls restrict 
parking within 10 metres of the 
junction and across a vehicular 
crossover access to the school at all 
times.  A further section of 7 metres 
length deters parking on a pedestrian 
desire line.  
 
Existing School Keep Clear markings 
are retained in a new position but 
permit parking after 6pm and before 
8am each day. 
 

 
Objection Refused 

 
2 
 

 
Proposal to narrow the 
entrance to Cleveland Road 
will increase congestion 
already caused by parents 
who drop and collect the 
children at the school.  
 
 
Reducing the parking area 
and access to Cleveland 
Road will create a 
dangerous situation.  
 

 
The measures reducing road width 
were supported by the majority of 
residents and deliver several benefits 
including reduced crossing distances, 
deterrence of u-turn movements and 
allow for the creation of pedestrian 
footway where none exists. 
 
Parking controls will deter unsafe 
parking in the locations described. 
 

 
Objection Refused 

 
3 
 

 
Proposed parking controls 
will prevent Stanford 
Avenue residents from 
parking in Cleveland Road 
after 6pm. 
 
Footway way works in 
Cleveland Road are too 
long and narrow the road 
too much. 
 
 
 
 
The relocation of a bus stop 
is considered unnecessary. 
 

 
On street space will remain for 
parking vehicles after 6pm, on the 
School Keep Clear markings. 
 
 
 
The extent of proposed kerb works 
only reduces carriageway width to 10 
metres which is in excess of the width 
required to permit existing on-street 
parking on the south-west side of 
Cleveland Road whilst allowing traffic 
to pass safely. 
 
The bus stop is relocated to enable 
introduction of a Kassel Kerb and to 
improve visibility to the right for 
drivers using Cleveland Road. 
 

 
Objection Refused 

 
4 
 

 
Objection to the need for 
narrowing Cleveland Road. 
 
The proposed 10 metre 

 
Kerbworks enable creation of footway 
and safer pedestrian entrance to the 
existing school; Proposed parking 
controls restrict parking within 10 

 
Objection Refused 

237



deep no waiting restriction 
is excessive. 
 
 
Objector makes 
recommendations for 
alternative layouts. 
 

metres of the junction and across a 
vehicular crossover access to the 
school at all times  
 
Alternatives would not achieve the 
required objectives for safe Routes to 
School measures and be unlikely to 
overcome objectors own comments. 
 

 

 

238



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 82 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Dyke Road (Seven Dials) - Formal Traffic Regulation 
Order Consultation 

Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name:  Robin Reed Tel: 293856      

 E-mail: robin.reed@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected:  St Peters & North Laine, Regency, Preston Park, 
Goldsmid 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to consider the outcome of the formal Traffic 

Regulation Order (TRO) consultation for the provision of additional loading 
facilities in Dyke Road as part of the Seven Dials improvement scheme.   

 
1.2  The city council has recently consulted on an improvement scheme for Seven 

Dials that will primarily address the road safety problem that exists and also 
improve the area for all users.  Approval to begin construction of the Seven Dials 
scheme and to advertise the TRO for loading facilities in Dyke Road was granted 
at the Transport Committee meeting on 15th January 2013.  Construction of the 
main improvement works commenced in March 2013 as the majority of the 
scheme does not require a TRO.   

.   
1.3  A TRO for the creation of the additional loading facilities was prepared and 

subsequently advertised for 21 days with a closing date for objections of 4th 
March 2013.  One objection to the TRO was raised and is discussed in the main 
body of the report.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

   
2.1  That the Transport Committee (having taken into account of all the duly made 

representations and objections): 
 

Approves the BRIGHTON & HOVE VARIOUS CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES 
CONSOLIDATION ORDER 2008 AMENDMENT ORDER No.* 201* (Dyke Road 
– Seven Dials) 

 
with the following amendment: 
 
- the proposed Loading Bay in Dyke Road  (southern section) is to be amended 
and a Disabled Bay provided for the reasons set out in paragraph 4.6. 

 
 

 

239



3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

 
3.1  Seven Dials roundabout is an irregularly shaped junction with seven arms, 

located on the boundary of several inner city wards.  The roundabout is a key 
traffic node, distributing high volumes of traffic during peak periods and 
accommodating approximately 26,000 vehicle movements per day. The junction 
also experiences relatively heavy pedestrian flows and is used by a modest 
number of cyclists currently.  It is known to act as a barrier to further uptake of 
cycling, with many choosing to avoid the area in favour of quieter adjacent 
routes.  As well as being a difficult area for pedestrians and cyclists to navigate, 
many motorists find the area confusing and perceive it to be dangerous, with 
multiple busy roads converging into a small roundabout area.   

 
3.2  A total of 20 personal injury accidents were recorded within a 25m radius of the 

Seven Dials roundabout in the three year period October 2009 to October 2012, 
resulting in 23 casualties.  The Seven Dials is consistently amongst the top five 
sites for highest collision record within the city.  Given the poor accident record at 
Seven Dials and the other issues identified in this section, the city council 
recently undertook a public consultation exercise for an improvement scheme 
that will primarily address the road safety problem and also improve the area 
from the perspective of all users.  The proposals also included additional 
dedicated loading facilities in Dyke Road (north and south sections) at the 
request of local businesses that rely on such facilities.      

 
3.3  The public consultation lasted for a 4 week period, ending on 2nd November 

2012.  A total of 661 responses were collected, with 67% of respondents 
indicating that they support the main changes to the Seven Dials roundabout.  

 
  
4. CONSULTATION 
  
4.1  Following approval at the Transport Committee meeting on 15th January 2013, a 

TRO was prepared and subsequently advertised for a period of 21 days with a 
closing date for objections of 4th March 2013.  As is standard practice when a 
TRO is advertised, the Ward Councillors for the affected areas were consulted 
and statutory consultees, such as the Emergency Services, were also informed.   

 
4.2   Notices were put on street for the entire consultation period, these comprised of 

a legal notice as well as the scheme justification statement. The notice was also 
published in The Argus newspaper. Detailed plans and the order were available 
to view at Hove Library, Jubilee Library, at the City Direct Offices at Bartholomew 
House and Hove Town Hall and on the Council’s website.  

 
4.3  One objection to the BRIGHTON & HOVE VARIOUS CONTROLLED PARKING 

ZONES CONSOLIDATION ORDER 2008 AMENDMENT ORDER No.* 201* 
(Dyke Road – Seven Dials) was received during the consultation period.  The 
objection was made by a local resident on the following grounds: 

 
1). There is a lack of clarification about the information contained in this 
traffic regulation order.  There has been a lack of information and 
consultation about the order. It is not clear from the title that it mainly refers 
to Dyke Road (north and south sections of seven dials).  The section 

240



referring to TRO’s on the Brighton and Hove council website is unclear as to 
the period of consultation allowed.  

 
2). The specific proposal to move the bus stop at the north section of Dyke 
Road / Seven Dials would be detrimental to local residents, bus users and 
some local businesses because it would no longer be close to the pedestrian 
crossing and make things more difficult for many people including older 
people and disabled people, this includes access to the post office in Melville 
Road.  

 
3). The order would generally make things difficult for some residents and 
bus users in terms of general accessibility to homes, shops, the post office 
and general amenities (including the age uk resource centre in Prestonville 
Road). 

 
   A response to each of these points is included in the paragraphs below. 
 
4.4  In response to point 1 above, the consultation process followed for this TRO is in 

accordance with the Council’s standard practice and is consistent with all other 
TRO’s produced by the Council.  The title of the TRO is clear and is consistent 
with the naming convention applied to all TRO’s.  The deadline for responding is 
also clearly stated in the TRO.     

 
4.5  Points 2 and 3 are essentially the same and will therefore be considered jointly.  

In response to the concerns raised, the moving of the bus stop a short distance 
from its current location will not result in detriment to bus users or local residents 
wishing to access local shops and services.  The bus stop will remain in very 
close proximity to all the amenities in the Seven Dials area and will still allow for 
easy access to all of these facilities.  Local businesses in the vicinity originally 
made the request for the bus stop to be relocated a short distance north to allow 
for dedicated loading facilities to be provided in the area adjacent to their 
premises.  This will prevent illegal loading on the footway and on the bus stop 
and is therefore likely to represent a significant improvement over the current 
situation.  

 
4.6  In addition to the objection outlined above, a request for a dedicated disabled 

parking bay within the loading bay proposed for the southern section of Dyke 
Road was received during the TRO consultation period.  This request has been 
reviewed and although officers have concerns that the capacity of the loading 
bay may be insufficient during peak times, it has been agreed that the disabled 
bay will be included initially on a trial basis.  A review will be undertaken within 
the first 12 months of the scheme being in place to ascertain whether or not any 
issues exist.   

 
 Conclusions  

 
4.7  The recommendation is that the elements of the Seven Dials scheme subject to 

this TRO should be progressed in their entirety due to the reasons outlined within 
this report.  

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 

241



 
5.1 These works will be funded from the Local Transport Plan (LTP) capital budget. 

Within the 2012/13 LTP budget £200,000 is set aside for the Seven Dials 
Roundabout Improvement Project. Indicative sums of £300.000 and £50,000 are 
included for the next two years. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted:   Jeff Coates   Date: 27/03/2013 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 The Traffic Order has been advertised according to the Road Traffic Regulation 

Act 1984 and the relevant procedure regulations. As there are unresolved 
objections and representations they are now referred to this meeting for 
resolution.  

 
There are no human rights implications to draw to Members’ attention. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted:  Carl Hearsum                        Date: 28/03/2013 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 

 

5.3 The Seven Dials scheme will assist in meeting One Planet Living objectives by 
promoting and encouraging greater use of sustainable transport, and particularly 
overcome current barriers to walking and cycling.  

 

 Crime & Disorder Implications:  

 

5.4 There are no Crime & Disorder implications arising directly as a result of this 
report. 

 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

 

5.5 Longer term risks include the potential for the project costs to exceed the 
available budget and the risk of any identified enhancements having unforeseen 
negative consequences when implemented. The latter risk will be mitigated by a 
careful design and safety audit process in the first instance, and thorough 
consultation with end users.     

 

 Public Health Implications: 

 

5.6 Increasing the number of pedestrians and cyclists will directly lead to improved 
public health through increasing the use of active modes and therefore the 
amount of exercise undertaken by local people.  Reducing the number of people 
travelling by private vehicle will also lead to an improvement in air quality which 
in turn will improve public health.   

 

5.7 Reducing the number of people killed or seriously injured in accidents involving 
road traffic presents an obvious improvement in public health.  

 

242



 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 

5.8 There are no citywide implications arising directly from this report.    
 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
 
6.1 No alternative options have been considered as part of this report.  The approved 

scheme for Seven Dials has been subject to extensive public consultation where 
a majority of respondents indicated they are in favour of the proposals.  

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
7.1 To consider the outcome of the formal Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) 

consultation for the provision of additional loading facilities in Dyke Road as part 
of the Seven Dials improvement scheme and to recommend that the Transport 
Committee approves the TRO. 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 

 
1.   Plan illustrating proposed Highways improvements. 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 

 

243



244



�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�

��
�


��
��
�
�

245



246



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 83 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Amex Community Stadium Resident Parking 
Scheme – Formal consultation 

Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Owen McElroy Tel: 293693 

 Email: owen.mcelroy@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Hollingdean & Stanmer, Moulsecoomb 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE.    
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to address comments and objections to the draft 

traffic regulation orders.  The traffic orders outline proposed match and large 
event day resident parking schemes for the Coldean (B) and Moulsecoomb (D) 
areas of Brighton. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That having taken account of all duly made representations and objections, 

Transport committee approve as advertised the following orders: 
 
(a)  The Brighton & Hove (Coldean & Moulsecoomb) Event Days) Parking Order 20** 

(TRO-9a-2013) 
 
(b)  The Brighton & Hove (Waiting & Loading/Unloading Restrictions and Parking 

Places) Consolidation Order 2008 Amendment Order No. * 20** (TRO-9b-2013)  
 
2.2 That any subsequent requests deemed appropriate by officers are added to the 

proposed scheme during implementation and advertised as an amendment 
Traffic Regulation Order. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 

247



3.1 In September 2012 an information leaflet, map, questionnaire and pre paid 
envelope for reply was sent to 1169 property addresses in Coldean and 2810 
property addresses in Moulsecoomb.   

 
3.2 Plans for the Coldean Scheme could also be viewed at exhibitions staffed by 

officers from Brighton & Hove City Council at Larchwood Community Café, 
Waldron Avenue, Coldean on Thursday 27 September 2012, 1.30 pm to 7.30pm.  

 
3.3 Plans for the Moulsecoomb scheme could also be viewed at exhibitions staffed 

by officers from Brighton & Hove City Council at Moulsecoomb Leisure Centre, 
Moulsecoomb Way on Monday 24th September 2012 1.30pm  to 7.30 pm. 

 
3.4  There was also an unstaffed exhibition for both schemes at Hove Town hall, 

Norton Road, Hove from Monday 1st October to Friday 26 October, 2012, 9am to 
5.30pm 

 
3.5 In Coldean 345 responses were received giving a response rate of 29.5%.  

Overall 78.55 of respondents were in favour of the proposals for a match and 
large event day residents parking scheme in the Coldean Area. 

 
3.6  In Moulsecoomb 505 responses were received giving a response rate of 18%.  

68% of respondents were in favour of the proposals for a match and large event 
day parking scheme. 

 
3.7  Therefore, the recommendation on 15 January 2012 in the report to Transport 

Committee was that both these match and large event day resident parking 
schemes be progressed to final design and advertised through a traffic regulation 
order.    

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The draft Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) were advertised on 15th March 2013 

with the closing date for comments and objections on 5th April 2013.  
 
4.2 The ward councillors for the areas were consulted, as were the statutory 

consultees such as the Emergency Services. 
 
4.3  Notices were put on street for 15th March 2013 which outlined the proposal and 

after a week any missing notices were replaced.  The notice was also published 
in the Argus newspaper on 15th March 2013.  Detailed plans and the TROs were 
available to view at Hove Library, Jubilee Library and at the City Direct offices at 
Bartholomew House and Hove Town Hall. 

 
4.4  The documents were also available to view and to respond to directly on the 

council website. 
 
 Moulsecoomb 
 
4.5  There were 38 items of correspondence received in relation to the proposed 

Moulsecoomb scheme.  The comments and objections are listed in appendix A 
 
 Coldean 

248



4.6 There were 4 items of correspondence received in relation to the proposed 
Coldean scheme.  The comments and objections are listed in appendix A 

 
 Comments and conclusions, Moulsecoomb and Coldean 
 
4.7 A number of objections received are to the issue of just one free transferable 

visitor permit per resident under the schemes.  As part of the scheme the council 
is offering one free annual visitor permit per adult resident.  This permit is 
transferable and can be displayed in any vehicle.  In addition up to 25 additional 
one day scratch card visitor permits can be purchased each year at the cost of 
£2.60.  As part of the s106 planning agreement (deed of variation) a financial 
limit was agreed on Brighton & Hove Albion Football Club’s (BHAFC) contribution 
to maintain the scheme.  It is estimated that this will only allow the issue of one 
free visitor permit per adult resident without incurring financial risk to council tax 
payers.  

 
4.8 There are also objections on the grounds that either the proposals are simply a 

money making exercise for the council and/or it is intended to make the scheme 
a full paying scheme at a later date.   This scheme is paid for by BHAFC subject 
to the terms set out in the deed of variation to the S106 planning agreement.  
There is a financial cap imposed on the council and the scheme has been 
designed so as not to exceed these costs.  BHAFC has agreed to pay the costs 
of maintaining and enforcing the scheme into the future and there is no need or 
intention to extend the scheme to non event days or introduce additional 
charges. 

 
4.9 In response to a petition letter distributed to residents in Widdicombe Way 27 pre 

printed objection letters and one separate post card were received from residents 
of Widdicombe Way, Moulsecoomb opposed to the scheme.  The printed form 
states opposition to the plans for resident and visitor parking permits and says 
there will be a negative impact on resident visitors.  It also states that 
Widdicombe Way is not affected by football parking and that Widdicombe Way is 
in Higher Bevendean and not Moulsecoomb as set out in the public notice.  If the 
scheme is approved it is not recommended that Widdicombe Way is excluded as 
it is likely to experience displacement parking from vehicles in surrounding 
streets that are in the scheme.  The public notice is valid as it clearly refers to all 
the streets that are proposed to be included in the scheme.    

 
4.10 One objector states that the scheme will displace football parking to adjacent 

areas and that a bigger car park should be built for the stadium.  The proposed 
boundaries of the scheme are believed to be large enough to deter displacement 
parking although this is still possible.  Parking and transport arrangements for the 
stadium were fully consulted upon and considered as part of the planning 
process.  The club has agreed to a travel management plan and to funding the 
proposed residents parking schemes as part of mitigation measures  

 
4.11  General messages of support have been received by representatives of Sussex 

Police and Brighton and Hove Bus Company. 
 
4.12 Ward members for Hollingdean & Stammer and Moulsecoomb have expressed 

support for the schemes.  
 

249



5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The full costs of advertising and implementing the parking schemes, up to a limit 

of £153,000 will be met by BHAFC under the obligations set out in the deed of 
variation to the S106 planning agreement.  In addition, BHAFC will also pay up to 
£57,000 per annum, for maintenance which also covers enforcement costs. This 
sum will be net of any income received in respect of parking permits and penalty 
charge notices.  The scheme elements have been designed so as not to exceed 
these figures.  

 
 Finance officer consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 27/03/13 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 The traffic orders have been advertised according to the Road Traffic 
           Regulation Act 1984 and the relevant procedure regulations. As there are 
           unresolved objections and representations they are now referred to this 
           meeting for resolution.  

In carrying out consultation the Council is under a general duty to ensure that any 
consultation is fair. This means that it must be carried out when proposals are 
being formulated, that adequate time and information about proposals must be 
given to consultees to ensure that they can provide a proper response, and that 
any consultation responses must be properly considered in reaching the 
decision. 
The Council is under a legal duty as a public authority to consider the human 
rights implications of its actions. Parking and traffic restrictions have the potential 
to affect the right to respect for family and private life and the right to protection of 
property. These are qualified rights and therefore there can be interference with 
them where this is necessary, proportionate and for a legitimate aim. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 05/05/13 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 The proposed measures will be of benefit to many road users and include the 

conversion of advisory disabled parking bays to enforceable bays and the 
creation of bus stop clearways which will improve access to public transport.  

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The new bus stop clearways and waiting restrictions at junctions will facilitate 

easier access for public transport. 
 
5.5 Managing parking through the scheme will support local residents parking and 

increase turnover and parking opportunities for all  
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 

250



5.5 The proposed amendments to restrictions will not have any implication on the 
prevention of crime and disorder.  

 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
. 
 
5.6 Any risks have been identified and monitored as part of overall project 

management.  Parking is a corporate critical budget.  The main risk is that the 
costs of setting up and running the schemes will exceed the limit set by the s106 
deed of variation agreement between BHAFC, the council and other parties. 
However income from additional scratch card visitor permits and penalty charge 
notices can be applied to offset any potential liability. 

 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
 
5.7 Effective management of parking on match and large event days may help to 

reduce traffic congestion in the area, and thereby reduce the harmful effect of air 
pollution and injuries sustained in road traffic collisions. 

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 Proposals to manage parking are expected to reduce congestion locally during 

match and large event days and contribute to the following corporate priority in 
the Corporate Plan 2011-15 “creating a more sustainable city”    

 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 The main alternative is to do nothing.  However proposals to fund implementation 

of resident parking schemes, subject to consultation, are a planning obligation 
arising from the further development of the Amex Community Stadium, therefore 
it is the recommendation of officers that it is carried out.   

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To seek approval of the implementation stage of the schemes after taking into 

consideration the duly made representations and objections.  These proposals 
and amendments are recommended to be taken forward for the reasons outlined 
in the report.  

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Appendix A table of representations and objections to proposed Moulsecoomb 

and Coldean schemes  
 
2. Appendix B copy notice of traffic order  
 
3. Appendix C copy statement of reasons 
 

251



4.  Appendix D Map of proposed Coldean scheme 
 
5.  Appendix E Map of proposed Moulsecoomb scheme 
  
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1.  Item 49 Transport Committee Meeting 15 January 2013  
 
 

252



Moulsecoomb

Who Object/Supports

/Comments

Summary Officer comments

Brighton and 

Hove Buses

supports message of general support None

Sussex Police supports message of general support None

4 x Residents 

of 

Widdicombe 

Way

Objects/CommentsNo evidence parking is a problem in the street.  

One free visitor permit is not enough, the council 

should increase the number of free visitor 

permits.  Concerned a full scheme will be 

introduced.  Boundary of scheme should stop at 

Mouslecoomb Way.  Legal notice is invalid as it 

does not refer to Higher Bevendean.

The majority of residents and streets said "Yes" in the area 

south of Moulsecoomb Way.  Streets outside the scheme 

there could be under parking pressure from nearby streets 

that are in the scheme.The scheme is paid for by BHAFC 

as part of a variation to the S106 planning agreement to 

build the stadium and the club has agreed to fund the 

scheme into the future.  Adult residents are entitled to a 

free permit  per registered vehicle and one free annual 

visitor permit.  Additional scratch card style visitor permits 

can be purchased for £2.60 a day.  The majority of permits 

are free so the council is unlikely to make a surplus.  

Scratch card permits are only expected to cover costs.  

The scheme is paid for by BHAFC as part of a variation to 

the S106 planning agreement to build the stadium but 

there is a financial limit imposed.  Within this limit one free 

annual visitor can be offered.  Additional visitor permits 

must be charged for at £2.60 per event day otherwise the 

council will be exposed to financial risk.   The notice meets 

all requirements as it is entirely clear what roads are included in the proposed scheme.

Petition/pro 

forma from 28 

Widdicombe 

Way residents

Objects No parking problem in the street.  Council should 

not restrict visitor parking.  Widdicombe Way is 

in Higher Bevendean and not Moulsecoombe 

making legal notice invalid.

The proposed scheme includes streets in Higher 

Bevendean because if they were not in the scheme they 

could experience parking pressure from nearby streets that  

are in the scheme.  The notice meets all requirements as it 

is entirely clear what roads are included in the proposed 

scheme.  It is necessary to place some numerical 

limitations on vistors and to charge for additional visitor 

day permits as otherwise visitor permits could be passed 

on to event attendees or others reducing the schemes 

effectiveness.  The charge for visitor scratch cards is  also 

there to avoid the council being exposed to financial risk. 

Allotment 

holder for 

Coldean plot 

who lives in 

Moulsecoomb

Objects/Comments Scheme restricts the freedom of residents for the 

benefit of a minority.  How can I and my co 

worker access our allotment?

The scheme was subject to public consultation and was 

supported by the majority of residents who submitted 

questionnaires.   It is proposed that allotment holders and 

co workers will be allocated free visitor permits.  

Resident of 

Chailey Road

Objects Lack of proper notification. Only one permit per 

house is insufficient.  Will displace fans to other 

areas.  Should build a bigger car park near the 

stadium.  Needs guarantee that scheme will 

remain free.

All proper legal requirements for notification have been 

met.  Permit allocation is more generous than one per 

household (see above) The proposed scope of the scheme 

is wide enough to deter displacment parking although it is 

still possible.  Conditions were attached to the planning 

permission for the stadium and additional seating that set 

out the transport and parking mitigations and include the 

club funding and maintaining the proposed parking 

scheme into the future. 

2 x Residents 

of Wheatfield 

Way

Objects Visitors should not have to pay to park and 

numbers should not be limited.  Residents do not 

know when events will take place.  Who will pay 

to enforce the scheme?  Insufficient notice given 

of proposals to enable people to object.

It is necessary to place some numerical limitations on 

visitors and to charge for additional visitor day permits as 

otherwise visitor permits could be passed on to event 

attendees or others reducing the schemes effectiveness.  

The charge for visitor scratch cards is also there to avoid 

the council being exposed to financial risk.  The scheme 

will be enforced by contracted parking attendants paid for 

by BHAFC.  All proper legal requirements for notification 

have been met.

Coldean

Who Object/Supports

/Comments

Summary Officer comments

Taxi owner objects Lives in Moulsecoomb but leaves a taxi in 

Coldean with a co driver who is a resident of 

Coldean.  The scheme will cause difficulties.

The taxi driver can use the resident's transferable vistor 

permits or the paid for scratch card day vistor permits to 

park legally.

Brighton and 

Hove Buses

supports message of general support None

Sussex Police supports message of general support None

Small 

business 

owner in 

Beatty 

Avenue.

comments Worried about parking on match days Will be entitled to apply for a free business permit.

Proposed match and event day resident parking schemes summary of representations & comments

Appendix A

253



254



 1

APPENDIX B – COPY NOTICE OF TRAFFIC ORDER 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that Brighton & Hove City Council (“the Council”) proposes to 

make the Orders named below under the relevant Sections of the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984 as amended which if they come into force will introduce the 

changes described.   

 
Brighton & Hove (Coldean & Moulsecoomb) (Event Days) Parking Order 20** (TRO-9a-

2013) 

The effect of the Order would be to introduce a residents parking scheme in the roads 

in Coldean and Moulsecoomb identified below.  The scheme would operate on days 

when football matches and other large events are due to be held at the American 

Express Community Stadium in Falmer.    

 

Parking in the following roads would be restricted on those days to permit holders only 

other than limited waiting parking bays proposed by the separate Order advertised in 

this notice and existing parking bays for disabled persons:    

 

Coldean – Parking Zone “B” 

Arlington Crescent, Ashburnham Close, Ashburnham Drive, Beatty Avenue, Coldean 

Lane (from its junction with Lewes Road north-westwards to the prolongation of the 

northern kerb line of the northern arm of Hawkhurst Road only), Crawley Road, Forest 

Road, Haig Avenue, Hawkhurst Road, Highfields, Ingham Drive, Kenwards, Middleton 

Rise, Monk Close, Nanson Road, Park Close, Park Road, Reeves Hill, Ridge View, 

Roundway, Rushlake Close, Rushlake Road, Rusper Road, Saunders Hill, Selham Close, 

Selham Drive, Standean Close, Talbot Crescent, The Byway, The Charltons, The Meads, 

Twyford Road, Waldron Avenue, Walton Bank, Woburn Place, Wolseley Road, 

Woodview Close.  

 

Moulsecoomb – Parking Zone “D” 

Appledore Road, Ashurst Road, Barcombe Road, Beech Grove, Bevendean Crescent, 

Birdham Road, Bolney Road, Broadfields, Chailey Road, Colbourne Avenue, Egginton 

Close, Egginton Road, Friston Close, Goodwood Way, Halland Road, Highbrook Close, 

Highway Close, Hillside, Hodshrove Road, Home Farm Road, Lucraft Road, Medmerry 

Hill, Moulsecoomb Way, Newick Road, Nyetimber Hill, Ringmer Close, Ringmer Drive, 

Ringmer Road, Ryelands Drive, Selba Drive, Selsfield Drive, Shortgate Road, Staplefield 

Drive, Stonecross Road, Sullington Close, The Crescent, The Highway (69-114 inclusive 

only), Thorndean Road, Westergate Road, Wheatfield Way, Widdicombe Way, Wild 

Park Close.   

 

Resident Permits and one transferable visitor permit will be available at no charge to 

residents upon application, subject to certain restrictions.  An administration charge 

would apply upon changes of vehicle or if a permit were lost or destroyed.  

Additionally, residents would be able to buy up to 25 visitor permits each year at a cost 

of (currently) £2.60 each.  Each of these additional visitor permits would be for use on 

one day only.  Disabled residents who have a Blue Badge would be able to park 

without a permit.  A resident for all these purposes would be a person aged 17 years or 

over whose usual place of residence is at premises the postal address of which is in 

255



 2

one of the roads listed below. A permit would not be required for the parking of a 

motorcycle. 

 

The Order would also introduce to the areas; Business, School and Carer permits all of 

which would be issued without charge subject to application and certain restrictions.  

Briefly, Business permits would be available to businesses located within the scheme 

areas to enable vehicles used in connection with that business to be parked on-street 

on match and other event days.  School permits would be available to schools 

located within the scheme areas on the basis of 1 permit for each 6 members of the 

teaching staff.  Carer permits would be available to non-professional carers, if the 

carer, who would not need to be a resident, has to visit a resident (or residents) within 

a scheme area and that resident is in need of a carer by virtue of age and or 

physical/mental infirmity or is a woman requiring ante or post natal care.  An 

administration charge would apply upon changes of vehicle or if a permit were lost or 

destroyed.    

 

 

 

Lists of roads for the purpose of permit eligibility (permits would be issued for use in the 

relevant zone only): 

 

Coldean – Parking Zone “B” 

Arlington Crescent, Ashburnham Close, Ashburnham Drive, Beatty Avenue, Coldean 

Lane (from its junction with Lewes Road north-westwards to the prolongation of the 

northern kerb line of the northern arm of Hawkhurst Road only), Crawley Road, Forest 

Road, Haig Avenue, Hawkhurst Road, Highfields, Ingham Drive, Kenwards, Middleton 

Rise, Monk Close, Nanson Road, Park Close, Park Road, Reeves Hill, Ridge View, 

Roundway, Rushlake Close, Rushlake Road, Rusper Road, Saunders Hill, Selham Close, 

Selham Drive, Standean Close, Talbot Crescent, The Byway, The Charltons, The Meads, 

Twyford Road, Waldron Avenue, Walton Bank, Woburn Place, Wolseley Road, 

Woodview Close. 

 

Moulsecoomb – Parking Zone “D” 

Appledore Road, Ashurst Road, Barcombe Road, Beech Grove, Bevendean Crescent, 

Birdham Road, Bolney Road, Broadfields, Chailey Road, Colbourne Avenue, 

Eastergate Road (including Fairway Trading Estate), Egginton Close, Egginton Road, 

Friston Close, Goodwood Way, Halland Road, Highbrook Close, Highway Close, 

Hillside, Hillside Way, Hodshrove Lane, Hodshrove Road,  

Home Farm Road (including Home Farm Business Centre), Lewes Road (from the 

boundary of 68/69 The Highway to the prolongation of the eastern kerb line of 

Coldean Lane only), Lucraft Road, Medmerry Hill, Moulsecoomb Way (including 

Fairway Industrial Estate), Newick Road, Nyetimber Hill, Ringmer Close, Ringmer Drive, 

Ringmer Road, Ryelands Drive, Selba Drive, Selsfield Drive, Shortgate Road, Staplefield 

Drive, Stonecross Road, Sullington Close, The Crescent, The Highway (69-114 inclusive 

only), Thorndean Road, Westergate Road (including Fairway Business Centre and 

Westergate Business Centre), Wheatfield Way, Widdicombe Way, Wild Park Close.   

 
Brighton & Hove (Waiting & Loading/Unloading Restrictions and Parking Places) 

Consolidation Order 2008 Amendment Order No.* 20** (TRO-9b-2013) 

New No Waiting at Any Time restrictions (double yellow lines) in the following roads: 

• Barcombe Road (eastern end), Egginton Close (at junction with Lucraft Road), 

Forest Road (west side), Goodwood Way (northwest side), Hawkhurst Road (at 

256



 3

junction with Rushlake Road), Hodshrove Lane (alongside existing school keep clear 

markings), Kenwards (adjacent to existing school keep clear markings), Lucraft 

Road (at junction with Egginton Close), Rushlake Road (at junction with Hawkhurst 

Road), Selham Drive (alongside existing school keep clear markings). 

 

Change existing No Waiting (at various times) restrictions (single yellow lines) in the 

following roads to No Waiting Monday to Sunday 9am to 8pm: 

• Moulsecoomb Way (south side between Lewes Road and Hodshrove Way) 

• Ryelands Drive (north side opposite junction with Selsfield Drive) 

• Selham Drive (north side from junction with Selham Close) 

• The Highway (both sides adjacent to property Nos.75-82 and 85-94) 

 

New Limited Waiting Parking Places, maximum stay 30 minutes (no return within 1 

hour), Monday to Sunday 9am to 8pm in the following roads: 

• Barcombe Road (east side between southern spur of Newick Road and the Post 

Office) 

• Beatty Avenue (east side near junction with Hawkhurst Road) 

• Park Road (south side near junction with Coldean Lane) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A copy of this Notice, the proposed Orders, plans showing the lengths of road 

affected and a statement of the Council's reasons for proposing to make the Orders 

may be seen online at www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/tro-proposals.  These documents 

and a copy of the existing Order to be amended may also be examined at:  

• Customer Service Centres at Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton 

(Monday to Friday 8.45am-4.30pm) and Hove Town Hall, Ground Floor, Norton 

Road, Hove, (Monday to Friday 8.45am-5.00pm) 

• Brighton Jubilee Library, Jubilee Street, Monday, Tuesday and Thursday 10am-7pm, 

Wednesday, Friday and Saturday 10am–5pm, Sunday 11am–5pm  

• Hove Central Library, Church Road, Monday 1.30pm – 5.30pm, Tuesday 9.30am-

7.30pm, Wednesday to Friday 9.30am-5.30pm and Saturday 9.30am-5.00pm 

 

All objections and other representations relating to the proposed Orders must be 

made in writing and all objections must specify the grounds on which they are made 

and should be sent to the Head of Transport, Brighton & Hove City Council, Parking 

Infrastructure, Hove Town Hall (room 323), Norton Road, Hove, BN3 3BQ quoting the 

TRO reference numbers shown above or by e-mail to parking.consultation@brighton-

hove.gov.uk or online (see details above) no later than 5th April 2013. 

 

Dated: 15th March 2013 

 

Head of Transport          

Brighton & Hove City Council 

Parking Infrastructure 

Hove Town Hall (room 323) 

257



 4

Norton Road     

HOVE    BN3 3BQ 

258



APPENDIX C – COPY NOTCIE OF STATEMENT OF REASONS 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 

 

STATEMENT OF REASONS 

 

Brighton & Hove (Coldean & Moulsecoomb) (Event Days) Parking Order 20**  

 

The Council’s reasons for proposing the above named Order are to improve 

parking management in Coldean and Moulsecoomb on days that football 

matches and other large events are held at the Amex Community Stadium 

(Falmer), for the benefit of residents, visitors and local businesses.  

The new controlled parking areas will operate on an exclusive permit holder only 

basis on those days (other than disabled badge holders parking bays and new 

limited waiting parking places).     

 

The schemes also aim to encourage the use of public transport in accordance with 

Brighton & Hove City Council’s transport and parking policies.  

 

If introduced, the match and event day parking schemes will improve the amenities 

in the area for residents, businesses and visitors.  

 

As well as permits for residents, Resident Visitor, Business, School and Carer permits 

will be introduced  to enable parking on the restricted days for those users for the 

benefit of the local community. 

 

Brighton & Hove (Waiting & Loading/Unloading Restrictions and Parking Places) 

Consolidation Order 2008 Amendment Order No.* 20**  

 

The Council’s reasons for proposing the above named Order are as follows:- 

 

New No Waiting at Any Time restrictions (double yellow lines): 

These would be introduced to ensure protection of sight lines and manoeuvring 

space for general traffic and commercial vehicles when accessing or exiting 

parking spaces and which would otherwise be compromised due to a narrow 

carriageway width and also to provide protection for accesses or driveways.   

 

In the case of locations with existing school keep clear markings, this additional 

restriction is to ensure that the school entrance areas are clear for visibility and 

safety purposes when parking might otherwise occur as a result of additional traffic 

on match and event days.     

 

Change of existing No Waiting (at various times) restrictions (single yellow lines) to 

No Waiting Monday to Sunday 9am to 8pm:  

These changes would ensure protection of sight lines and manoeuvring space for 

general traffic and commercial vehicles in the evenings and at weekends and also 

protection for accesses or driveways when parking might otherwise occur as a 

result of additional traffic on match and event days. 

 

New Limited Waiting Parking Places, maximum stay 30 minutes (no return within 1 

hour), Monday to Sunday 9am to 8pm: 

259



These parking facilities would enable visitors to access local shops and businesses 

on match and event days. 

 

Head of Transport         Dated:  15th March 

2013 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

c/o Parking Infrastructure 

Hove Town Hall 

Norton Road 

HOVE    BN3 3BQ 

260



261



262



263



264



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 84 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Fiveways Safer Routes to School Objections 

Date of Meeting: 30th April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Matthew Thompson Tel: 29-0235 

 Email: Matthew.thompson@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Withdean, Preston Park 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE/  
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider two objections received in relation to the 

Traffic regulation order (TRO) for double yellow lines on a measure at Preston 
Drove and to the decision to reposition a bus stop on Ditchling Road 20m further 
north than the position consulted on . Both measures form part of the Fiveways 
safer Routes to school scheme.  

 
1.2 The Road Traffic Act 1988 places a statutory duty on local highway authorities to 

promote road safety. This duty involves studying the occurrence and causes of 
collisions and taking appropriate preventative action in the form of physical 
(engineering) and educational measures to reduce the risk of casualties on local 
roads. In addition, from 1st April 2013, unitary local authorities in England take on 
a new Public Health duty to take such steps as they consider appropriate for 
improving the health of the people in their areas.   

. 
1.3 Balfour Primary, Dorothy Stringer and Varndean schools have been selected within 

the Safer Routes to School Scheme as a priority due to the number of personal injury 
collisions reported in the area involving pedestrians and cyclists during school journey 
times over the past three years.  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That having taken account of all duly made representations and objections, the 

Transport committee approves Brighton & Hove (Waiting & Loading/Unloading 
Restrictions and Parking Places) Consolidation Order 2008 Amendment Order 
No. * 20** (our ref TRO-23b-2012) for double yellow lines at Preston Drove.  

 
2.2 That having taken account of all duly made representations and objections, the 

Transport Committee approves the relocation of the bus stop to the position 
outside 391 Ditchling Road.  

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 

265



3.1 Safer Routes to School is an initiative that aims to improve routes to school making it 
safer for children and their parents and carers to walk, cycle or use public transport, 
thus providing increased travel choice for the journey to and from school. The initiative 
forms a key component of Brighton & Hove City Council’s Local Transport Plan 
2011/12 – 2014/15. 

 
3.2 Based on personal injury collision data the area was identified by officers as 

appropriate for a Safer Routes to School scheme. During the three year period 
01/09/08 to 31/08/11 there were 16 collisions involving a cyclist or pedestrian and 
another vehicle during school journey times. This resulted in 16 casualties, 13 of 
whom were pedestrians and 3 of whom were cyclists. In total, 12 children were injured, 
with three sustaining serious injuries.  

 
3.3 The measures recommended for implementation were as follows: 
  

• Introduce a zebra crossing and build outs to help pedestrians cross from the corner 
near St Mary's Church to The Ride in Preston Park. Extend the kerb on the corner of 
Preston Park Avenue to slow left turns out onto Preston Drove and improve visibility 
down Preston Drove (Map 1.2A) 

 

• Remove the bus stop north of the upper gate to Varndean School and replace it with a 
pedestrian refuge and build outs allowing pupils to cross more safely to the bus stop 
opposite. (Map 1.2C) 

 

• North of Friar Road, create a new bus stop outside 391 Ditchling Road  (Map 1.2C) 
 

• Refresh existing double yellow lines on the junction of Loder Road and Surrenden 
Road (Not shown on map).  

 
 
3.4 The scheme will benefit three schools (Balfour Primary, Dorothy Stringer and 

Varndean) which between them cater for almost 3900 children. These improvements 
will also benefit the wider community of Fiveways.  

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
The public consultation took place between 10 September and the 12 October 2012. 

 
4.4 Ward Councillors for Withdean & Preston Park visited the two sites with Council 

officers on the 30 August 2012 prior to the public consultation and welcomed the 
two main measures.  

 
4.5 Postcards were delivered to 1000 random addresses in the area and properties 

adjacent to the proposed measures in the week commencing 10 September 
inviting people to attend exhibitions to view plans of the proposed layouts. Survey 
forms were available at exhibitions and the public event on Wednesday 19 
September for people to give feedback. An on-line survey was also available on 
the Council website. Links to the survey were sent out in school e-newsletters, 
and paper copies were offered to those parents without internet access.  

 

266



4.6  An area map was available showing the locations where changes are proposed 
(Map 1.1) and plans were also given showing more detailed layouts. (Maps 1.2A 
& B). 

 
4.7 People were asked to look at plans for suggested improvements and to then give 

their preferred options for improvements. Each question also gave a space for 
comments.  

 
4.8 126 people responded giving a response rate of 12.6%. 7 replies came from the 

exhibitions and events, 100 came from the on-line survey. 19 parents at Dorothy 
Stringer replied via survey forms provided by the school.  

 
4.9 The headline results of the public consultation are as follows:   
 

• Proposals for the junction of Surrenden Road and Preston Drove – 91% in 
favour with 37 comments made. 

 

• Proposals for Ditchling Road near the junction of Friar Road (including re-siting 
the bus stop outside 387 Ditchling Road – 79% in favour with 35 comments 
made 

 
4.10  Residents in Loder Road responded to the consultation, pointing out that cars 

frequently park on the corner with Surrenden Road, making it impossible for drivers to 
see children trying to cross the road, and urging us to address this parking issue. As 
this area is not in the Controlled Parking Zone, the Parking Strategy team is not able to 
help with this matter. Officers therefore decided to add double yellow lines to the Safer 
Routes to School TRO, which included Double Yellow lines around the Preston Drove 
zebra crossing measure.  

 
4.10 Objection 1 to the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) amendment.  
 
 The first objection does not deal with the specific locations of the double yellow lines, 

but objects to them on the grounds that they are discriminatory as they will 
predominantly affect white people, men and heterosexuals. It also alleges that the 
measure is anti-driver, the public’s views have not been considered, people will be 
criminalised and that the measure is a waste of money 

 
4.11.1 Response 
 

The objection has no bearing on the specifics of this measure and is identical to 
objections submitted on other schemes containing traffic regulation orders.  

 
 
4.12 Objection 2 
 
4.12.1 The second objection to the TRO amendment supports the introduction of the 

Preston Drove zebra, (Map 1.2A) but objects to the removal of parking spaces at 
this location and wider schemes around Preston Park causing parking 
displacement. It suggests that the effect on parking be minimised. It also asks 
that the path worn across the grass opposite the new crossing indicating the 
desire line for the crossing is paved, and the existing crossing further up the hill 
outside the Park View public house be improved. Comments are made about the 

267



tactile paving on the crossing outside the Park view Public house not conforming 
to current regulations and suggest an upgrade of this crossing would be more 
appropriate. 

 
4.12.2 Response 
 The current TRO allows for double yellow lines on the corner of Preston Park Avenue 

and Preston Drove to be reinstated to the new kerb line as shown in the consultation 
plans. The proposed amendment allowed for double yellow lines west of the crossing 
along the new build outs. These have now been replaced with extended zigzags which 
do not require a TRO amendment.  

 
4.12.3 While the council supports the paving of the path, this is not within the remit of the 

scheme which is to improve road safety on school journeys. Sightlines to the west 
however are an important feature, which means that parking must be prevented in 
order to allow drivers trying to exit The Ride in Preston park a clear view to the West 
down Preston Drove.  
 

4.12.4 The crossing outside the Park View Public house will be monitored in a few months 
time to assess the impact of the new crossing on numbers using it. There are no plans 
at present to remove or enhance it. The tactile paving on this crossing is in a different 
configuration to current regulations. This is in line with a city wide policy not to replace 
tactile paving installed before the regulation change.  

 
4.13  Background to objections to the Bus stop outside 391 Ditchling Road 
 
4.13.1 The objections to the site of the bus stop on Ditchling road refer to locations that do 

not fall within the scope of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order. The proposed site 
consulted on was outside 387 Ditchling Road. (Map 1.2B)These premises are 
currently used by a nursery.  

 
4.13.2 Several submissions objecting to this measure were received from parents using the 

nursery, its owners and immediate neighbours raising concerns about the bus stop on 
child protection grounds, driveway access and parking in general, most wanting to 
retain the current unrestricted arrangements. 

 
4.13.3 After the consultation, in response to submissions, officers made the decision to 

move the proposed site 20m north outside 391 Ditchling Road. (Map 1.2C). This 
was in order to avoid further delays to implementing the urgently needed safety 
measures which these objections had the potential to cause. 

 
4.13.4 The Operations Manager of Brighton and Hove buses was formally consulted 

and responded that he was happy with either location because he felt the current 
bus stop is located too far south. He also pointed out that moving it northwards 
will even out the gaps between the stops but did not support removal of the stop 
altogether as this would create much too large a distance between stops and 
cause much inconvenience to local people who wish to use the bus. 

 
4.13.5 The owners of number 391responded to the initial consultation in support of 

putting the bus stop outside the nursery, but were concerned about parked cars 
adjacent to their driveway making it difficult to see approaching traffic, which they 
felt was particularly important in a 40mph speed limit.  

 

268



4.13.6 Following the consultation, officers wrote to inform them of the committee’s 
decision to put the bus stop outside their house, pointing out that the bus stop will 
overcome one of their concerns cars parking adjacent to their driveway and 
buses will only obstruct views for very brief periods. In addition, provision of a 
single white line across the driveways of both 389 and 391 was offered to make 
any obstruction by parked cars easier to enforce.  

 
4.13.7 As the views of the owners of 391 Ditchling Road were not placed before the 

Committee when it made its original decision to site the bus stop outside that 
property, the matter is being returned to committee for those objections to be 
considered. 

 
4.14  Objection to the proposed bus stop position (Map 1.2C) 
 

The owners of number 391 Ditchling Road object to the proposed bus stop 
position on the following grounds:  
 

• Noise from buses calling at the stop will created disturbance in their front rooms, 
one of which is sometimes used as a cognitive therapy room, requiring quiet 
conditions.  

• The nursery is only used five days a week during working hours and it is fairer to 
ask them to endure the engine noise rather than full time residents.  

• The property at 391 will lose value 

• The nursery advertises its Green credentials and promotes sustainable transport 
use. These are consistent with a bus stop outside their premises and the council 
should urge the nursery to stick to these.  

• School children will sit on the front wall of 391 while waiting for a bus after 
school, affecting the residents’ privacy. 

• They pay a higher rate of council tax based on the quality of the area they live in, 
and this will be compromised by a bus stop. 

• There is already a telegraph pole outside the house, so an additional bus stop 
post would be unfair. Wires to adjacent houses from this pole cross their property 
and they have had to remove trees which have grown too tall and replant other 
greenery at their own expense to accommodate this.  

• There is no need for a bus stop here as others are sufficient. The council could 
consider re-spacing all the bus stops along this stretch of Ditchling Road.  

• Bus stops should only be put near crossings.  
 
4.14.1 Response 
 
4.14.2 The bus stop position outside 391 Ditchling Road will impact on fewer people 

while providing improved accessibility to bus services for the residents of Friar 
Road and Surrenden Park. The bus company believe this stop is necessary for 
passengers in this area to access northbound services.  
 

4.14.3 There are no houses on the other side of the road so there is no need for a 
crossing point nearby. After school, students have no incentive to use a stop 
further north of the stop nearest the school gates, as the service northbound 
does not get as busy as those travelling southbound into the city.  

 
4.14.4 Officers have considered the representations made above but consider that the 

location outside number 391 is the most appropriate. 

269



5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The cost of additional work required to overcome objections can be met from 

within the Safer Routes to School budget of £50,000 which is part of the Local 
Transport Plan (LTP) capital allocation. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 10/04/13 
 

Legal Implications: 
 

5.2  The traffic order has been advertised according to the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 and the relevant procedure regulations. As there are 
unresolved objections and representations they are now referred to this 
meeting for resolution.  

 
5.2.1 In carrying out consultation the Council is under a general duty to ensure that any 

consultation is fair. This means that it must be carried out when proposals are 
being formulated, that adequate time and information about proposals must be 
given to consultees to ensure that they can provide a proper response, and that 
any consultation responses must be properly considered in reaching the 
decision.  

 
5.2.3 The Council is under a legal duty as a public authority to consider the human 

rights implications of its actions. Parking and traffic restrictions have the potential 
to affect the right to respect for family and private life and the right to protection of 
property. These are qualified rights and therefore there can be interference with 
them where this is necessary, proportionate and for a legitimate aim.  

 
 

Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 10/04/13 
 
 

Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 There will not be an Equalities Impact Assessment as these proposals do not 

include a change to existing policy. However, the DDA will be consulted on the 
proposals to ensure that the highway measures are appropriate for people with 
physical difficulties 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
. 
5.4 Sustainable Consumption and Production: It is proposed that materials be reused 

where possible 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 There are no implications for the prevention of crime and disorder at this stage. 

Sussex Police have been consulted as part of the public consultation process. 

270



 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 

5.6 Following guidelines from the Institute of Highways and Transportation, 
independent safety audits will be carried out to ensure that safe designs will be 
implemented. 

 
5.7 Climate Change and Energy: The Safer Routes to School initiative seeks to 

increase use of sustainable modes of travel to and from school by increasing 
safety on the routes.  

 
5.8 Sustainable Communities: The initiative includes engagement with communities 

to encourage sustainable travel. 
 
 
5.9 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 The proposals will assist in the achievement of the Council priorities by protecting 

the environment through the encouragement of sustainable modes of travel to 
and from school.  The proposals will reuse any appropriate materials to realise a 
better use of money. The Safer Routes to School Scheme reduces inequality by 
increasing access to safer, sustainable routes through the city. 

   
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 Without double yellow lines to allow enforcement of parking restrictions, parked 

cars will continue to cause a hazard to pedestrians on the Loder Road/ 
Surrenden Road junction.  

 
6.2 The original position proposed for the bus stop outside 387 Ditchling Road has 

drawn a considerable number of objections from users of the Nursery, the 
owners and their immediate neighbours. If the decision is taken to revert to this 
location, any renewal of these objections will have further cost implications in 
terms of officer time for both this and the next Safer Routes to School scheme.  

 
 
6.3 Parking bays were removed from the proposal to future-proof a pedestrian and 

cycle route creating improved access to the South Downs National Park. 
 
   
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 The double yellow lines in the Traffic Regulation Order will prevent parking which 

obscures the views of child pedestrians at this junction and will compliment other 
crossing facility improvements.  

 
7.2 The bus stop in Ditchling Road must be relocated to permit construction of the 

proposed pedestrian refuge which will make crossing to the bus stops opposite 
the school safer and reduce the risk of pedestrian collisions.  

 
 
 
 

 

271



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Map Appendices (overview);  
2.        A – C: (Individual site maps)         
 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. Public Consultation report 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. Local Transport Plan 2011/12 – 2014/15 
 
 

272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 85 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Preston Park Parking Scheme Formal Traffic Order 
Consultation 

Date of Meeting: 30 April 2013 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Jan Jonker Tel: 29-4722 

 Email: jan.jonker@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Preston Park 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 In February 2013 the council’s Environment & Sustainability Committee 

considered a review of the Preston Park parking controls and agreed to reduce 
the hours during which charges apply subject to the statutory consultation 
process for Traffic Regulation Orders. 

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to consider comments and objections to the draft 

traffic regulation order. 
 
2   RECOMMENDATIONS: 
  
2.1 That, having taken account of all duly made representations and objections the 

Committee approves as advertised the order:  
 
(a) Brighton & Hove (Preston Park) Various Restrictions Order 2012 Amendment 
Order No.* 20** (TRO-8-2013) 
 
 

3.        RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS 

 
3.1 In May 2012 this committee approved the Traffic Regulation Orders to implement 

parking controls in Preston Park.  The controls were introduced in June 2012 to 
address the problems of uncontrolled parking in the Park.  It was agreed that the 
scheme would be reviewed six months after implementation. The findings and 
recommendations of the review were presented to the council’s Environment & 
Sustainability Committee in February 2013. 

281



 
3.2 In summary the review concluded that: 
 

• The controls successfully addressed the issues of long-term parking 

• The scheme successfully restricted parking to designated areas in the 
park and addressed access problems that were caused by parking 
congestion 

• The scheme was designed to be self funding with any surplus ring fenced 
to the park.  The scheme generated a higher surplus than anticipated of 
around £44,000 per annum.  The cost of implementation has been paid 
back and the surplus for 2012/13 is expected to be around £15,000. 

 
3.3 Based on the results the Environment & Sustainability Committee agreed the 

recommendation to reduce the times during which charges applied as follows: 
 
  

Days Current hours 
charges apply 

Proposed hours 
charges apply 

Monday - Friday 9am – 6pm 9am – 4pm 

Saturday & Sunday 9am – 6pm 2pm – 6pm 

 
3.4 The changes would allow free parking in the afternoons during the week and 

during peak time at the weekends.  To prevent long-term parking over the 
weekend it would not be possible to roll any payment over in to the following day 
(eg it would not be possible to park on Friday night and pay £2 to cover the 
period 2pm -6pm on Saturday which would then allow parking until 2pm on 
Sunday).  During the week the hours during which charges apply have to be 
longer than the maximum length of stay (6 hours) to prevent commuters taking 
advantage of the lower parking charges compared to on street. 

 
3.5 The recommendations were agreed subject to the statutory consultation process 

for Traffic Regulation Orders. 
 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The proposed Traffic Regulation Order was advertised for 21 days between the 

27 February 2013 and 20 March 2013. The notice was published in the Argus 
newspaper on the 6th of March. Detailed plans and the Traffic Regulation Order 
were available to view at Hove Library, Jubilee library and the City Direct Offices 
at Bartholomew house and Hove Town Hall. The documents were also available 
to view and to respond to directly on the Council website. The notice was also 
circulated to the key stakeholders identified in the informal consultation in May 
2011 and to the Friends of Preston Park newsletter and AGM. 

 
4.2 There were 7 items of correspondence which included 4 objections and 3 

comments in favour. Three of the objections state that they generally see the 
benefit of the proposals to reduce hours of parking restriction but still feel that the 
charges are generally restrictive to sports groups particularly those with 
afternoon fixtures at weekends. The representations are summarised in 
Appendix A and a table showing the detailed comments & objections received 
with responses has been placed in the Members Rooms.  

 

282



4.3 The proposed changes will reduce the cost of parking in Preston Park for park 
users while still addressing the problems associated with long-term unrestricted 
parking by non-park users.  None of the objections were against the proposed 
change, namely to reduce the hours during which charges apply. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The set up costs of the scheme have been repaid by the parking surplus which 

was higher than anticipated.  The revised hours during which charges apply are 
expected to result in a surplus of £27,000 per annum which will be ring-fenced to 
the park. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 03/04/2013 
 
 Legal Implications: 
5.2     The traffic orders have been advertised according to the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984 and the relevant procedure regulations. As there are 
unresolved objections and representations they are now referred to this 
meeting for resolution.  
In carrying out consultation the Council is under a general duty to ensure that any 
consultation is fair. This means that it must be carried out when proposals are 
being formulated, that adequate time and information about proposals must be 
given to consultees to ensure that they can provide a proper response, and that 
any consultation responses must be properly considered in reaching the 
decision. 
The Council is under a legal duty as a public authority to consider the human 
rights implications of its actions. Parking and traffic restrictions have the potential 
to affect the right to respect for family and private life and the right to protection of 
property. These are qualified rights and therefore there can be interference with 
them where this is necessary, proportionate and for a legitimate aim. Under 
section 55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, as amended by the 
Traffic Management Act 2004, the Council must keep an account of all parking 
income and expenditure in designated (i.e. on-street) parking spaces which are 
in a Civil Enforcement Area, and of their income and expenditure related to their 
functions as an enforcement authority. Regulations and guidance confirm that in 
respect of off-street parking places, the term "income and expenditure as 
enforcement authorities" includes that related to the issue of PCNs. It does not 
include surplus pay and display income or the direct expenditure relating to 
collecting that income. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 08/04/13 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
 
5.3 None – the existing scheme has improved access to the park and blue badge 

holders are still able to park outside the two restricted areas. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 

283



5.4 None 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 None 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 None 
 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7  None 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 None  
 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 A number of alternative options were modelled and considered as part of the 

review and presented to the Environment & Sustainability Committee.  These 
included: free parking at weekends, first two hours free or a nominal charge to 
apply during the first few hours.  The recommended option was adopted as this 
provided free parking during peak times while still addressing the issues of long 
term parking.  

 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To seek approval of the scheme to the implementation stage after taking into 

consideration of the duly made representations and objections. These proposals and 
amendments are recommended to be taken forward for the reasons outlined within the 
report. 

 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. List of Objections/ Comments 
 
 

284



 

Object / 

Support 

Contents Comments/Recommendations 

Support it's brilliant news that we will be able to use the tennis courts 
without the worry of parking charges on top.  Thank you for 
listening. 
 

 

Object Whilst I welcome the general reduction which will encourage 
recreational users and sports people to use the park I object to 
the weekend charges and feel that they should be removed 
completely. Charges impact on all day Sport events such as the 
SE Championships and competitors will have to be distracted 
by worrying about feeding meters. Also it impacts on Charity 
events such as PPYC Big Pedal where riders travel from afar to 
take part. 

The pay and display meters can be 
prepaid for the 4 hour pay period on 
each weekend day. The maximum 
cost for the weekend afternoon period 
2pm to 6pm is £2.00. The reason for 
maintaining a charge over a limited 
period at the weekend is to prevent 
cars from being left in the park over 
the weekend. 

Object Whilst I am all for a reduction in the proposed "pay times" I am 
a little mystified by one of your 
reasons for the proposed change. You state that users will be 
able to park free of charge including many of the sports clubs 
that have fixtures at the weekend. Charging on Saturdays is to 
start at 2pm precisely the time that many sports matches 
commence. All our Saturday games start at 2pm as do most 
cricket matches and also I suspect football matches in the 
Winter. So the change on Saturdays won’t help us at all.  There 
is however some benefit from the weekdays changes. 
 

Comment. The proposals do not have 
any impact on the British Rail Bowls 
Club based at the Mens Bowls 
Pavilion, Preston Park, on weekend 
afternoons although there is a positive 
impact on the weekdays. 

Support It looks better for tennis players in Preston Park. 
Thanks 

 

 

Object The reasons given for reducing the hours highlight that "many 
of the sports clubs that have fixtures at weekends and 
weekdays". The charging period during the afternoon 
particularly at weekends is an issue for fixtures in the afternoon 

Comment. It is possible to prepay the 
meter for the 4 hour charge period at 
the start of the day. The charge period 
proposed is shorter and will therefore 

285



and especially those like ours that are all day. I have emailed 
the project manager for clarification on whether our riders will 
have to stop racing at 2pm and dash up to the meters but have 
received no response. I would prefer to see no charged periods 
at all but given that this is unlikely I would like to see the 
restrictions at weekends removed completely to encourage 
leisure and sporting use of this great facility. It is obvious that 
restrictions brought in to discourage long term use of the park 
also discourages legitimate use and a balance must be sought. 

make it easier for park users to park 
for less cost than at present when 
staying all day on the weekend. 

Object My son or I could be in a middle of a cycle race or cricket match 
at the weekend and we like many other people would have to 
completely stop what we are doing to go and sort our cars out. I 
thought the council supported cyclists however less and less 
are using the facilities in the park.  
The present parking has stopped us and many others using the 
park as much as we did in previous years. My son has to 
regularly train on the open dangerous roads around Brighton 
and East/West Sussex instead. I understand about parking on 
weekdays and the change in the early evenings will be helpful 
however i don t agree the council should be making money at 
weekends purely out of people using the park and its another 
example of pushing people out of the town. We regularly use 
cycle facilities in south London that we don t pay parking for.  
 

Comment. It is possible to prepay the 
meter for the 4 hour charge period at 
the start of the day. The charge period 
proposed is shorter and will therefore 
make it easier for park users to park 
for less cost than at present when 
staying all day on the weekend. 

Support I feel the original requirement regarding initiating paid parking in 
the park was a result of commuters and office workers using 
the park as free parking and clogging up the park. The 
originally implemented hours, in my opinion, was a 'sledge 
hammer to crack a nut'. The new proposed hours are a far 
more sensible way of stopping the commuter parking situation 
yet still making the park affordably accessible to people. I am a 
regular user of the park and frequently use it to enjoy the open 
area with friends in the summer and for fitness classes (British 

Comment relating to Preston Park 
Avenue referred to Parking 
Infrastructure 

286



Military Fitness) operated in the park through out the year. The 
current parking hours put me off up using the park and friends 
no longer want to meet there due to the cost. The new 
proposed is whole heartedly supposed. May I however, draw 
your attention to a potential issue. Unless you also implement 
similar changes to the parking restrictions on Preston Park 
Avenue (PPA), people will simply choose to park in the park 
and 'clogging' up situation of park parking could reoccur, as 
people will not park on PPA and will in favour use cheaper park 
parking. 

 
 

 

287



288


	Agenda
	69 Minutes
	72 Public Involvement
	Questions
	Deputations

	73 Items referred from Full Council
	Item - Seven Dials Tree Petition Extract for Transport Committeel 30.04.13
	Deputation- Paston Place
	Minute Extract - Deputation

	74 Member Involvement
	75 Seven Dials Elm Tree Œ Consideration of Design Alternatives
	Enc. 2 for Seven Dials Elm Tree Œ Consideration of Design Alternatives
	Enc. 3 for Seven Dials Elm Tree Œ Consideration of Design Alternatives
	Enc. 4 for Seven Dials Elm Tree Œ Consideration of Design Alternatives
	Enc. 5 for Seven Dials Elm Tree Œ Consideration of Design Alternatives
	Enc. 6 for Seven Dials Elm Tree Œ Consideration of Design Alternatives

	76 Better Bus Areas
	1. BHCC Better Bus Areas Bid
	2. Edward Street design proposals

	77 Brighton Station Gateway
	Enc. 1 for Brighton Station Gateway
	Enc. 2 for Brighton Station Gateway
	Enc. 3 for Brighton Station Gateway - Southern letter
	Enc. 6 for Brighton Station Gateway
	Enc. 5 for Brighton Station Gateway
	Enc. 7 for Brighton Station Gateway

	78 Traffic Order consultation - Resident Parking Schemes
	Enc. 1 for Traffic Order consultation - Resident Parking Schemes
	Enc. 2 for Traffic Order consultation - Resident Parking Schemes
	Enc. 3 for Traffic Order consultation - Resident Parking Schemes
	Enc. 4 for Traffic Order consultation - Resident Parking Schemes
	Enc. 5 for Traffic Order consultation - Resident Parking Schemes
	Enc. 6 for Traffic Order consultation - Resident Parking Schemes
	Enc. 7 for Traffic Order consultation - Resident Parking Schemes

	79 Lively Cities - Regeneration in the London Road area
	Enc. 1 for Lively Cities- Regeneration in the London Road area

	80 West Hove & South Portslade Residents Parking Consultation
	Appendix A plan of proposed parking review area
	Appendix B proposed timetable of parking reviews for West Hove & South Portslade

	81 Blakers Park Road Safety Scheme - TRO for parking restrictions
	Appendix A - cover sheet
	Appendix A - plan showing original proposal as advertised with the TRO
	Appendix A1 - cover sheet
	Appendix A1 - revised plan showing the amended proposal
	Appendix B - summary of representations received

	82 Dyke Road (Seven Dials) - Formal Traffic Regulation Order Consultation
	Enc. 1 for Dyke Road (Seven Dials) - Formal Traffic Regulation Order Consultation

	83 Amex Community Stadium Residents Parking Proposals - Consideration of Objections and Representations to Traffic Regulation Orders
	Appendix A summary of representations and comments
	Appendix B TRO Notice
	Appendix C Statement of reasons
	Appendix D map of proposed Coldean scheme
	Appendix E map of proposed Moulsecoomb scheme

	84 Fiveways Safer Routes to school scheme objections
	Enc. 1 for Fiveways Safer Routes to school scheme objections
	Enc. 2 for Fiveways Safer Routes to school scheme objections
	Enc. 3 for Fiveways Safer Routes to school scheme objections
	Enc. 4 for Fiveways Safer Routes to school scheme objections

	85 Preston Park Parking Review - Response to TRO

